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Notes

The following conventional symbols have been used in the tables:

. a dash (-) indicates that the item/figure is inexistent;

. two stops (..), “n.s.” or “n.m.” when the figures do not reach the minimum
considered significant or are not in any case considered significant;

. “n.a.” indicates that the figure is not available.

Any discrepancies between data are solely due to the effect of rounding.
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Strategy and Results

2014 Highlights

YEAR 2014:
GROUP
= Net profit: €2.0 bn and 4.9% RoTE
= Revenues: €22.5 bn (-3.5% FY/FY)
= Total costs: €13.8 bn (-2.9% FY/FY) with a cost/income ratio of 61.5%
= Asset Quality: LLP at €4.3 bn, cost of risk at 90bps
CORE BANK

= Net profit: €3.8 bn and 10.8% RoAC

= Revenues: €22.2 bn (-2.0% FY/FY)

= Total costs: €13.2 bn (-2.9% FY/FY) with a cost/ income ratio of 59.7%
= Asset Quality: LLP at €2.1 bn, cost of risk at 50bps

Q4 2014

GROUP
= Net profit: €170.4 m (-76.4% Q/Q) and 1.6% RoTE

= Revenues: €5.6 bn (+0.8% Q/Q, -3.4% Y/Y)

= Total costs: €3.5 bn (+2.9% Q/Q, -6.4 % Y/Y) with a cost/ income ratio of
62.7%

= Asset Quality: LLP at €1.7 bn (compared to €753.5 m in 3Q14 affected by
positive one-offs), net impaired loans ratio at 8.7%, coverage ratio at 51.3%

= Capital adequacy: CET1 ratio transitional at 10.41%, CET1 ratio fully loaded
at 10.02%, Tier 1 ratio transitional at 11.26%, total capital ratio transitional at
13.55%")

CORE BANK

= Net profit: €867.5 m (-21.3% Q/Q) and 9.8% RoAC"”

= Revenues: €5.5 bn (+1.0% Q/Q, -2.1% Y/Y)

= Total costs: €3.4 bn (+3.6% Q/Q, -5.9% Y/Y) with a cost/ income ratio of
61.1%

= Asset Quality: LLP at €754.3 m, cost of risk at 71bps

(*) Assuming 2014 scrip dividend of 12 €cents per ordinary share with 75% acceptance rate of shares and, only for CET1 ratio fully loaded, the full
absorption of DTA on goodwill tax redemption and tax losses carried forward. Including full cash dividend, CET1 Ratio transitional at 10.26%, Tier
1 Ratio transitional at 11.12% and Total Capital Ratio transitional at 13.41%.

(**) ROoAC = Net profit/ Allocated capital. Allocated capital is calculated as 9% of RWA, including deductions for shortfall and securitizations.
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Note to the Report on Operations

and the Consolidated Accounts

General Aspects

The UniCredit group’s Consolidated Reports and
Accounts as at December 31, 2014 have been compiled
under IFRS as required by Bank of Italy Circular 262 of
December 22, 2005 (third amendment dated December 22,
2014). These instructions lay down the Accounts tables and
compilation methods, as well as the Notes to the Accounts.

The Consolidated Reports and Accounts comprise the
Balance Sheet, the Income Statement, the Statement of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Notes to the Accounts, as well as a Report on
operations, results and the Group'’s financial situation and
Annexes.

Included in this package are:

. the Attestation of the Consolidated Accounts
pursuant to art. 81-ter of Consob Regulation no.
11971 of May 14, 1999 as amended and
supplemented;

. the Report of the External Auditors in accordance
with articles 14 and 16 of Legislative Decree no.
39 of January 27, 2010.

UniCredit's website also contains the press releases
concerning the main events of the period and the
presentation to the market of the results for the period.

Any discrepancies between data disclosed in the Report on
operations and in the consolidated accounts are solely due
to the effect of rounding.

General Principles Followed in the
Preparation of the Report on
Operations

In light of the need to ensure that disclosure of accounting
records is clear, true and fair, the Report on Operations
includes information provided in accordance with the
principles applied when preparing prior-period quarterly
reports, including condensed balance sheet and income
statement — as required by Consob Notice 6064293 of July
28, 2006, their line-by-line reconciliation to the statutory
statements is given in an annex to the Accounts - and in
other interim financial statements.

The report is accompanied by a number of tables -
Highlights, Condensed Accounts, Quarterly Figures, a
Comparison of Q4 2014 with Q4 2013, Segment Reporting,
How the Group Has Grown and the UniCredit Share - as
well as a comment on Group Results and Results by
Business Segment.

The Condensed Balance Sheet and Income Statement
have led to the restatement — as shown in the reconciliation
tables annexed to this volume — of the accounting entries as
follows:

Balance Sheet

. the aggregation of Financial assets designated at fair
value, Available-for-sale financial assets, Held-to-
maturity financial assets and Equity investments as
‘Financial investments’;

. grouping under Hedging Instruments, both assets
and liabilities, of Hedging derivatives and Value
adjustments to macro-hedged financial assets;

. the inclusion of Severance pay (TFR) and Technical
reserves under Other liabilities.

Income Statement

. the inclusion in “dividends and other income from
equity investments” of gains (losses) on equity
investments valued at net equity and the exclusion of
dividends on held-for-trading shares, which are
included in trading, hedging and fair value income;

. the exclusion from “dividends and other income from
equity investments” of profit (loss) of associates
valued at equity following the adoption of IFRS 10-11
and whose possession originated from debt-to-equity
transactions, and the inclusion under the item “net
Income from Investments”;

. the inclusion in the balance of other income/expense
of the insurance business result and other operating
expense/income, excluding recovery of expenses
which is classified under its own item;

. presentation of payroll costs, other administrative
expenses, write-downs of tangible and intangible
assets and provisions for risks and charges net of
integration costs related to the reorganization
program, which are shown in their own items;

. the exclusion from the “net write-downs on loans and
provisions for guarantees and commitments” of the
provisions for the contribution to the National
Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund (FITD) classified
under the item “provisions for risks and charges”;

. the exclusion from write-downs of tangible assets of
impairment losses and write-backs on investment
property, which are recognized in net income from
investments;

. the inclusion in net income from investments of write-
downs and write-backs on available-for-sale financial
assets and held-to-maturity investments, gains
(losses) on disposal of investments, as well as gains
(losses) on equity investments and on disposals of
investments.
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Strategy and Results

Note to the Report on Operations

and the Consolidated Accounts

Scope of consolidation

The changes in the scope of consolidation during f 2014
mainly related to the introduction, starting from January, 1
2014 of IFRS 10 and 11 and to the acquisition of 100% of
the equity interest in Immobilien Holding, a holding
company of a group of 56 companies in which the Bank
Austria Group already held the right to an 88% share of
income. This resulted in the consolidation of 34 companies
using the line-by-line consolidation method and 10
companies using the equity method.

For strategic reasons, Bank Austria intends to dispose the
group within the next 12 months. Accordingly, the
companies consolidated using the equity method and the
assets/liabilities of the companies consolidated line-by-line
have been classified under “disposal groups classified as
held for sale”.

With respect to December 31, 2013, the following overall
changes have been recorded:

e the number of fully consolidated companies has
gone from 732 at the end of 2013 to 751 at
December 2014 (76 first-time consolidations - of
which 27 first-time consolidations as a result of
IFRS 10 - and 57 exited), representing an
increase of 19;

e the proportionally consolidated companies,
which amounted to 26 at the end of 2013, have
been reduced to zero as a result of the
introduction of IFRS 11: of these, 18 have been
consolidated using the equity method, and 8
minor companies invested in indirectly have
been consolidated synthetically from January 1,
2014 through the consolidation at equity of the
direct investee;

e the number of companies consolidated using the
equity method has gone from 59 at the end of
2013 to 73 at December 2014 (22 entered - of
which 18 as a result of the change in method of
consolidation due to the introduction of IFRS11 -
and 8 exited), representing an increase of 14.

For further details see Part A - Accounting Policies; A.1
General, Section 3 - Consolidation Procedures and Scope
and Part B - Consolidated Balance Sheet — Assets,
Section 10 - Investments in associates and joint ventures
(item 100).

Changes Made to Increase
Comparability

The main changes in the accounting principles, described
in detail under Accounting Policies section, relate to the
entry into force of IFRS 10-11-12 (which resulted in
changes in the scope of consolidation), the presentation of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities on a net
basis in the Balance Sheet (IAS 12), a counterparty
reclassified from customers to banks and the
reclassification of the contribution to the National Interbank
Deposit Guarantee Fund (FITD).
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The following tables report for all 2013 quarters the

assets and liabilities, due to the adoption

of the new

changes recognized in balance sheet, respectively for standards.
ASSETS 12.31.2013 09.30.2013 06.30.2013 03.31.2013
Cash and cash balances (288) (310) (294) (290)
Financial assets held for trading (209) (172) (138) (85)
Loans and receivables w ith banks 1,566 989 1,026 746
Loans and receivables with customers (18,833) (18,951) (18,993) (19,054)
Financial investments 117 203 5) (37)
Hedging instruments (74) (61) (68) (41)
Property, plant and equipment (132) (135) (152) (170)
Goodw ll - (237) (254) (273)
Other intangible assets (57) (55) (59) (64)
Tax assets (117) (129) (165) (180)
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale - - (266) (280)
Other assets (274) (164) (174) (334)
Total assets (18,300) (19,020) (19,541) (20,062)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOL DERS' EQUITY 12.31.2013 09.30.2013 06.30.2013 03.31.2013
Deposits from banks (2,778) (3,083) (3,228) (3,336)
Deposits from customers (17,432) (17,112) (17,434) (18,063)
Debt securities in issue 4,173 3,603 3,706 4,049
Financial liabilities held for trading 631 572 616 632
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 9 9 9 9
Hedging instruments (53) (64) (76) (125)
Provisions for risks and charges (170) (203) (220) (237)
Tax liabilities (72) (91) (114) (120)
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale - - (240) (264)
Other liabilities (2,490) (2,525) (2,433) (2,475)
Minorities - - - -
Group Shareholders' Equity**: (119) (124) (126) (132)
- Capital and reserves* (166) (133) (106) 10
- AfS assets fair value reserve, Cash-flow hedging reserve and
Defined benefits plans reserve** a7 8 (22) (142)
- Net profit (loss) - - - -
Total liabilities and Shareholders' Equity (18,300) (19,020) (19,541) (20,062)

*Includes the FTA reserve amounting to €-144,7 million

**The difference between the overall net equity and the FTA reserves is attributable to the changes in the fair value reserves of each quarter
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Strategy and Results

Note to the Report on Operations

and the Consolidated Accounts

The following table reports, split by quarters, the changes income and expenses belonging to consolidated industrial
recognized in consolidated income statement as of companies (i.e. subsidiaries operating in sectors other than
December 31, 2013, due to the adoption of the new banking and other financial services) within “net other
standards. expenses/income”. This reclassification only applies to the
In addition to IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 adjustments, column condensed consolidated income statement.

“Further Adjustments” includes also the reclassification of

Consolidated Income Statement (€million)
Originally Further REsiaicr
reported IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 Restated  iustments et

Adjustments Reclassified
12.31.2013 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 12.31.2013 12.31.2013

Net interest 12,990 (218) (185) (164) (121) 12,303 - 12,303

Dividends and other income from equity investments 324 98 141 296 103 961 3 964

Net fees and commissions 7,728 (78) (113) (70) (106) 7,361 - 7,361

Net trading income 2,657 (13) (55) (34) (50) 2,505 - 2,505

Net other expenses/income 273 9) (17) 2 8 257 (54) 203

OPERATING INCOME 23,973 (219) (231) 29 (166) 23,387 (51) 23,335

Payroll costs (8,649) 71 74 61 62 (8,382) 6 (8,375)

Other administrative expenses (5,559) 54 51 44 43 (5,367) 10 (5,357)

Recovery of expenses 715 3 5 3 (10) 716 1 716

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible

and tangible assets (1,307) 11 11 10 9 (1,266) 29 (1,238)

Operating costs (14,801) 139 141 118 104 (14,300) 46 (14,253)

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 9,172 (81) (90) 147 (62) 9,087 (5) 9,082

Net w rite-dow ns on loans and provisions for guarantees and

commitments (13,658) 46 45 33 42 (13,493) 12 (13,481)

NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (4,486) (35) (45) 180 (20) (4,406) 7 (4,399)

Provisions for risks and charges (996) 11 12 5 1 (967) 17) (984)

Integration costs (727) - - - - (727) - (727)

Net income from investments 1,322, 1) 1) (220) (228) 872 18 890

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (4,888) (24) (34) (36) (247) (5,228) 7 (5,220)

Income tax for the period 1,607 24 34 36 24 1,724 (8) 1,716

NET PROFIT (LOSS) (3,281) - - - (223) (3,504) - (3,504)

Profit (Loss) from non-current assets held for sale, after tax (639) - - - - (639) - (639)

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (3,920) - - - (223) (4,143) - (4,143)

Minorities (382) - - - - (382) - (382)

NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP BEFORE H (4,302) - - - (223) (4,524) - (4,524)

Purchase Price Allocation effect (1,673) - - - - (1,673) - (1,673)

Goodw ill impairment (7,990) - - - 223 (7,767) - (7,767)

NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP (13,965) - - - - (13,965) - (13,965)
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Non-Current Assets and Asset
Groups Held for Disposal

In the balance sheet at December 31, 2014, the main
assets classified according to IFRS 5 as non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale, with regard to
the individual assets and liabilities held for sale, were
some properties held by UniCredit S.p.A. and the BARD
group.

With regard to groups of assets held for sale, and
associated liabilities, the item at December 31, 2014 refers
to:
. the group companies in Ukraine
o BDK CONSULTING;
o PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY
UKRSOTSBANK;
o PRIVATE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
FERROTRADE INTERNATIONAL;
0 LLC UKROTSBUD;
o LTD SI&C AMC UKRSOTS REAL
ESTATE;
o SVIF UKRSOTSBUD;
. the Immobilien Holding group companies, in the
scope of consolidation since September 30,
2014 (for more information, see the paragraph
“Scope of consolidation” in this section).

An update on Ukranian risk is stated in Part E — Section 5
— Other risks — Selected emerging risks.

Segment Reporting (Summary)

Segment reporting is presented and commented on the
basis of the organizational structure currently used in
management reporting of Group results, which consists of
the following business segments:

. Commercial Banking Italy;
Commercial Banking Germany;
Commercial Banking Austria;
Poland;
CEE Division;
CIB;
Asset Management;
Asset Gathering;
Non-core;
Governance/Group Corporate Centre (including
Global Banking Services, Corporate Centre
Global Function, inter-segment adjustments and
consolidation adjustments not attributable to
individual segments).

The Non-core segment was introduced in the first quarter
of 2014. It includes selected assets of Commercial

Banking Italy (identified on a single customer basis) and
the activities of the company UniCredit Credit Management
Bank and of some securitization SPVs.

UniCredit — 2014 Consolidated Reports and Accounts
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Report on Operations

Highlights

Income Statement (€ million)
YEAR

2014 2013 CHANGE

Operating income 22,513 23,335 -3.5%

of which: - net interest 12,442 12,303 +1.1%

- dividends and other income from equity investments 794 964 -17.7%

- net fees and commissions 7,572 7,361 +2.9%

Operating costs (13,838) (14,253) -2.9%

Operating profit 8,675 9,082 - 4.5%

Profit (loss) before tax 4,091 (5,220) -178.4%

Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group 2,008 (13,965) -114.4%

The figures in this table refer to reclassified income statement.

Balance Sheet (€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT

12.31.2014 12.31.2013 CHANGE

Total assets 844,217 825,919 +2.2%

Financial assets held for trading 101,226 80,701 +25.4%

Loans and receivables with customers 470,569 483,684 -2.7%

of which: - impaired loans 41,092 39,746 +3.4%

Financial liabilities held for trading 77,135 63,799 +20.9%

Deposits from customers and debt securities in issue 560,688 557,379 + 0.6%

of which: - deposits from customers 410,412 393,113 +4.4%

- securities in issue 150,276 164,266 - 8.5%

Shareholders' Equity 49,390 46,722 +5.7%

The figures in this table refer to reclassified balance sheet.

See § "Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments" in this Report on Operations for more details.

Staff and Branches

AS AT
12.31.2014 12.31.2013 CHANGE

Employees® 129,021 132,122 -3,101
Branches® 7,516 8,954 -1,438
of which: - Italy 4,009 4,171 -162

- Other countries 3,507 4,783 -1,276

1. "Full time equivalent" data (FTE): number of employees counted for the rate of presence. Figures as at December 31, 2013 were restated following
the introduction of IFRS 10 e IFRS 11.

2. 2013 figure includes the branches of the Kog/Yapi Kredi group (Turkey).
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Profitability Ratios

YEAR

2014 2013 CHANGE
EPS’(€) 0.34 -2.47 2.82
Cost/income ratio 61.5% 61.1% 0.39bp
EVAZ (€ million) (2,734) (11,559) + 8,825
Return on assets® 0.28% -1.64% 1.92bp

1. Annualized figure. €35,466 thousand was deducted from 2014 net profit of €2,007,828 thousand due to disbursements charged to equity made in
connection with the contract of usufruct on treasury shares agreed under the ‘cashes’ transaction.

2. Economic Value Added, equal to the difference between NOPAT (net operating profit after tax) and the cost of capital.

3. Return on assets: calculated as the ratio of Net profit or loss to Total assets pursuant to art. 90 of CRD IV.

Risk Ratios
AS AT
12.31.2014 12.31.2013
Net non-performing loans to customers/Loans to customers 4.19% 3.74%
Net impaired loans to customers/Loans to customers 8.73% 8.22%
Own Funds and Capital Ratios
AS AT
12.31.2014 (*) 12.31.2013 (**)
Total own funds (€ million) 54,857 57,651
Total risk-weighted assets (€ million) 409,223 423,739
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 10.26% 9.60%
Total own funds/Total risk-weighted assets 13.41% 13.61%

(*) Transitional own funds and capital ratios (Basel 3).

(**) Amounts and ratios calculated in compliance with the supervisory regulations in force at the date (Basel 2.5); the Core Tier 1 Ratio
relating to December 31, 2013, compared with Common Equity Tier 1 ratio as of December 31, 2014, was calculated using an internal

model.

See § Capital and Value Management — Capital Ratios, for more details.

Ratings
SHORT-TERM MEDIUM AND STANDALONE
DEBT LONG-TERM OUTLOOK RATING
Fitch Ratings F2 BBB+ NEGATIVE bbb+
Moody's Investors Service P-2 Baa2 NEGATIVE D+
Standard & Poor's A-3 BBB- STABLE bbb-

Data as at December 18, 2014.
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Report on Operations

Condensed Accounts

Consolidated Balance Sheet (€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE
ASSETS 12.31.2014 12.31.2013 AMOUNT PERCENT
Cash and cash balances 8,051 10,520 - 2,469 - 23.5%
Financial assets held for trading 101,226 80,701 + 20,525 +25.4%
Loans and receivables with banks 68,730 63,310 + 5,420 + 8.6%
Loans and receivables with customers 470,569 483,684 - 13,115 -2.7%
Financial investments 138,503 125,839 + 12,664 +10.1%
Hedging instruments 11,988 12,390 - 402 -3.2%
Property, plant and equipment 10,277 10,818 - 541 -5.0%
Goodwill 3,562 3,533 + 28 + 0.8%
Other intangible assets 2,000 1,793 + 207 +11.5%
Tax assets 15,772 18,215 - 2,443 -13.4%
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale 3,600 3,928 - 329 -8.4%
Other assets 9,941 11,187 - 1,246 -11.1%
Total assets 844,217 825,919 + 18,298 +2.2%
(€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2014 12.31.2013 AMOUNT PERCENT
Deposits from banks 106,037 107,830 -1,793 -1.7%
Deposits from customers 410,412 393,113 + 17,299 +4.4%
Debt securities in issue 150,276 164,266 - 13,991 - 8.5%
Financial liabilities held for trading 77,135 63,799 + 13,335 + 20.9%
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 567 711 -144 - 20.2%
Hedging instruments 15,150 12,745 + 2,405 + 18.9%
Provisions for risks and charges 10,623 9,427 + 1,196 +12.7%
Tax liabilities 1,750 2,281 -531 - 23.3%
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for
sale 1,650 2,129 - 478 - 22.5%
Other liabilities 17,781 19,562 -1,781 -9.1%
Minorities 3,446 3,334 +112 + 3.4%
Group Shareholders' Equity: 49,390 46,722 + 2,668 +5.7%

- Capital and reserves 48,065 61,002 - 12,936 -21.2%

- AfS assets fair value reserve, Cash-flow hedging

reserve and Defined benefits plans reserve (683) (315) - 368 +117.0%

- Net profit (loss) 2,008 (13,965) + 15,973 n.s.
Total liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 844,217 825,919 + 18,298 +2.2%
Notes:

The comparative figures at December 31, 2013 have been restated:

- due to the introduction of the IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 accounting standards;

- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the Italian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had already
been authorised, from the item “Provisions for risks and charges” to the item “Other liabilities” under “Liabilities” in the Balance Sheet;

- due to the offsetting of the deferred tax assets, “Tax Assets” in the Balance Sheet — Assets, against the relevant deferred tax liabilities, “Tax
Liabilities” in the Balance Sheet — Liabilities;

- due to the change with one counterparty falling under a different sector, from the items "loans and receivables with customers/deposits from
customers" to the items "loans and receivables with banks/deposits from banks".
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Consolidated Income Statement (€ million)
YEAR CHANGE
2014 2013 €m PERCENT ADJUSTED"

Net interest 12,442 12,303 + 139 +1.1% +2.7%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 794 964 -171 -17.7% -13.3%
Net fees and commissions 7,572 7,361 +211 +2.9% + 3.5%
Net trading income 1,557 2,505 - 948 - 37.8% -38.7%
Net other expenses/income 149 203 -54 -26.7% - 38.2%
OPERATING INCOME 22,513 23,335 - 822 -3.5% -2.5%
Payroll costs (8,201) (8,375) + 174 -2.1% -1.5%
Other administrative expenses (5,575) (5,357) -219 +4.1% +4.6%
Recovery of expenses 834 716 +117 +16.4% + 15.5%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on
intangible
and tangible assets (896) (1,238) + 342 - 27.6% - 27.0%

Operating costs (13,838) (14,253) + 415 -2.9% -2.3%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 8,675 9,082 - 407 -4.5% -2.9%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees
and commitments (4,292) (13,481) +9,189 - 68.2% - 68.3%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 4,383 (4,399) + 8,782 n.s. n.s.
Provisions for risks and charges (358) (984) + 625 - 63.6% - 62.8%
Integration costs (20) (727) + 707 -97.2% -97.2%
Net income from investments 87 890 - 803 - 90.3% - 90.5%
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 4,091 (5,220) +9,311 n.s. n.s.
Income tax for the period (1,297) 1,716 -3,013 n.s. n.s.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 2,793 (3,504) + 6,298 n.s. n.s.
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets held for sale, after
tax (124) (639) +514 - 80.6% - 66.6%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 2,669 (4,143) +6,812 n.s. n.s.
Minorities (380) (382) +1 - 0.4% +9.0%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP BEFORE PPA 2,289 (4,524) + 6,814 n.s. n.s.
Purchase Price Allocation effect (281) (1,673) + 1,392 - 83.2% -83.2%
Goodwill impairment - (7,767) + 7,767 n.s. n.s.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP 2,008 (13,965) + 15,973 n.s. n.s.

Notes:

'1. Changes at constant foreign exchange rates and perimeter.

As from the first quarter of 2014, the financial results of fully consolidated industrial companies were stated in a single item (“Net other

expenses/income”) in order to better represent the purely banking activities in the individual Income Statement entries. The comparative period has

been restated accordingly.

It is further noted that the impact on the Income Statement of consolidated equity investments subsequent to the adoption of IFRS 10-11, where the
holding thereof stems from debt-to-equity transactions, was recorded under the item “Net profit (losses) on investments”, instead of “Dividends and
other income from equity investments”. This was done so that the representation of operating results would not be affected, and to render the
consolidated investments comparable for impairment on investments. The comparative period has been restated accordingly.

In addition to the effects referred to above, the comparative figures as at December 31, 2013 have been restated:

- due to the introduction of the IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 accounting standards;
- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the Italian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had already
been authorised from the item “Net other expenses/income” to the item “Provisions for risks and charges”.
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Report on Operations

Quarterly Figures

Consolidated Balance Sheet (€ million)
AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
ASSETS 12.31.2014  09.30.2014  06.30.2014  03.31.2014 12.31.2013  09.30.2013  06.30.2013  03.31.2013
Cash and cash balances 8,051 8,882 9,975 12,499 10,520 6,692 6,708 6,743
Financial assets held for trading 101,226 93,026 84,079 79,368 80,701 87,802 93,584 98,451
Loans and receivables with banks 68,730 83,284 72,308 74,128 63,310 73,630 68,742 80,017
Loans and receivables with
customers 470,569 470,356 474,798 483,782 483,684 504,376 510,041 514,956
Financial investments 138,503 136,042 135,773 129,451 125,839 118,276 117,213 111,586
Hedging instruments 11,988 14,435 13,845 12,586 12,390 15,184 15,946 17,947
Property, plant and equipment 10,277 10,283 10,509 10,690 10,818 11,016 11,235 11,301
Goodwill 3,562 3,565 3,536 3,528 3,533 11,308 11,313 11,406
Other intangible assets 2,000 1,882 1,854 1,797 1,793 3,717 3,762 3,811
Tax assets 15,772 16,174 16,887 17,867 18,215 15,476 15,418 15,704
Non-current assets and disposal
groups classified as held for sale 3,600 8,301 3,325 3,166 3,928 3,902 4,185 7,951
Other assets 9,941 9,563 9,789 10,994 11,187 11,522 10,056 11,032
Total assets 844,217 855,793 836,679 839,854 825,919 862,899 868,204 890,906
(€ million)

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2014  09.30.2014  06.30.2014  03.31.2014 12.31.2013  09.30.2013  06.30.2013  03.31.2013
Deposits from banks 106,037 116,977 109,863 118,328 107,830 124,874 126,557 118,527
Deposits from customers 410,412 399,695 401,490 397,090 393,113 382,134 385,118 386,590
Debt securities in issue 150,276 155,213 159,515 163,073 164,266 162,090 163,234 165,777
Financial liabilities held for trading 77,135 72,237 63,637 62,622 63,799 77,499 77,832 92,994
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value 567 627 649 638 711 700 684 759
Hedging instruments 15,150 16,444 15,018 13,521 12,745 15,042 16,142 20,062
Provisions for risks and charges 10,623 9,721 9,570 9,083 9,427 8,773 8,692 8,773
Tax liabilities 1,750 1,887 1,779 2,387 2,281 3,030 3,010 5,588
Liabilities included in disposal
groups classified as held for sale 1,650 6,885 1,401 1,447 2,129 2,102 2,228 5,964
Other liabilities 17,781 21,275 21,585 20,816 19,562 21,513 19,681 19,436
Minorities 3,446 3,475 3,234 3,391 3,334 3,963 3,831 4,186
Group Shareholders' Equity: 49,390 51,357 48,937 47,460 46,722 61,179 61,195 62,250

- Capital and reserves 48,065 49,139 47,640 46,595 61,002 60,874 61,259 62,412

- AfS assets fair value reserve,

Cash-flow hedging reserve and

Defined benefits plans reserve (683) 380 182 152 (315) (709) (874) (610)

- Net profit (loss) 2,008 1,837 1,116 712 (13,965) 1,014 810 449
Total liabilities and
Shareholders' Equity 844,217 855,793 836,679 839,854 825,919 862,899 868,204 890,906
Notes:

The comparative figures at December 31, 2013 have been restated:

- due to the introduction of the IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 accounting standards;

- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the Italian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had already
been authorised, from the item “Provisions for risks and charges” to the item “Other liabilities” under “Liabilities” in the Balance Sheet;

- due to the offsetting of the deferred tax assets, “Tax Assets” in the Balance Sheet — Assets, against the relevant deferred tax liabilities, “Tax
Liabilities” in the Balance Sheet — Liabilities;

- due to the change with one counterparty falling under a different sector, from the items "loans and receivables with customers/deposits from
customers" to the items "loans and receivables with banks/deposits from banks".
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Consolidated Income Statement (€ million)

2014 2013
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1L
Net interest 3,064 3,122 3,179 3,077 3,139 3,032 3,075 3,057
Dividends and other income from equity
investments 191 178 321 104 194 362 264 144
Net fees and commissions 1,882 1,853 1,947 1,890 1,853 1,794 1,822 1,892
Net trading income 340 386 359 472 593 372 902 638
Net other expenses/income 118 12 a7) 36 10 102 36 54
OPERATING INCOME 5,595 5,551 5,789 5,578 5,789 5,662 6,099 5,785
Payroll costs (2,082) (2,030) (2,002) (2,087) (2,045) (2,080) (2,107) (2,142)
Other administrative expenses (1,399) (1,358) (1,419) (1,399 (1,434) (1,281) (1,316) (1,325)
Recovery of expenses 215 202 226 191 212 165 193 146
Amortisation, depreciation and
impairment losses on intangible and
tangible assets (239) (220) (221) (216) (479) (251) (254) (255)
Operating costs (3,506) (3,406) (3,416) (3,510) (3,746) (3,448) (3,484) (3,576)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 2,089 2,145 2,373 2,068 2,043 2,215 2,615 2,209
Net write-downs on loans and
provisions for guarantees and
commitments (1,697) (754) (1,003) (838) (9,295) (1,482) (1,532) (1,173)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 392 1,392 1,369 1,230 (7,252) 733 1,083 1,037
Provisions for risks and charges (57) (145) (143) (14) (541) (170) (175) (99)
Integration costs 29 (5) (40) 4 (699) (16) 9) 3)
Net income from investments (4) 43 (16) 62 910 (22) (29) 20
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 360 1,285 1,171 1,275 (7,582) 526 881 955
Income tax for the period 43 (350) (582) (408) 2,471 (128) (279) (348)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 403 936 588 867 (5,111) 398 602 607
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets
held for sale, after tax (69) (33) (26) 3 (632) 9 (40) 24
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 334 902 563 870 (5,743) 407 563 631
Minorities (96) (112) (89) (83) (90) (105) (102) (84)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE GROUP BEFORE PPA 238 790 474 787 (5,833) 302 461 547
Purchase Price Allocation effect (68) (69) (71) (74) (1,378) (98) (99) (98)
Goodwill impairment - - - - (7,767) - - -
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE GROUP 170 722 403 712 (14,979) 204 361 449

Notes:

As from the first quarter of 2014, the financial results of fully consolidated industrial companies were stated in a single item (“Net other
expenses/income”) in order to better represent the purely banking activities in the individual Income Statement entries. The comparative period has
been restated accordingly.

It is further noted that the impact on the Income Statement of consolidated equity investments subsequent to the adoption of IFRS 10-11, where the
holding thereof stems from debt-to-equity transactions, was recorded under the item “Net profit (losses) on investments”, instead of “Dividends and
other income from equity investments”. This was done so that the representation of operating results would not be affected, and to render the
consolidated investments comparable for impairment on investments. The comparative period has been restated accordingly.

In addition to the effects referred to above, the comparative figures as at 31 December 2013 have been restated:

- due to the introduction of the IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 accounting standards;

- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the Italian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had already
been authorised from the item “Net other expenses/income” to the item “Provisions for risks and charges”.
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Comparison of Q4 2014 / Q4 2013

Consolidated Income Statement (€ million)
Q4 CHANGE
2014 2013 €m PERCENT ADJUSTED"

Net interest 3,064 3,139 -75 - 2.4% +0.1%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 191 194 -3 - 1.6% - 3.5%
Net fees and commissions 1,882 1,853 +29 + 1.6% +1.8%
Net trading income 340 593 - 253 -42.7% -47.1%
Net other expenses/income 118 10 + 108 n.s. n.s.
OPERATING INCOME 5,595 5,789 -194 - 3.4% -2.7%
Payroll costs (2,082) (2,045) -37 +1.8% +2.3%
Other administrative expenses (1,399) (1,434) + 34 -2.4% -1.8%
Recovery of expenses 215 212 +3 +1.5% +0.9%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on
intangible and tangible assets (239) (479) + 239 - 50.0% - 49.3%

Operating costs (3,506) (3,746) + 240 - 6.4% -5.7%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 2,089 2,043 + 46 +2.2% +2.7%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (1,697) (9,295) + 7,598 -81.7% -81.9%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 392 (7,252) +7,644 n.s. n.s.
Provisions for risks and charges (57) (541) + 484 - 89.5% - 89.4%
Integration costs 29 (699) + 728 n.s. n.s.
Net income from investments 4 910 -913 n.s. n.s.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 360 (7,582) + 7,942 n.s. n.s.
Income tax for the period 43 2,471 -2,428 - 98.3% - 98.8%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 403 (5,111) + 5,514 n.s. n.s.
Profit (Loss) from non-current assets held for sale,
after tax (69) (632) + 563 -89.1% - 78.5%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 334 (5,743) + 6,077 n.s. n.s.
Minorities (96) (90) -6 +6.7% +6.1%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP BEFORE PPA 238 (5,833) + 6,071 n.s. n.s.
Purchase Price Allocation effect (68) (1,378) +1,311 -95.1% -95.1%
Goodwill impairment - (7,767) 7,767 n.s. n.s.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP 170 (14,979) + 15,149 n.s. n.s.
Notes:

'1. Changes at constant foreign exchange rates and perimeter.

As from the first quarter of 2014, the financial results of fully consolidated industrial companies were stated in a single item (“Net other
expenses/income”) in order to better represent the purely banking activities in the individual Income Statement entries. The comparative period has
been restated accordingly.

It is further noted that the impact on the Income Statement of consolidated equity investments subsequent to the adoption of IFRS 10-11, where the
holding thereof stems from debt-to-equity transactions, was recorded under the item “Net profit (losses) on investments”, instead of “Dividends and
other income from equity investments”. This was done so that the representation of operating results would not be affected, and to render the
consolidated investments comparable for impairment on investments. The comparative period has been restated accordingly.

In addition to the effects referred to above, the comparative figures as at December 31, 2013 have been restated:

- due to the introduction of the IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 accounting standards;

- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the Italian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had already
been authorised from the item “Net other expenses/income” to the item “Provisions for risks and charges”.
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Segment Reporting (Summary)

KEY FIGURES by BUSINESS SEGMENT (€ million)
COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL GROUP
BANKING BANKING BANKING POLAND  CEEDIVISION cB MAN&?EJ o GAfraigNG CORPORATE ~ NON-CORE Cg;fg;fg:ff
ITALY GERMANY AUSTRIA CENTER?

Income Statement
OPERATING INCOME
2014 8,327 2,640 1,607 1,760 3,909 3,711 791 451 (1,014) 330] 22,513
2013 7,836 2,874 1,619 1,793 4,478 4,284 731 429 (1,400) 691 23,335
OPERATING COSTS
2014 (4,020) (2,102) (1,460) (823) (1,623) (1,710) (496) (212) (800) (591) (13,838)
2013 (4,185) (2,123) (1,451) (825) (1,722) (1,707) (528) (192) (916) (604) (14,253)
OPERATING PROFIT
2014 4,307 538 147 937 2,287 2,001 295 239 (1,814) (261) 8,675
2013 3,650 751 168 968 2,757 2,577 203 237 (2,316) 87 9,082
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
2014 3,158 666 14 803 1,474 1,802 286 230 (1,789) (2,553) 4,091
2013 2,040 424 (330) 817 1,533 1,448 192 216 (1,854) (9,707) (5,220)
Balance Sheet
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
as at December 31, 2014 130,005 78,416 47,379 26,896 57,009 89,191 0 696 (6,440) 47,417 470,569
as at December 31, 2013 130,931 79,057 48,392 25,033 57,163 93,875 0 641 (4,781) 53,373 483,684
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE
as at December 31, 2014 145,215 102,236 64,186 30,218 51,469 87,472 - 14,254 63,304 2,334 560,688
as at December 31, 2013 149,802 108,343 59,134 29,538 49,473 76,536 - 13,246 68,829 2,478 557,379
TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS
as at December 31, 2014 76,472 33,510 24,047 25,850 89,173 67,462 1,693 1,742 50,194 39,080 409,223
as at December 31, 2013 77,629 33,823 25,142 25,089 81,668 74,528 2,046 1,915 31,515 31,395 384,750
EVA
2014 1,216 187 a71) 190 58 350 139 114 (2,655) (2,162) (2,734)
2013 617 101 (420) 197 17 38 123 105 (5,453) (6,885) (11,559)
Cost/income ratio
2014 48.3% 79.6% 90.9% 46.8% 41.5% 46.1% 62.7% 47.0% -79.0% 179.0% 61.5%
2013 53.4% 73.9% 89.6% 46.0% 38.4% 39.9% 72.2% 44.7% -65.5% 87.4% 61.1%
Employees
as at December 31, 2014 37,098 13,419 6,701 18,098 29,038 4,020 2,021 974 15,803 1,849 129,021
as at December 31, 2013 37,541 13,748 6,891 18,152 30,848 4,300 1,995 934 15,739 1,974 132,122
Notes

Figures were recasted, where necessary, on alike-to-like basis to consider changes in scope of business segment and methodological rules.

1 Global Banking Services, Corporate Centre Global Functions, and

not

individual segments;
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How the UniCredit Group has grown

UniCredit S.p.A. (formerly Unicredito Italiano S.p.A.) and the Group of companies  This expansion was characterized, particularly:

with the same name which the latter heads up came about as a result of the . by the merger with the HVB Group, achieved by means of a
merger, in October 1998, between the Credito Italiano S.p.A., founded in 1870 public exchange offer furthered by UniCredit on August 26, 2005
under the name of Banca di Genova, and Unicredito S.p.A., the latter the holding S0 as to take over control of HVB and the companies it headed
company which held the controlling equity investments in Banca CRT, CRV and up. Following this offer, finalized during 2005, UniCredit in fact
Cassamarca. As a result of this merger, the Credito Italiano Group and the acquired a holding of 93.93% in HVB's share capital (UniCredit
Unicredito Group pooled the strength of their respective products and the has now 100% of the shares, after the acquisition of minority
complementary nature of the geographic coverage for the purpose of more interest concluded on September 15, 2008 — so-called
effectively competing on the banking and financial services markets both in Italy “squeeze-out” — in accordance with German regulations);

and in Europe, thereby creating the UniCredit group. Since its creation, the Group . by the merger with the Capitalia Group, achieved by means of
has continued to expand in Italy and in Eastern European countries, both via buy- merger through incorporation of Capitalia within UniCredit, which
outs and via systematic growth, also consolidating its roles in sectors of important became effective as from October 1, 2007.

significance outside Europe, such as the asset management sector in the USA.

Group Figures 2004 - 2014

ITALIAN
IAS/IFRS GAAP
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2004
Income Statement
(€ million)
Operating income 22,513 23,973 25,049 25,200 26,347 27,572 26,866 25,893 23,464 11,024 10,203 10,375
Operating costs (13,838) | (14,801) (14,979) (15,460) (15,483)  (15,324) (16,692) (14,081)  (13,258) (6,045) (5,701) (5,941)
Operating profit
(loss) 8,675 9,172 10,070 9,740 10,864 12,248 10,174 11,812 10,206 4,979 4,502 4,434
Profit (loss) before
income tax 4,091 (4,888) 317 2,060 2,517 3,300 5,458 9,355 8,210 4,068 3,238 2,988
Net profit (loss) for
the period 2,669 (3,920) 1,687 644 1,876 2,291 4,831 6,678 6,128 2,731 2,239 2,300
Net profit (loss)
attributable to the
Group 2,008 | (13,965) 865 (9,206) 1,323 1,702 4,012 5,961 5,448 2,470 2,069 2,131
Balance Sheet
(€ million)
Total assets 844,217 | 845838 926,827 926,769 929,488 928,760 1,045,612 1,021,758 823,284 787,284 260,909 265,855
Loans and
receivables with
customers 470,569 | 503,142 547,144 559,553 555653 564,986 612,480 574,206 441,320 425,277 139,723 144,438
of which: non-
performing loans 19,701 18,058 19,360 18,118 16,344 12,692 10,464 9,932 6,812 6,861 2,621 2,621
Deposits from
customers and debt
securities in issue 560,688 | 571,024 579,965 561,370 583,239 596,396 591,290 630,533 495,255 462,226 155,079 156,923
Shareholders’
Equity 49,390 46,841 62,784 51,479 64,224 59,689 54,999 57,724 38,468 35,199 14,373 14,036
Profitability ratios
(%)
Operating profit
(loss)/Total assets 1.03 1.08 1.09 1.05 1.17 1.32 0.97 1.16 1.24 0.63 1.73 1.67
Cost/income ratio 61.5 61.7 59.8 61.4 58.8 55.6 62.1 54.4 56.5 54.8 55.9 57.3

Information in the table are "historical figures". They don't allow comparison because they are not recasted or adjusted following to new accounting principles or perimeter
changes.
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UniCredit Share

Share Information

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Share price (€) ©
- maximum 6.870 5.630 4.478 13.153 15.314 17.403 31.810 42.841 37.540 32.770 24.629
- minimum 5.105 3.238 2.286 4.222 9.820 4.037 8.403 28.484 30.968 22.592 21.303
- average 5.996 4.399 3.292 8.549 12.701 11.946 21.009 36.489 34.397 25.649 22.779
- end of period 5.335 5.380 3.706 4.228 10.196 14.730 9.737 31.687 37.049 32.457 23.602
Number of outstanding shares
(million)
- at period end* 5,866 5,792 5,789 1,930 19,297.6 16,779.3 13,368.1 13,278.4 10,351.3 10,303.6 6,249.7
- shares cum dividend 5,769 5,695 5,693 1,833 18,330.5 18,329.5 13,372.7 18,195.3 10,357.9 10,342.3 6,338.0

of which: savings shares 2.45 2.42 2.42 2.42 24.2 24.2 21.7 21.7 21.7 21.7 21.7
- averagel 5,837 5,791 5,473 1,930 19,101.8 16,637.8 13,204.6 11,071.6 10,345.2 6,730.3 6,303.6
Dividend
- total dividends (€ million) 697 570 512 (*+%) 550 550 (**) 3,431 2,486 2,276 1,282
- dividend per ordinary share 0.120 0.100 0.090 (***) 0.030 0.030 **) 0.260 0.240 0.220 0.205
- dividend per savings share 1.065 0.100 0.090 (%) 0.045 0.045 *) 0.275 0.255 0.235 0.220

1. The number of shares is net of Treasury shares and included 96.76 million of shares held under a contract of usufruct.

(*) Following extraordinary corporate operations, which involve the detachment of rights, stock splitting or grouping, demerger operations and distribution of extraordinary
dividends, the price of the shares can fluctuate so much that they are no longer comparable. Thus, the time series hereby published are adjusted accordingly to restore the
continuity of historical price series.

(**) 2008 dividend was paid with cash to savings shareholders (€0.025 per share, for a total amount of €0.5 million), and with newly issued shares (so called "scrip dividend").
(***) As per Bank of Italy’s paper dated March 2, 2012, in keeping with the decision of UniCredit S.p.A.’s Board of Directors and in line with the intention announced to the
Shareholders’ Meeting in 2012, UniCredit S.p.A. did not pay any dividends with respect to its 2011 financial results.

In 2011 the following operations were carried out:

. the €2.5 billion free capital increase, through the allocation to capital of an equivalent amount transferred from the “Issue-premium reserve”;

. the reverse stock split of ordinary and savings shares based on a ratio of 1 new ordinary or savings share for every 10 existing ordinary or savings shares;

. elimination of the per-share nominal value of UniCredit shares.

In the first quarter of 2012 the capital increase of €7.5 billion equal to a number of shares issued of 3,859,602,938 was fully subscribed for.

The Shareholders’ Meeting of May 13, 2014 approved a scrip dividend scheme under which the holders of ordinary shares and the holders of savings shares will be allocated
one new share for every sixty shares held and one new share for every eighty-four shares held, respectively. The new shares were allocated through a free share capital
increase, without prejudice to the shareholders’ right to opt for a cash payout (€0.10 for each ordinary and savings share) in lieu of the allocation of the new shares.

Figures relating to the 2014 dividend are shown according to the specific Board of Directors’ reports on the distribution to Shareholders.

Earnings Ratios

ITALIAN
IAS/IFRS GAAP
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2004
Shareholders' Equity
(€ million) 49,390 46,841 62,784 51,479 64,224 59,689 54,999 57,724 38,468 35,199 14,373 14,036
Group portion of net
profit (loss) (€ million) 2,008 | (13,965) 865 (9,206) 1,323 1,702 4,012 5,961 5,448 2,470 2,069 2,131
Net worth per share (€) 8.42 8.09 10.85 26.67 3.33 3.56 4.11 4.35 3.72 3.42 2.30 2.25
Price/Book value 0.63 0.67 0.34 0.16 3.06 4.14 2.37 7.28 9.97 9.50 10.26 10.51
Earnings per share’ (€) 0.34 -2.47 0.15 -5.12 0.06 0.10 0.30 0.53 0.53 0.37 0.33 0.34
Payout ratio (%) -4.1 59.2 41.6 32.3 *) 58.1 45.6 92.1 60.2
Dividend yield on
average price per
ordinary share (%) 2.27 2.73 1.55 1.58 *) 3.98 3.90 4.79 5.02

Information in the table are "historical figures" and they must be read with reference to each single period.

1. Annualized figures.

(*) 2008 dividend was paid with cash to savings shareholders (€0,025 per share, for a total amount of €0.5 million), and with newly issued shares (so called "scrip dividend").
The 2008 EPS figure published in the consolidated report as at December 31, 2008 was €0.30 and has now been amended to €0.26 due to the increase in the number of
shares following the capital increase (IAS 33 § 28). For the purposes of calculating 2009 EPS, net profit for the period of €1,702 million was changed to €1,571 million due to
disbursements made in connection with the foreseen use of treasury shares agreed under the ‘cashes’ transaction, and charged to equity. For the purposes of calculating
EPS, net profit for 2010 of €1,323 million was changed to €1,167 million; net losses for 2011 of €9,206 million was changed to €9,378 million; net profit for 2012 of €865 million
was deducted of €46 million. The 2014 EPS calculation €35 million was deducted from 2014 net profit of €2,008 million.

Earnings per share
=
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Macroeconomic situation,
banking and financial markets

International situation

USA/Eurozone

In the last quarter of 2014, global economic activity
showed the first signs of a gradual acceleration, thanks to
the continuation of extremely accommodative monetary
policies and the hesitant recovery of global trade. But
growth prospects between and within regions continued to
diverge significantly. In advanced economies, the
strengthening of domestic demand helped consolidate
expansion in the United States and the United Kingdom,
while the Eurozone and Japan seem to be struggling to
resume sustained growth. In emerging economies, on the
other hand, the recovery has been modest in Brazil, while
in China the weakening of investment has led to an
economic slowdown, and in Russia the collapse of oil
prices is probably behind a deterioration in the economic
and financial situation.

In the Eurozone, the recovery remains modest. In the
fourth quarter of 2014, GDP is expected to stand at 0.1%
on a quarterly basis. This moderate expansion should be
driven primarily by a recovery in domestic demand, albeit
at a level lower than that required to ensure a sustainable
recovery. External demand, however, has suffered from
the adverse impact of the Russian/Ukrainian crisis and the
weakness of world trade, linked to the slowdown in
emerging economies, with negative repercussions on
investment spending. However, the upturn in the outlook
aspect of the IFO business climate index for the
manufacturing sector, up from 98.2 in October to 100.2 in
December, confirms our forecast of a sharper recovery in
early 2015.

Within this framework of general weakness in aggregate
demand, inflation in the Eurozone decreased further (-
0.2% in December). The collapse of oil prices is the main
factor behind this disinflationary spiral, although core
inflation (which excludes the more volatile components
such as food and energy) is also still very low. In this
quarter, medium-term inflation expectations, as measured
by the five year-on-year inflation swap, have deteriorated
further, passing the threshold of 2% and almost touching
1.4%, despite the non-standard monetary policy measures
announced by the European Central Bank in September.

After the September rate cut by the ECB, there was a
second auction of targeted long-term refinancing
operations (TLTROs) in December, designed to facilitate
the granting of credit to businesses. The second
instalment, combined with the first auction in September,
led to a net liquidity provision of € 212 billion. Again in the
last quarter, the ECB indicated that it intended to expand
its budget by one trillion euros, thus creating expectations
of a programme of Quantative Easing and thereby
contributing to the further depreciation of the Euro against
the currencies of major trading partners, a trend in motion
since the previous summer.

In the United States, economic growth remained solid
even in the last quarter of 2014, standing at 2.5% QOQ.
Economic performance has certainly benefited from

increasing private consumption, despite signs of weakness
in terms of spending on physical capital. Inflation
measured on the Consumer Price Index remains
contained at around 2% and no marked acceleration is
expected in the coming months. In October, the Fed ended
its programme of buying long-term securities, thus
preparing the market for a future rise in interest rates,
which we expect will arrive in mid-2015. The biggest
uncertainty factor for the future growth prospects of the US
economy concerns the labour market. Although the
unemployment rate is back to pre-crisis levels, wage
pressures remain extremely contained, creating
uncertainty about the actual level of slack. Should the Fed
take the view that the economy has not yet reached full
employment, the rise in rates could be further delayed.

Banking and financial markets

2014 ended with visible improvements as regards the
trend in bank loans in the euro area as a whole, although
the growth rate remains negative in a context in which the
economic recovery is proceeding gradually. In more detail,
lending to the private sector in the euro area declined by
only 0.5%, on an annual basis, at December 2014
compared with -2.3% at December 2013.

In the three countries of reference for the Group, at the
end of 2014 the reduction in loans to businesses continued
in Italy, although at a more moderate rate of contraction
compared with the previous months — in a context of
continuing weakness of spending for investment — while
the drop in loans to households was limited (around -0.5%,
on an annual basis). In Germany and Austria, at the end of
2014 loans to businesses continued to show a moderate
expansion, while the recovery of loans to households was
further consolidated, above all home loans.

As regards the trend in funding of the system, at the end of
2014, in all three of the Group's countries of reference, a
further increase in the rate of expansion of bank deposits
was observed. This was driven above all by a sharp
acceleration of current account deposits.

In terms of the trend in banking interest rates, following the
moves to reduce official rates by the European Central
Bank in the second half of 2014, in all three of the Group's
countries a process of gradual reduction in interest rates
on both loans and bank deposits continued. In fact they
came down to even lower levels, with a slight drop in the
banking spread (difference between average rate on loans
and average rate on deposits).

The end of 2014 was characterised, finally, by a gradual
increase in volatility on the financial markets, which
affected the performance of the equity markets. The
performance of the German stock exchange and the Italian
stock exchange showed no visible advance compared with
the end of third quarter 2014, while the Austrian stock
market ended the fourth quarter with a slightly negative
contraction.
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CEE Countries

2014 marked a deeper divergence in economic
performance among CEE economies. External risks
stemming from geopolitical tensions and a soft patch in
eurozone’s economic activity were mitigated by stronger
domestic demand only in Central Europe, while the
Balkans, Turkey, Russia and Ukraine saw their economies
slow down or contract.

Central Europe continued to benefit from a robust rebound
in domestic demand, driven both by consumption and
investment. Real wage growth accelerated amid a fall in
inflation, while consumer lending picked up due to a slower
pace of deleveraging. Meanwhile, corporate profitability
reached its highest level since the financial crisis, boosting
investment. Robust EU fund inflows helped capital
formation. Hungary saw fixed investment growth in double
digits as the government increased infrastructure spending
before April’'s parliamentary elections.

Domestic demand received additional support in Central
Europe from dovish central banks amid a sharp fall in
consumer price inflation. While low inflation has been
driven by supply-side shocks (low food and energy prices
and a strong EUR in 2013, falling food and oil prices in
2014), their second round effects on core inflation have
been sizeable, requiring more easing. As a result, the
central banks of Hungary, Poland and Romania cut policy
rates by 0.9, 0.5 and 1.25pp respectively in 2014, while the
Czech National Bank extended its currency floor to 2016.
As a result, monetary conditions weakened further, with
lending rates and sovereign yields touching all-time lows.

The picture is different in the rest of the region. In Serbia
and Croatia, domestic demand contracted amid floods and
a fiscal adjustment that weighed on growth, but was not
sufficient to keep deficits and public debt in check. Public
debt rose above 70% of GDP in both countries and is
expected to exceed 80% of GDP by the end of 2015.
Serbia reached a precautionary agreement with the IMF
and committed to further reforms, but tightening
expenditure and increasing taxes will postpone economic
recovery. Croatia failed to find stimuli for domestic demand
amid a high degree of euroisation and structural rigidities
that affect investment. In order to comply with EDP
requirements, more reforms are on the cards.

In Turkey, an adjustment in domestic demand prompted by
the TRY selloff at the beginning of the year resulted in
sharp deceleration in loan growth by July. This led to a
gradual narrowing of the C/A deficit, but also to a
slowdown in growth. However, the adjustment was aborted
in August, when lending reaccelerated well above deposit
growth. The C/A deficit failed to re-widen due to lower oil
prices, but should start increasing again in 2015.

The recession deepened in Ukraine as the conflict in the
Donbas continued. All economic sectors suffered from
disruptions and tight financial conditions, with the central
bank forced to support both the government and the
banking sector amid a run on bank deposits and rising
NPLs. Money creation and UAH depreciation boosted
inflation. IMF and EU financial support helped service debt
in 2014, but more will be needed from here on. In addition,
a truce in the Donbas is required to stabilise the economy.

For the past years, Russia’s economy suffered a structural
slowdown that was only reinforced in 2014 by the conflict
in Ukraine and the ensuing rounds of sanctions imposed
by the US and the EU. Economic growth slowed below
1%yoy, but recession was averted due to a sharp
contraction in imports. At the same time, exports suffered
from trade sanctions and a sharp deterioration in terms of
trade due to falling commodity (and especially oil) prices.
Financial sanctions curtailed access to foreign financing
and increased the strains on the Russian financial sector,
culminating in December in the sharpest bout of RUB
depreciation since Russia defaulted on its debt in 1998.
The CBR tried to fight currency weakness by hiking its
policy rate aggressively. As a result, the Russian economy
is expected to fall in recession in 2015. An easing of
sanctions will be needed to restart growth.
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Main results and performance
for the period

Introduction

In 2014 the Group recorded a net profit equal to €2,008
million, compared to the loss of €13,965 million registered in
2013 and mainly due on the one hand to the goodwill
impairments and on the other hand to the increase of the
loans’ coverage level with the related increase of the
accruals on credits.

This result is in line with the 2013-18 Strategic Plan targets,
despite a macro-economic scenario less favorable than
assumed.

“Core” segment (that includes the strategic business
segments and in line with the risk strategies determined by
the Group) contributed to this result for about €3,749
million, which contrasts with the loss of €1,741 million in
“Non core” segment (that includes non-strategic segments
and/or those with a considered poor fit to the Group’s risk-
adjusted return framework, to be managed with the aim of
reducing the overall exposure). This loss is due to a
relevant amount of loans loss provisions on loans portfolio
that, even though decreasing, remains still high.

As regards the positive results of “core” segment, they have
been achieved thanks to the net interest income and fees
growth, which was accompanied by a relevant decrease of
the operating expenses and loan loss provisions.

Operating income

In 2014 Group operating income amounted to €22,513
million, decreasing by 3.5% over 2013 (down by 2.5% at
constant exchange rates) mainly due to trading result
shrinkage. In particular, net interest amounted to €12,442
million, up by 1.1% over last year, dividends (which include
companies accounted for using the equity method’s profit)
were equal to €794 million, down by 17.7% over last year,
net fees and commissions to €7,572 million, up by 2.9%
over last year, net trading income to €1,557 million, down
by 37.8% over last year. Finally net other
expenses/income totalized €149 million in comparison to
€203 million of last year.

Almost the whole operating income was attributable to the
“core” segment (€22,183 million), decreased by 1.1% at
constant exchange rates in comparison to the previous year
restated, mainly as an effect of a lower profit from the Yapi
Kredi subsidiary (posted to the dividends), that in 2013
benefited from the capital gain stemming out from the
insurance business disposal, and of lower profits from
repurchase of liabilities issued by the Group. Net of these
two effects, total revenues, at constant exchange rates,
would record a slight increase over the previous year
restated.

Analyzing in detail the operating income single components
of “core” segment, net interest was equal to €12,293
million, increasing by 3.4% over the previous year restated
(up by 4.9% at constant exchange rates).

Such a positive trend, as in previous quarters, is attributable
to the reduction of average cost of commercial funding,
which more than compensated the decrease of interests
income on lending side. Such a trend was supported by the
progressive reduction of credit spreads, initially on govies,
later continued in the corporate sector, in a stable interest
rates’ environment (average 3 months Euribor equal to
0.21% in 2014 compared with 0.22% of 2013).

Net interest increase was achieved regardless a still quite
unfavorable loans dynamic. In particular loans to
customers related to the “core” segment (equal to €423.2
billion as of December 31, 2014) were down by 1.7% over
the last year (up by 0.4% at constant exchange rates)
although compared to the previous quarter they continued
to show some stabilization signs, with the stock of
commercial loans to customers growing by 0.4% (up by
2.1% at constant exchange rates).

The evolution of commercial loans to customers volumes of
“core” segment still proved to be not uniform at
geographical level: compared to 2013 — even if with a
slower peace - the Western Europe decreasing trend
(down by 0.6%) carried on, in particular due to ltaly
(commercial loans down by 0.4%, as a consequence of a
weak credit demand) and Germany (down by 1.4%, mostly
attributable to Retail clients), on the other hand, the
countries of CEE Region confirmed their growth (up by
12.4% at constant exchange rates) driven by Russia (up by
48.3% at constant exchange rates, partially due to the loans
denominated in foreign currency), Romania (up by 7.2% at
constant exchange rates), Czech Republic (up by 5.0% at
constant exchange rates) and Poland (up by 10.5% at
constant exchange rates).

Direct funding from customers (deposits and securities)
of “core” segment (equal to €558.4 billion as of December
31, 2014), instead, was growing by 0.6% (up by 2.3% at
constant exchange rates) over December 2013 (the growth
would have been of 3.2% at constant exchange rates,
netting 2013 also from the company Dab Bank AG,
reclassified to the “liabilities included in disposal groups
classified as held for sale” in September 2014 and then sold
in December 2014). Such a trend was a result of the
commercial direct funding from customers (up by 1.5%),
while the institutional component decreased (down by
1.6%)

Focusing on commercial direct funding from customers,
Italy, due to higher diversification towards assets under
management products, showed a decrease over 2013
(down by 1.5%), whilst both Germany (up by 2.2%) and
Austria (up by 7.8%) recorded an increase. CEE Region
continued towards achieving an equilibrium between loans
and deposits, growing by 3.2% (up by 14.6% at constant
exchange rates) on yearly basis, driven by Poland (up by
4.7% at constant exchange rates), Russia (up by 50.6% at
constant exchange rates), Czech Republic (up by 7.4% at
constant exchange rates), Bulgaria (up by 25.0% at
constant exchange rates), Hungary (up by 12.6% at
constant exchange rates), Serbia (up by 32.0% at constant
exchange rates) and Bosnia (up by 12.1% at constant
exchange rates).
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As a consequence of the above outlined dynamics, at
December 2014, a commercial funding surplus “core”
(which excludes institutional component) of €11.2 billion
was recorded, compared to December 2013 amounting at
€5.0 billion.

“Core” segment’s dividends (which include the profits of
the companies accounted for using the equity method) in
2014 amounted to €794 million, decreasing by €170 million
compared to 2013 restated, mainly as a consequence of
€181 million capital gain generated by the sale of the
insurance business unit in Turkey (Yapi Sigorta), posted to
third quarter 2013.

With regard to net fees and commissions related to the
“core” segment, in 2014 they amounted to €7,355 million,
up by 4.3% (up by 4.9% at constant exchange rates) over
the previous year restated.

Growth was mainly attributable to fees from investment
services (up by 9.5% compared to 2013) and was driven
by assets under management’s products, thanks to
volumes’ growth (up by €29.2 billion over 2013). Financing
services fees also recorded a positive result (up by 1.8% in
comparison with 2013), while transactional services fees
decreased by 0.6% over 2013 restated.

Core” segment’s net trading, hedging and fair value
income in 2014 was equal to €1,570 million, decreasing
by 37.5% over 2013 (down by 38.8% at constant
exchange rate).

Also net of Group’s bonds buy-back, which generated a
gross capital gain equal to €254 million in 2013 and €49
million in 2014, a decrease of 32.7% was recorded, mainly
due to Commercial Banking Germany - that in 2013
benefitted from a particularly positive result of the treasury
activities - to CEE Region and CIB division.

Finally, “core” segment’s net other expenses/income in
2014 amounted to €173 million, down by €48 million over
2013 restated, mainly due to lower revenues generated by
the subsidiary Ocean Breeze Energy GmbH & Co.KG,
owner of the wind farm BARD Offshore 1 (for this matter
refer to “Exposures in the renewable energy sector” in Part
E — “Information on risks and related risk management
policies”).

Regarding “Non-core” segment, in 2014 it registered €330
million of operating income, decreasing by 52.2% over
last year restated. Such a dynamic was consistent with the
11.2% reduction of customers loans, coupled with a higher
weight of the portion of impaired loans, over which are not
accounted for revenues.

Operating income (€ million)
Year [
% CHANGE 2014 Q4 % CHANGE
2013 2014 ON Q32014
Gruppo o/ w Core Group o/wCore | Gruppo o/ w Core Group o/w Core Group o/w Core

Net interest 12,303 11,894 12,442 12,293 +1.1% +3.4% 3,064 3,053 -1.9% -0.9%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 964 964 794 794 -17.7% -17.7% 191 191 +7.3% +7.3%
Net fees and commissions 7,361 7,053 7,572 7,355 +2.9% +4.3% 1,882 1,831 +1.6% +1.5%
Net trading income 2,505 2,512 1,557 1,570 -37.8% - 37.5% 340 340 - 12.0% -12.3%
Net other expenses/income 203 221 149 173 - 26.6% -21.8% 118 115 ns. ns.
Operating income 23,335 22,644 22,513 22,183 -3.5% - 2.0% 5,595 5,530 +0.8% +1.0%
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Operating costs

Group’s Operating costs in 2014 were equal to €13,838
million, lower by 2.9% compared to 2013 (down by 2.3% at
constant exchange rates). In detail staff expenses were
equal to €8,201 million, decreasing by 2.1% over last year,
other administrative expenses were equal to €5,575
million, growing by 4.1% over last year, expense recovery
were equal to €834 million, growing by 16.4% over last
year. Finally, write-downs on tangible and intangible
assets were equal to €896 million, decreasing by 27.6%
over last year.

Such a positive achievement on operating costs was
driven by Group’s “core” segment, which registered
€13,247 million in 2014, lower by 2.9% over 2013 restated
(down by 2.4% at constant exchange rates), thanks to staff
expenses, decreasing by 2.1% compared with 2013
restated (down by 1.6% at constant exchange rates) and
to write-downs on tangible and intangible assets,
decreasing by 27.6% (down by 27.0% at constant
exchange rates).

Analyzing in more detail the single components, staff
expenses related to the “core” segment in 2014 were
€8,053 million, down by 2.1% over 2013 restated (down by
1.6% at constant exchange rates).

This positive achievement mainly benefited from the
workforce reduction over 2013 restated, measured in
terms of Full Time Equivalent (FTEs), by 2,975 units (of
which 1,313 FTEs reduced in Ukraine, in addition to the
outsourcing of technological infrastructure management
and “invoice management”), and from the release of some
exceeding accruals previously made.

The staff expenses’ trend shows some geographic
differentiations, with CEE Region growing by 3.3% at
constant exchange rates and the rest of the Group
significantly decreasing (down by 2.5%). At divisional level,
main savings were registered in Commercial Banking ltaly,
that continues the implementation of the rationalization
initiatives launched with the strategic plan. Also GBS and
Corporate Centre show a decrease.

Concerning “core” segment’s other administrative
expenses on the other hand, they amounted to €4,990
million in 2014, growing by 5.4% in comparison to 2013
restated (up by 6.0% at constant exchange rates). Good
part of the increase was driven by IT costs increase due,
on the one hand to higher recurrent and development
activities and the other hand to outsourcing services fees.
Part of these costs refers to expenses directly incurred by
the Group (mainly rents and operating costs for IT assets
still owned by the Group) that are later re-invoiced to the
outsourcer. The income from this re-invoicing is included in
the expenses recovery item, that in 2014 was €689
million, up by 26.5% over 2013 restated.

Finally, the write-downs on tangible and intangible
assets of “core” segment 2014 were €894 million, falling
by 27.6% (down by 27.0% at constant exchange rates).
This reduction benefitted from the revision of the
amortization period of some intangible assets’ categories,
from the intangible assets impairments and from the
Customer relationship write-off carried out in the last
quarter 2013, as well as from the assets disposal related to
the technological infrastructure management outsourcing .

Operating costs related to the “non-core” segment in
2014 were €591 million, decreasing by 2.2% over 2013
restated, mainly thanks to lower administrative expenses.

Operating costs (€ million)

Year % CHANGE

% CHANGE 2014
201 2014 o ON Q3 2014
Gruppo o/wCore | Group o/wCore | Gruppo o/wCore | Group o/wCore | Group of/w Core

Payroll costs (8,375) (8,228) (8,201) (8,053) -2.1% -2.1% (2,082) (2,047) +2.6% +2.7%
Other administrative expenses (5,357) (4,733) (5,575) (4,990) +4.1% +5.4% (1,399) (1,268) +3.0% +3.9%
Recovery of expenses 716 545 834 689 +16.4% +26.5% 215 174 +6.5% +2.7%
Write dow ns of tangible and intangible assets (1,238) (1,233) (896) (894) - 27.6% - 27.6% (239) (239) +9.0% +9.1%
Operating costs (14253)  (13649)| (13:838)  (13,247) -2.9% -2.9% (3,506) (3.379) +2.9% +3.6%

The decline of revenues, only partially offset by the costs
containment, led to €8,675 million Group gross operating
profit in 2014, declining by 4.5% over 2013 (down by
2.9% at constant exchange rates), reduced however to
0.7% drop when referring to the “core” perimeter (up by
0.7% at constant exchange rates).

However, it should be emphasized that net of positive
contribution stemming out from the repurchase public
offers of bonds issued by the Group, as well as net of the
capital gain from the sale of the insurance business unit in
Turkey (Yapi Sigorta), previously already mentioned, the
Group gross operating profit of 2014 would increase by
3.8% on yearly basis.

The cost income ratio of “core” segment was substantially
stable, from 60.3% of 2013 restated to 59.7% of 2014,
thanks to the operating costs containment.

Gross operating profit related to the “non-core” segment
in 2014 was instead -€261 million, against +€87 million
profit of 2013 restated. This decrease is related to lower
revenues, as an effect of the expected volumes reduction
(impacting both net interest income and fees), jointly with
the higher weigh of the impaired loans that do not
generate more interest.
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Net write-downs on loans and provisions
for guarantees and commitments

Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments of the Group in 2014 were
€4,292 million, significantly reduced compared to 2013
(down by 68.2%), also as a result of measures taken in the
fourth quarter of 2013 aimed to improve the coverage
ratio.

In 2014 Group gross impaired loans increased by €769
million (up by 0.9%) over 2013, with an incidence on total
loans equal to 16.34% from 15.76% at 2013 year end.
Coverage ratio (51.3%) confirmed close to the level
achieved in 2013 year end.

It should be noticed that the provisions for credit risk
benefitted from a change in valuation methodology of
doubtful loans operated by UniCredit S.p.A. This change,
resulted in third quarter 2014 in a release of credit
allowance for about 775 million (gross nominal value at 30
September 2014 of the specific portfolio affected by the
change of about €18.1 billion). As a result of the underlying
portfolio trend during fourth quarter 2014, the overall Profit
& Loss benefit has been reduced to €560 million,
highlighted also by the overall reduction of doubtful loans
coverage ratio in comparison to the same data of 2013.
The valuation methodology has been revised in order to
reflect a change in the underlying credit management
process, which is more focused now to recovering
activities in the stage before revocation of the credit line
and from which higher cash flows are expected. The
change in valuation methodology has been accounted as
change in accounting estimate, according to IAS 8.35.

With regard to the “core” segment, in 2014 net write-downs
on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments
amounted to €2,135 million, decreasing by 43.2% (down
by 42.3% at constant exchange rates) over 2013 restated.
The significant reduction in loan loss provisions was due to
the increase of the accruals on credits, booked in fourth
quarter 2013 in order to adjust loans’ coverage level and
also to the methodological change above mentioned,
which resulted in 2014 in a release of credit allowance.

Core segment’s cost of risk was 50 basis points in 2014,
improving compared to the previous year (equal to 84
basis points), showing however relevant differences on
geographical basis. Italy were the macro-economic
environment is still weak, registered a cost of risk of 64
basis points. CEE Division too recorded a cost of risk
higher than the average of “core” segment and equal to
118 basis points. On the contrary Germany (9 basis
points), Austria (19 basis points), Poland (51 basis points)
confirmed the high quality of their assets.

The “core” segment’s gross impaired loans on December
31, 2014 were growing by €1.8 billion compared to
December 31, 2013 restated (up by 6.9%). This resulted in
a growth of gross impaired loans on total loans ratio, from
5.78% in December 2013 to 6.27% in December 2014.
Gross non-performing loans stock was at €14.5 billion,
growing by €813 million over 2013 year end restated.

Regarding “Non-core” segment, instead, Net write-downs
on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments
were reduced to about a quarter from €9,720 million in
2013 restated to €2,157 million in 2014.

Also the “non-core” segment was affected by the increase
of the accruals on credits, booked in fourth quarter 2013,
and by the change in valuation methodology of doubtful
loans operated by UniCredit S.p.A. in 2014, that resulted in
a release of credit allowance. Nevertheless the cost of risk
remains high (425 basis points) due to the increased
incidence of the most deteriorated component of its
portfolio.

Indeed, even though “Non-core” segment’s impaired loans
as of December 31, 2014 were decreasing by 1.7% in
comparison to €57.9 billion as of 2013 year end restated,
the non-performing loans increased by 6.4% over 2013
year end restated. Coverage ratio as of December 31,
2014 was at 52.9% in comparison to 53.8% as of 2013
year end restated.
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Loans to customers — asset quality (€ million)
NON- TOTAL
PERFORMING DOUBTFUL RESTRUCTURED  PAST-DUE IMPAIRED PERFORMING ~ CUSTOMER
LOANS LOANS LOANS LOANS LOANS LOANS LOANS
As at 12.31.2014
Face value 52,143 23,301 6,324 2,591 84,359 431,982 516,341
as a percentage of total loans 10.10% 4.51% 1.22% 0.50% 16.34% 83.66%
Writedowns 32,442 8,102 2,119 604 43,267 2,505 45,772
as a percentage of face value 62.2% 34.8% 33.5% 23.3% 51.3% 0.6%
Carrying value 19,701 15,199 4,205 1,987 41,092 429,477 470,569
as a percentage of total loans 4.19% 3.23% 0.89% 0.42% 8.73% 91.27%
As at 12.31.2013 restated ®
Face value 49,059 24,935 6,150 3,446 83,590 446,866 530,456
as a percentage of total loans 9.25% 4.70% 1.16% 0.65% 15.76% 84.24%
Writedowns 30,947 9,911 2,216 770 43,844 2,928 46,772
as a percentage of face value 63.1% 39.7% 36.0% 22.3% 52.5% 0.7%
Carrying value 18,112 15,024 3,934 2,676 39,746 443,938 483,684
as a percentage of total loans 3.74% 3.11% 0.81% 0.55% 8.22% 91.78%
As at 12.31.2013 historical
Face value 47,592 25,051 6,153 3,564 82,360 466,927 549,287
as a percentage of total loans 8.66% 4.56% 1.12% 0.65% 14.99% 85.01%
Writedowns 29,534 9,982 2,217 812 42,545 3,600 46,145
as a percentage of face value 62.1% 39.8% 36.0% 22.8% 51.7% 0.8%
Carrying value 18,058 15,069 3,936 2,752 39,815 463,327 503,142
as a percentage of total loans 3.59% 2.99% 0.78% 0.55% 7.91% 92.09%

(1) In order to enable a uniform comparison, the figures have been restated to take into account the introduction of IFRS10 and IFRS11 and the ification from loans to to loans to banks due to the change in sector

of a counterparty.
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From net operating profit to profit before
tax

As a consequence of a gross operating profit decreasing
by €407 million and net write-downs on loans down by
€9,189 million over 2013, Group’s net operating profit
amounted to €4,383 million in 2014, compared to the loss
of €4,399 million of 2013.

The “core” segment contribution to net operating profit in
2014 was equal to €6,801 million, growing by 29.9%
compared to 2013 restated (up by 31.0% at constant
exchange rates), countered by a negative net operating
profit of €2,418 million generated by the “non core”
activities.

Group’s provisions for risk and charges were at -€358
million, of which -€326 million related to the “core”
segment, that includes -€107 million as an effect of the
new law on exchange rates and interest rates applied to
retail foreign currency loans in Hungary.

Integration costs were -€20 million and were mainly
related to the leasing commercial network restructuring,
with the agents channel closure.

Finally, net income from investments was €87 million,
mainly due to the sale of the German subsidiary Dab Bank
AG, the SIA shareholding transfers, as well as some real
estate disposals in Austria, partially balanced by the
impairment of some participations of the Group.

As an effect of the items above mentioned, in 2014 the
Group registered a profit before tax of €4,091 million,
compared to the loss of €5,220 million of 2013, of which
€6,644 million related to the “core” segment (up by 48.1%
in comparison to the €4,486 million of 2013 restated) and -
€2,553 million related to the “non-core” segment (in
comparison to the -€9,707 million of 2013 restated).

Profit before tax by business segment (€million)
0752/33:;0 opgg/S«TﬂSNG INet write-downs on opegﬂm G PROFIT BEFORE TAX
loans and provisions PROFIT
2013 2014
Commercial Banking ltaly 8,327 (4,020) (1,026) 3,281 2,040 3,158
Commercial Banking Germany 2,640 (2,102) (26) 511 424 666
Commercial Banking Austria 1,607 (1,460) (111) 36 (330) 14
Poland 1,760 (823) (134) 803 817 803
Central Eastern Europe 3,909 (1,623) (677) 1,610 1,533 1,474
Corporate & Investment Banking 3,711 (1,710) (135) 1,866 1,448 1,802
Asset Management 791 (496) - 295 192 286
Asset Gathering 451 (212) (©)] 236 216 230
Group Corporate Center (1,014) (800) (23) (1,837) (1,854) (1,789)
Non Core 330 (591) (2,157) (2,418) (9,707) (2,553)
Group Total 22,513 (13,838) (4,292) 4,383 (5,220) 4,091

UniCredit — 2014 Consolidated Reports and Accounts 45



Report on Operations

Group Results

Profit (loss) attributable to the Group

As a consequence of €4,091 million profit before tax, in
2014 Group’s income taxes were €1,297 million, from
which derives a 31.7% tax rate. To be noticed that in Italy
in first half 2014 taxes were affected by additional taxes on
Bank of Italy shareholding revaluation. Net of this factor,
Goup’s income taxes would have been €1,082 million with
a tax rate of 26.5%, thanks to the lower fiscal charge of
CEE Region and Austria, compared to the higher taxation
level of Italy and Germany.

The loss from discontinued operations net of taxes
was €124 million and mainly referred to economic result for
the period of the Ukrainian subsidiaries, partially offset by
the economic effects of the control acquisition of
Immobilien Holding group, that led to the revaluation of
non-controlling interests previously owned.

Profit for the period in 2014 was €2,669 million, with
contribution of “core” segment in amount of +€4,410
million, in comparison to the -€4,143 million loss of 2013.

Minorities were €380 million, mainly referred to Pekao
subsidiary.

Purchase price allocation was -€281 million, decreasing
in comparison to the -€1,673 million accounted in 2013.
The reduction over the last year derives from the complete
impairment of the Customer relationship carried out in
fourth quarter 2013, that reduced the amortization charge
of the period.

Consequently, in 2014, a net profit attributable to the
Group of €2,008 million was registered, compared to -
€13,965 million loss registered in 2013.

The “core” segment in 2014 achieved €3,749 million profit
attributable to the Group, in comparison to -€7,445
million loss of 2013 restated

“Non-core” segment registered €1,741 million net loss
attributable to the Group, in comparison to -€6,520
million loss registered in 2013 restated (-73.3%).

Profit (loss) attributable to the Group (€ million)
Year % CHANGE
2013 2014 % CHANGE 2014 Q4 ON Q3 2014
Gruppo o/ w Core Group o/w Core | Gruppo o/ w Core Group o/ w Core Group o/ w Core

Operating income 23,335 22,644 22,513 22,183 - 3.5% -2.0% 5,595 5,530 +0.8% +1.0%
Operating costs (14,253) (13,649) (13,838) (13,247) -2.9% -2.9% (3,506) (3,379) 2.9% 3.6%
Operating profit (loss) 9,082 8,995 8,675 8,936 -4.5% -0.7% 2,089 2,150 -2.6% -2.8%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans and provisions for guarantees and

commitments (13,481) (3,760) (4,292) (2,135) -68.2% -43.2% (1,697) (754) 125.2% 196.5%
Net operating profit (loss) (4,399) 5,234 4,383 6,801 -199.6% 29.9% 392 1,396 -71.8% -28.7%
Provisions for risks and charges (984) (927) (358) (326) -63.6% -64.8% (57) (39) -60.8% -73.0%
Integration costs (727) (719) (20) ) -97.2% -99.7% 29 28 ns. ns.
Net income from investment 890 898 87 171 -90.3% - 80.9% (4) 20 - 108.6% - 55.9%
Profit (loss) before tax (5,220) 4,486 4,091 6,644 -178.4% 48.1% 360 1,405 -72.0% -24.2%
Income tax for the period 1,716 (1,471) (1,297) (2,109)|  -175.6% 43.4% 43 (305) -112.2% -43.4%
Net profit (loss) of discontinued operations (639) (639) (124) (124) -80.6% -80.6% (69) (69) 105.8% 105.8%
Profit (loss) for the period (4,143) 2,377] 2,669 4,410 -164.4% 85.6% 334 1,031 -63.0% -19.6%
Minorities (382) (382) (380) (380) -0.4% -0.4% (96) (96) -13.9% -13.9%
Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group before PPA (4,525) 1,995 2,289 4,030 -150.6% 102.0% 238 935 -69.9% -20.1%
Purchase Price Allocation effects (1,673) (1,673) (281) (281) -83.2% -83.2% (68) (68) -1.6% -1.6%
Goodw ill impairment (7,767) (7,767) - - ns. ns. - ns. ns.
Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group (13,965) (7,445) 2,008 3,749 -114.4% -150.4% 170 868 -76.4% -21.3%!
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Capital and Value Management

Principles of value creation and
disciplined capital allocation

In order to create value for the shareholders, the Group’s
strategic guidelines are aimed at optimizing the composition
of its business portfolio. This goal is pursued through a
process of capital allocation to each business line in relation
to its specific risk profile and ability to generate sustainable
earnings measured as EVA, which is the main performance
indicator related to TSR (Total Shareholder Return). The
development of Group operations with a view to value
creation requires a process for allocating and managing
capital governed by different phases in the process of
planning and control, articulated as:

o  formulation of the proposed propensity for risk
and capitalization targets;

. analysis of the risks associated with the value
drivers and resulting allocation of capital to the
business lines and to the Business Units;

. assignment of performance targets in line with
risk;

e  analysis of the impact on the Group’s value and
of the creation of value for shareholders;

3 drafting and proposal of the financial plan and
dividend policy.

The process of capital allocation is based on a “dual track”
logic, considering both economic capital, measured through
the full evaluation of risks by risk management models, and
regulatory capital, quantified applying internal capitalization
targets to regulatory capital requirements.

Capital Ratios

The Group dynamically manages its capital base by
monitoring regulatory capital ratios, anticipating the
appropriate changes necessary to achieve its targets, and
optimizing the composition of its assets and equity.
Planning and monitoring refer, on the one hand, to the total
own funds (Common Equity Tier 1, Additional Tier 1 and
Tier 2 Capital) and, on the other hand, to the Risk-Weighted
Assets (RWAs). The Risk-Weighted Assets, for portfolios
managed using the Advanced model, not only depend on
the nominal value of the assets but also on the relevant
credit parameters. Besides volume dynamics, it is also
crucial to monitor and forecast the change in the loan
quality of the portfolio in view of the macroeconomic
scenario (the so-called pro-cyclical effect).

Own Funds and Capital Ratios (€ million)
AS AT

12.31.2014 (%) 12.31.2013 (**)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 41,998 40,683
Tier 1 Capital 45,499 42,737
Total own funds 54,857 57,651
Total RWA 409,223 423,739
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 10.26% 9.60%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 11.12% 10.09%
Total own funds Capital Ratio 13.41% 13.61%

(*) Transitional own funds and capital ratios (Basel 3).

(**) Amounts and ratios calculated in compliance with the supervisory regulations in force at the date
(Basel 2.5), i.e. Regulatory Capital and Tier 1 Capital; the Core Tier 1 Capital and Core Tier 1 Ratio
relating to December 31, 2013, compared with Common Equity Tier 1 and with the related capital ratio
as at December 31, 2014, respectively, were calculated using an internal model.

The economic and financial crisis, which began in 2007,
has raised an intense debate on the need to promote a
stronger and more resilient financial system. Therefore,
over the last years, global regulators introduced a series of
new regulatory requirements that have contributed greatly
to re-shape the financial markets landscape. In particular, in
December 2010, the Basel Committee for Banking
Supervision (BCBS) published a series of changes relative
to the requirements for banking institutions on capital and
liquidity, also known as “Basel 3". The regulatory changes
introduced by the Basel 3 framework define more stringent
rules for capital requirements and introduce for the first time
liquidity and leverage limits. According to the Basel 3
framework, the new rules are introduced gradually in order
to allow the banking system to comply with the new
requirements and contain the impact on the real economy.
In Europe, the Basel 3 framework has been translated into
law by means of two separate legislative instruments
applied from January, 1 2014: the Directive 213/36/EU and
the Regulation n. 575/2013. Moreover, in December 2013
the Bank of Italy published the “Circolare 285" which
updated and adjusted to the new international regulation
framework the rules on Italian banks and banking groups.
Starting from January 1, 2014, Italian banks and banking
groups are required to comply with a minimum CET1
Capital ratio of 4.5%, Tier 1 Capital ratio of 5.5% (6%
starting from 2015) and Total Capital Ratio of 8%. These
minimum ratios are complemented on the following capital
buffers to be meet with CET1 Capital: Capital Conservation
set at 2.5% from January 1, 2014 and, from 2016,
Countercyclical in the periods of excessive credit growth
and Systemic for Global Systemically Important Institutions
(G-SlI) or Other Systemically Important Institutions (O-Sll).
Failure to comply with such combined buffer requirements
triggers restrictions on distributions and the need to adopt a
capital conservation plan. As part of the transition
arrangements, regulatory capital recognition of outstanding
non-CET1 capital instruments that no longer meet the
minimum criteria will be gradually phased out.

This note is provided at the specific request of Consob
pursuant to Art. 114, paragraph 5, of Italian Legislative
Decree 58/98.
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In December 2014, the transitional CET1 ratio stood at
10.41% and Total Capital ratio transitional stood at
13.55%"

The ECB, within the framework of the joint decision on the
capital adequacy of the UniCredit Group, has defined the
following capital requirements: 9.5% of the CET1 ratio and
13% of the total capital ratio, both calculated in accordance
with the transitional requirements. In December 2014, the
Group sat comfortably above the defined thresholds and, in
line with the objectives of the strategic plan, foresees
staying at current levels also in the coming years, with the
possibility of further strengthening its capital position.

Note on accounting effects on the
guantitative results of the ECB
Comprehensive Assessment

This disclosure is provided upon specific request of
Consob, pursuant to art. 114, paragraph 5, of Legislative
Decree 58/98.

On October 26, the European Central Bank, the European
Banking Authority and Bank of Italy provided the final
outcome of the Comprehensive Assessment conducted in
preparation of the adoption of the Single Supervisory
Mechanism (in force starting from November 2014), which
entailed the analysis of the current and future conditions of
130 banking groups in the Eurozone.

The Comprehensive Assessment entailed:

. an Asset Quality Review (AQR) at the reporting
date of December 31, 2013, which concerned
loan portfolios and financial assets of high risk;

. the simulation of a hypothetical “Stress Test”
aimed at assessing the ability of banks to
withstand extreme and particularly unfavorable
conditions.

The overall results of the assessment confirmed that the
UniCredit Group far exceeds the requirements set in the
Comprehensive Assessment.

The assessment lasted nearly a year and involved, with
reference to the Asset Quality Review process (AQR), the
main Group legal entities in Italy, Germany, Austria,
Croatia, Romania and Bulgaria, while the Stress Test was
referred to the entire Group.

Regarding the accounting implications of the quantitative
evidences arisen from the Comprehensive Assessment, we
highlight the following:

. the sample analysis on the credit exposures (the
Credit File Review), conducted by the ECB
highlighted at Consolidated level the need of
potential net additional provisions amounting at
about €440 million. This value (inferable from the
detailed data received by ECB) takes into
consideration the overall netting effect of
additional provisions and releases of existing
provisions related to all the credit files subject to
the CFR and, consequently, it differs from the

! Assuming 2014 scrip dividend of 12€cent per ordinary share with
75% acceptance rate of shares. Assuming 2014 full cash dividend,
CET 1 ratio transitional at 10.26% and Total Capital ratio transitional
at 13.41%.

value published by ECB (equal to about €482
million) that reflected an offsetting of additional
provisions and release of existing provisions only
at portfolio level and not across selected
portfolios.

With regard to the exposures related to the
Unicredit Bank AG and its subsidiaries, for which
the CFR highlighted a potential release of existing
provisions for about €3 million, UCG posted in the
2014 Financial Statement an overall amount of ca
€134 million. also considering changes in the
borrowers' conditions since the AQR reference
date, including the closure without losses of some
positions.

With regards to the exposures related to the other
Legal Entities for which the CFR indicated the
need of potential additional provisions (about
€442 million), UCG posted in the 2014 Financial
Statement an overall amount (about €482 million).

It should be noted that at single debtor level the
changes in provision recognized during 2014 may
differ from what implied in the ECB request given
that the credit evaluation (made according to the
Group’s relevant credit policies) embedded in the
2014 Financial Statements takes into account the
changes occurred between December 2013
(reference date for the CFR exercise) and
December 2014 in the borrowers conditions and
in the set of available information.

With regard to the statistical projections of the
CFR outputs (for which the theoretical increase of
provisions resulting from the AQR was about
€111 million at consolidated level), it is necessary
to highlight that such projections they cannot, by
their very nature, be directly interpreted as
precise assessments of the need for additional
accounting provisions. Moreover it is important to
mention that the impairment triggers used during
the CFR are largely included in the list of
events/indicators currently monitored during the
life cycle of the credit transactions and in
assessing the related default classification.

Additional collective provisions need of about
€380 million at consolidated level, were
calculated for AQR purposes — through the
‘Challenger Model’ — applying risk parameters
that were defined by the ECB using limited time
observation period (i.e. one year) and, in Bank’s
view, do not completely capture, differently from
the internally estimated risk parameters, the real
riskiness of the portfolio. Consequently, UCG has
not changed the approach in use for collective
provisioning that has been applied in continuity
also for 2014 Financial Statement.

The analysis of the Level 3 asset evaluation
highlighted, at consolidated level, differences for
about €54 million substantially related to an
investment in an associate coming from impaired
credit restructuring. Those differences have been
reflected in the 2014 Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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In addition to the findings listed above, the final outcome of
the Comprehensive Assessment included also other
gualitative issues. The Group is addressing in 2015 such
qualitative issues, within the on-going process of regular
enhancement of policies, procedures and accounting
practices, including improvements in the following areas:
. definitions of Fair Value Hierarchy levels and
documentation of Fair value adjustments;
. scope and frequency of the existing Group
Independent Price Verification (IPV) process;
. measurement of losses arising from contingent
liabilities;
. definition of the criteria for independent real
estate appraisals.

With regard to the abovementioned qualitative remarks, it is
worth remarking that they did not result in effects in 2014
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Shareholders’ Equity attributable to
the Group

The Shareholders’ Equity of the Group, including the
profit of the period (€2.008 million), amounted to €49,390
million at December 31, 2014, compared to €46,722 million
at December 31, 2013.

The statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity is
included in the Consolidated Accounts.

The following table shows the main changes that occurred

in 2014.

Shareholders' Equity attributable to the Group (€ million)
Shareholders' Equity as at December 31, 2013 (*) 46,722
Capital increase (net of capitalized costs)

Equity instruments 1,888
Disbursements related to Cashes transaction ("canoni di

usufrutto") (35)
Dividend payment (**) (176)
Forex translation reserve (***) (1,588)
Change in afs/cash-flow hedge reserve 1,099
Others (****) (528)
Net profit (loss) for the period 2,008
Shareholders' Equity as at December 31, 2014 49,390

(*) Please note that on January 1, 2014 the new IFRS 10 and

IFRS 11, effective from January 1, 2013, were introduced.

The adoption of these standards resulted in a negative impact
(restated) on the Group’s Shareholders’ Equity of €119 million as at
December 31, 2013.

(**) The dividends paid, amounting to €176 million, refer to the cash
dividends, while the dividends declared totaled €570 million. For
further details see Part B - Liabilities, Section 15 of the Notes to the
Accounts.

(***) Principally arising from the consolidation of the Russian and
Ukrainian subsidiaries.

(****) Other changes mainly relate to the positive effects of €626
million from the sale of 34.5% of FinecoBank S.p.A., of which
UniCredit is still the controlling shareholder, to the decrease in
reserves relating to actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit plans of
€1.468 million after tax, resulting from the reduction in the discount
rate, and to the increase of €269 million in the revaluation reserve
for companies accounted for using the equity method.

Reconciliation of the Parent Company’s
Accounts to the Consolidated Accounts

The following table reconciles the Parent Company’s
Shareholders’ Equity and Net profit to the corresponding
consolidated figures.

Reconciliation of Parent Company to Consolidated

Accounts (€ million)
SHAREHOLDERS' of which:
EQUITY NET PROFIT

Balance as at December 31, 2014 as per

UniCredit S.p.A. Accounts 48,172 80

Surplus over carrying values: 2,282 3,766
- subsidiaries (consolidated) 1,708 3,310
- associates accounted for at net equity 574 457

Dividends received in the period by the

Holding Company - (1,278)

Other reclassification on consolidation (1,065) (561)

Balance as at December 31, 2014

attributable to the Group 49,390 2,008
Minorities 3,446 380
Balance as at December 31, 2014

(minorities included) 52,836 2,388
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Commercial Banking Italy

Commercial Banking Italy is composed by UniCredit S.p.A. commercial network (excluding Large Corporate and
Multinational clients, supported by Corporate and Investment Banking division) and the Leasing and Factoring product
factories. In relation to individual clients (Households and clients of specialized network Private Banking), Commercial
Banking’s goal is to offer a full range of investments and credit needs, relying on almost 4,000 branches and
multichannel services provided by new technologies. In relation to corporate customers, Commercial Banking, with
about 1.100 Managers divided in 196 Corporate branches, operates trying to guarantee both the support to the
economic and entrepreneurial system and the profitability and quality of its portfolio.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)
Year
% 2014 % CHANGE
- ‘ 2013 2014 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014
Commercial Banking Italy

Operating income 7,836 8,327 +6.3% 2,043 +0.9%
Operating costs (4,185) (4,020) -3.9% (1,028) +5.8%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans (1,316) (1,026) -22.0% (322) +149.1%
Net operating profit 2,335 3,281 +40.5% 692 -25.0%
Profit before tax 2,040 3,158 +54.8% 673 -24.0%
Loans to customers (eop) 130,931 130,005 -0.7% 130,005 -0.1%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue - eop) 149,802 145,215 -3.1% 145,215 +2.0%
Total RWA Eop 77,629 76,472, -1.5% 76,472 +0.1%
EVA (€ million) 617 1,216 +97.1% 217 -39.5%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 7,090 7,209 +1.7% 7,371 -0.9%
RARORAC +8.70% +16.87%) ns. +16.87% -175bp
Cost/Income +53.4% +48.3% -513bp +50.3% 234bp
Cost of Risk 0.98% 0.78% -20bp 0.99% 59bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 37,541 37,098 -1.2% 37,098 +0.0%

Commercial Banking Germany
Commercial Banking Germany provides all German customers — except CIB clients — with a complete range of banking
products and services. With its strong funding base it is an important liquidity provider.
Commercial Banking Germany holds large market shares and a strategic market position in retail banking, in Private
Banking and especially in business with local corporate customers (including factoring and leasing). The Division also
includes the local Corporate Center, which performs tasks as sub-holding towards other Subgroup legal entities.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)

Year % 2014 % CHANGE

CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014

Commercial Banking Germany 2013 2014

Operating income 2,874 2,640 -8.1% 637 -0.1%
Operating costs (2,123) (2,102) -1.0% (537) +0.7%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans 49 (26) -153.8% (25) -238.2%
Net operating profit 800 511 -36.0% 75 -38.3%
Profit before tax 424 666 +57.2% 236 +120.1%
Loans to customers (eop) 79,057 78,416/ -0.8% 78,416 -0.4%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue - eop) 108,343 102,236 -5.6% 102,236 +0.2%
Total RWA Eop 33,823 33,510 -0.9% 33,510 -0.3%
EVA (€ million) 101 187 +84.5% 132 ns.
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 3,105 2,842 -8.5% 2,792 -0.4%
RARORAC +3.26% +6.57% 331bp +6.57% 403bp
Cost/Income +73.9% +79.6% 575bp +84.3% 66bp
Cost of Risk 0.06% 0.03% 9bp 0.13% 22bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 13,748 13,419 -2.4% 13,419 -1.2%
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Commercial Banking Austria

Commercial Banking Austria provides all Austrian customers — except CIB clients —with a complete range of banking
products and services. With its strong funding base it is an important liquidity provider.
Commercial Banking Austria holds large market shares and a strategic market position in retail banking, in Private
Banking and especially in business with local corporate customers (including factoring and leasing). The Division also
includes the local Corporate Center, which performs tasks in connection with Bank Austria’s sub-holding company

function.
Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)
Year % 2014 % CHANGE
CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014
Commercial Banking Austria 2013 2014
Operating income 1,619 1,607 -0.7% 407 +8.8%
Operating costs (1,451) (1,460) +0.6% (378) +8.0%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans (193) (111) -42.7% (41) +144.0%
Net operating profit (25) 36 -244.2% (12) -270.8%
Profit before tax (330) 14 -104.2% (40) ns.
Loans to customers (eop) 48,392 47,379 -2.1% 47,379 -0.1%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue - eop) 59,134 64,186/ +8.5% 64,186 +0.9%
Total RWA Eop 25,142 24,047, -4.4% 24,047 -0.1%
EVA (€ million) (420) (171) -59.2% (13) -83.4%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 2,227 2,213 -0.6% 1,766 -27.2%
RARORAC -18.84%) -7.74% ns. -7.74% 119bp
Cost/Income +89.6% +90.9% 124bp +92.9% -69bp
Cost of Risk 0.39% 0.23% -16bp 0.35% 21bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 6,891 6,701 -2.8% 6,701 -0.8%

Poland

Bank Pekao S.A. is one of the biggest banks in Poland providing a full range of banking services to individual and
institutional clients. Bank Pekao has a nationwide network of 1,001 branches, a strong presence in all the major cities
and Poland’s biggest ATM network (together with Euronet) consisting of almost 6,100 ATM'’s (of which 1,847 ATMs
owned by the Bank), enabling the Bank’s customers to have fully flexible and easy access to banking services all over

the country.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)

Year % 2014 % CHANGE

CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014

POLAND 2013 2014

Operating income 1,793 1,760 -1.8% 437 -2.4%
Operating costs (825) (823) -0.2% (200) -3.9%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans (159) (134) -15.8% (32) -1.9%
Net operating profit 809 803 -0.7% 205 -0.9%
Profit before tax 817 803 -1.7% 206 -0.7%
Loans to customers (eop) 25,033 26,896/ +7.4% 26,896 +1.7%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue - eop) 29,538 30,218 +2.3% 30,218 +1.7%
Total RWA Eop 25,089 25,850 +3.0% 25,850 +2.7%
EVA (€ million) 197 190 -3.5% 48 -3.5%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 1,090 1,135 +4.1% 1,151 +3.0%
RARORAC +18.05% +16.74%) -132bp +16.74% -1bp
Cost/Income +46.0% +46.8% 75bp +45.8% -73bp
Cost of Risk 0.67% 0.51% -16bp 0.48% -1bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 18,152 18,098 -0.3% 18,098 +1.0%
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CEE Division

UniCredit is a market leader in Central and Eastern Europe, where it has a broad network of about 2,600 branches. Its
regional footprint is diverse and includes a direct presence in 16 countries. The Group’s market position in CEE

provides local banks with substantial competitive advantages. This includes the sharing of best practices, significant
economies of scale, access to international markets and strong brand recognition. Moreover, the diversified portfolio

in this region enables modular growth and increased market penetration for UniCredit’'s global product lines.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)

Year % 2014 % CHANGE

CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014

CEE Division 2013 2014

Operating income 4,478 3,909 -12.7% 919 -15.4%
Operating costs (1,722) (1,623) -5.8% (413) +2.9%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans (1,124) (677) -39.8% (204) +31.4%
Net operating profit 1,633 1,610 -1.4% 301 -43.1%
Profit before tax 1,533 1,474 -3.9% 290 -36.0%
Loans to customers (eop) 57,163 57,009 -0.3% 57,009 -2.4%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue - eop) 49,473 51,469 +4.0% 51,469 +2.9%
Total RWA Eop 81,668 89,173 +9.2% 89,173 +5.5%
EVA (€ million) 17 58 +246.5% (142) -234.0%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 7,635 7,438| -2.6% 8,076 +14.8%
RARORAC +0.22% +0.78% 56bp +0.78% -291bp
Cost/Income +38.4% +41.5% 306bp +45.0% n.s.
Cost of Risk 1.92% 1.18% -74bp 1.42% 35bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 30,848 29,038 -5.9% 29,038 -1.8%

CiB

Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB) is dedicated to multinational and large corporate clients with highly
sophisticated financial profile and needs for investment banking services, as well as institutional clients of UniCredit

group. The business model adopted is focused on a clear distinction between coverage and local distribution

(Network) areas, and those areas dedicated to centralized specialization of dedicated products or services, namely
Financing & Advisory (F&A), Markets and Global Transaction Banking.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)

Year % 2014 % CHANGE

CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING 2013 2014

Operating income 4,284 3,711 -13.4% 1,023 +27.1%
Operating costs (1,707) (1,710) +0.2% (406) -5.4%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans (942) (135) -85.7% (101) -250.8%
Net operating profit 1,634 1,866 +14.1% 516 +16.5%
Profit before tax 1,448 1,802, +24.5% 469 +2.0%
Loans to customers (eop) 93,875 89,191 -5.0% 89,191 +5.7%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue - eop) 76,536 87,472 +14.3% 87,472 +1.9%
Total RWA Eop 74,528 67,462 -9.5% 67,462 -3.9%
EVA (€ million) 38| 350 ns. 153 +139.0%
ROAC 13.7% +18.2% 451bp 21.1% 376bp
(Rev-LLP)/RWA +5.31% +5.28% -2bp +6.14% 141bp
Cost/Income +39.9% +46.1% ns. +39.6% n.s.
Cost of Risk 0.92% 0.15% -77bp 0.47% 78bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 4,300 4,020 -6.5% 4,020 +0.1%
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Asset Management

Asset Management operates under the Pioneer Investments brand, the asset management company within the
UniCredit group specializing in the management of customer investments worldwide.
The Business Line, a partner of many leading international financial institutions, offers investors a broad range of
financial solutions, including mutual funds, assets under administration and portfolios for institutional investors.
Pioneer Investments started an organic growth strategic plan which will further enhance the quality of Pioneer

Investments’ product offering while maintaining focus on delivering an outstanding level of client service.

In 2012, its relationship with UniCredit was also reviewed through a distribution agreement that sets specific
requirements in terms of performance and quality of service provided by Pioneer. Reciprocally, UniCredit has

committed to effectively support Pioneer leveraging on its distribution network, maintaining agreed level of market

share.
Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators (€million)
Year % 2014 % CHANGE
CHANGE Q4 ON Q32014
ASSET MANAGEMENT 2013 2014
Operating income 731 791 +8.2% 217 +9.1%
Operating costs (528) (496) -6.0% (129) +3.6%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans - - ns. - ns.
Net operating profit 203] 295 +45.1% 87 +18.3%
Profit before tax 192 286 +48.7% 81 +12.1%
TFAs (eop) 181,700 193,230 +6.3% 208,694 +2.5%
RoA (Operating Income/ avg TFAS) +0.42% +0.40% -1.59bp +0.42% 1.99bp
EVA (€ million) 123 139 +12.6% 18 -55.9%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 261 266 +2.1% 266 +0.0%
RARORAC +47.3% +52.1% 482bp +52.1% ns.
Cost/Income +72.2% +62.7% ns. +59.7% -315bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 1,995 2,021 +1.3% 2,021 -1.1%

Asset Gathering

Asset gathering is a division specialized in wealth management through the direct channel and the financial advisors
network, mainly focused on the retail customer segment.
It operates in Italy through Fineco Bank, which, with its direct channel and a network of more than 2.400 financial
advisors, offers all the banking and the investment services of traditional banks, with a specific focus on innovation,
that emerges mainly from the development of the online trading, with respect to which FinecoBank is leader at a

national and European level.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators

( €million)

VieEw % 2014 % CHANGE

ASSET GATHERING 2o AUE CHANGE Q4 N Q3 2o
Operating income 429 451 +5.1% 118 +9.6%
Operating costs (192) (212) +10.6% (54) +4.5%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans 3) 3) -2.9% (1) +75.6%
Net operating profit 234 236 +0.8% 63 +13.6%
Profit before tax 216 230 +6.3% 60 +10.4%
Loans to customers Eop 641 696 +8.5% 696 -0.7%
Customer deposits (incl. Securities in issue) Eop 13,246 14,254, +7.6% 14,254 +1.1%
Total RWA Eop 1,915 1,742 -9.0% 1,742 +7.2%
TFAs Outstading Stock (eop) 64,794 69,368 +7.1% 70,529 +1.7%
TFAs Net Sales 2,204 3,999 +81.4% 1,231 +61.9%
EVA (€ million) 105 114 +8.6% 24 +1.7%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 168| 103 -38.7% 99 -4.4%
RARORAC 62.6%) 110.9% n.s. +110.9% -428bp
Cost/Income +44.7% +47.0% 231bp +45.7% ns.
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 934 974 +4.3% 974 +2.1%
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Non-core

Non-core segment reports separately assets that the Group considers not strategic and with a poor fit to our risk-
adjusted returns framework. These businesses are managed with the final goal of reducing the overall exposure in the
course of time. Specifically, the segment includes selected assets of Commercial Banking Italy (identified on a single
deal/client basis) to be managed with a risk mitigation approach, the Workout company Unicredit Credit Management
Bank and some special vehicles for securitization transactions.

Income Statement, Key Ratios and Indicators ( €million)

Year % 2014 % CHANGE

CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2014

Non-core 2013 2014

Operating income 691 330 -52.2% 65 -15.4%
Operating costs (604) (591) -2.2% (127) -11.4%
Net w rite-dow ns on loans (9,720) (2,157) -77.8% (943) +88.8%
Net operating profit (9,633) (2,418) -74.9% (1,004) +77.6%
Profit before tax (9,707) (2,553) -73.7% (1,045) +83.6%
Loans to customers (eop) 53,373 47,417 -11.2% 47,417 -4.2%
Net Impaired Loans(percentage of total net loans) 50.05% 56.43% 6.4pp 56.43% 1.6pp
Total RWA Eop 31,395 39,080 +24.5% 39,080 +18.4%
EVA (€ million) (6,885) (2,162) -68.6% (814) +60.5%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 3,020 3,264 +8.1% 2,914 -29.1%
RARORAC -228.00% -66.25% n.s. -66.25% n.s.
Cost/Income +87.4% +179.0% n.s. +195.0% ns.
Cost of Risk 15.41%) 4.25% ns. 7.78% 380bp
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 1,974 1,849 -6.3% 1,849 -3.9%
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Other information

Report on corporate governance
and proprietary structures

Within the meaning of Art. 123-bis par. 3 of Legislative
Decree 58 dated February 24, 1998, the “Report on
Corporate Governance and Proprietary Structures” is
available in the “Governance” section of the UniCredit
website (http://www.unicreditgroup.eu).

An explanatory chapter on the Corporate Governance
structure is likewise included below in this document.

Report on remuneration

Pursuant to Art. 84-quater, paragraph 1, of the Issuers’
Regulations implementing the Legislative Decree no. 58 of
February 24, 1998, the “Report on remuneration” is
available on UniCredit's website
(http://www.unicreditgroup.eu).

Research and development
projects

In 2014 the Group's research and development projects
were mainly aimed at:

. developing suitable systems for using all
payments data managed by UniCredit to enable
a better understanding of the various local
economic conditions. These solutions represent
a breakthrough innovation in the Bank
innovation efforts as they enable a better
understanding of customers and therefore give
the Group a new competitive edge, improve the
customer service and increase proximity to the
territory;

. prototyping and developing flexible solutions to
make the physical network of branches more
flexible in terms of both cost and localization;

. streamlining branch processes through a non-
invasive technology that can be applied in any
complex legacy process;

. strengthening industrial and academic
partnerships enabling the development of long-
term solutions for UniCredit entity, as well as
developing new network in the scientific
environment.
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Development of Group
operations and other corporate
transactions

During the period, in addition to continuing the
reorganisation of certain activities in line with the Group's
organisational model, which essentially involves the
allocation of business conducted in foreign countries
directly to local banks, UniCredit decided, on the one hand,
to take further steps to develop high-growth business at
the Group level and, on the other, to make non-controlling
equity investments aimed at creating new partnerships.
The disposal of now non-strategic shareholdings also
continued.

Group initiatives

Reorganisation of international leasing
activities

In order to redefine the business model, bringing it closer
to the customers' needs, speed up the decision-making
process at the local level, reduce complexity and increase
efficiency, UniCredit has continued work on the
reorganisation of leasing activities at the Group level.

The project begun in 2013 involved the transfer of the
leasing companies and businesses operating in the CEE
area from UniCredit Leasing to the respective local banks
of each CEE country.

In addition, the reorganisation project involved the transfer
to UniCredit of the 31% minority stake held by UniCredit
Bank Austria in UniCredit Leasing, after which UniCredit
acquired full control of the Italian leasing company.

At the end of 2014, the project was substantially
completed, except for the transfer (presumably within the
first half of 2015) of some businesses in certain Balkan
countries (Boshia and Herzegovina, Croatia, Serbia and
Slovenia).

In accordance with the reorganisation, UniCredit Leasing
will no longer act as a sub-holding, but will operate
exclusively as the leading leasing company in the Italian
market, as a result of the merger by incorporation of
Fineco Leasing S.p.A. in early 2014.

Initial Public Offering (IPO) and listing

of FinecoBank

In order to accelerate the growth of the subsidiary and
enhance its market visibility while optimising the allocation
of capital, in March 2014 the Group decided to launch the
activities to proceed with the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of
the ordinary shares of FinecoBank.

As part of this transaction, in April FinecoBank, in line with
the initiatives set out in the Group’s 2013-2018 Strategic
Plan, applied for admission to listing of its ordinary shares
on the Mercato Telematico Azionario, organised and
managed by Borsa ltaliana, and filed a request with
CONSOB for the approval of the Prospectus relating to the
public offering and listing of its shares.

After the full exercise of the over-allotment option in July,
the global offering (which was exceeded by demand by 2.9
times) represented 34.5% of FinecoBank’s share capital.
The offering price of FinecoBank ordinary shares was set
at €3.70 per share, and after full exercise of the over-

allotment option the gross proceeds for UniCredit were
approximately €774 million, resulting in a capital gain of
approximately €410 million inclusive of tax, commissions
and expenses, entirely accounted for as equity reserves,
as UniCredit will retain control of FinecoBank.

Since 2 July 2014, FinecoBank ordinary shares have been
traded on the Mercato Telematico Azionario, organised
and managed by Borsa Italiana.

Reorganisation and rationalisation of

UniCredit Credit Management Bank
UniCredit Credit Management Bank (UCCMB) is the
Group's Bank dedicated to the management and recovery
non-performing loans originated in Italy. Today UCCMB is
the largest platform in Italy by managed assets and it
boasts an outstanding track record, as demonstrated by
the top rating assigned to it by Standard & Poor's and Fitch
Ratings.

The structure of non-performing loans and the strategy
implemented to manage them are currently being
reorganized. This resulted in the signature of an
agreement in February 2015 for the sale of UCCMB,
including a portfolio of non-performing loans for an amount
of €2.4 billion (gross value) and a long-term agreement for
the management of future small- and medium-size loans of
the Italian legal entities of the Group. Further details are
provided in the section Subsequent Events and Outlook.

The investment in UCCMB continued to be fully
consolidated in the financial statements at December 31,
2014, since the conditions for its classification as for held
for sale (IFRS 5) were not met at the reporting date.

“Subito casa” project

In order to develop new business models based on the
centrality of the branch network as part of an integrated
system, a plan has been developed to offer dedicated and
distinctive services for the sale and leasing of real estate
(primarily for residential use) owned by customers, the
market and builders.

More specifically, the project is based on the highly
important role played by the real estate market in the
Italian economic system and on expectations for its
recovery, after the significant contraction recorded over
recent years.

To implement the project, in March 2014 UniCredit
established a new wholly owned subsidiary called
UniCredit Subito Casa S.p.A., which specialises in real
estate brokerage in Italy.

The operational launch of the initiative, which initially
involves the major Italian cities (Turin, Milan, Verona,
Bologna, Rome, Naples and Palermo), has taken place in
recent months and will subsequently extend to the
remaining Italian territory.
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Other transactions and initiatives
involving shareholdings

Shareholding in Coinv S.p.A. (formerly

Lauro Sessantuno S.p.A)

In June 2013, UniCredit, together with Intesa Sanpaolo,
became involved as a financial partner (with an 18.43%
stake worth €115 million) in the establishment of Lauro
Sessantuno S.p.A., an SPV (also owned by Nuove
Partecipazioni (NP) and by Clessidra SGR) that, after a
series of corporate transactions (including a full mandatory
takeover bid), acquired 100% of the share capital of
Camfin, a company that owns 26.19% of Pirelli.

The transaction was aimed at encouraging the
reorganisation of Pirelli's shareholding structure and at
gaining benefits, over a period of 3/4 years, from any
increases in the value of the Pirelli Group, an example of
manufacturing excellence in Italy and at the global level.
In May 2014, UniCredit, Intesa Sanpaolo and NP reached
an agreement with Long Term Investments S.A. (LTI), a
Luxembourgian SPV linked to the pension fund of the
Russian group Rosneft (the world’s major operator in the
oil and gas industry), that resulted, on the one hand, in the
exit of Clessidra and a partial divestment of UniCredit and
Intesa Sanpaolo from the existing partnership in Lauro
Sessantuno/Camfin and, on the other hand, in the
formation of a new joint partnership between LTI and the
Italian shareholders aimed at developing Pirelli's activities
and business, also by strengthening its sales network in
Russia thanks to Rosneft's extensive market coverage
across the country.

The transaction, conducted by setting the value of each
share held indirectly in Pirelli at €12, was implemented in
the following phases: a) the acquisition by LTI of a
shareholding in Lauro Sessantuno (July 2014), as part of
which UniCredit sold LTI approximately 12.97% of Lauro
Sessantuno for approximately €140 million and with a
capital gain of about €58.1 million; b) the merger by
incorporation of Lauro Sessantuno into Camfin (concluded
on 1 December 2014); c) the retention of the Pirelli
shareholding in Camfin and other related assets and
liabilities and spin-offs of other assets and liabilities of
Camfin in favour of a NewCo (Coinv S.p.A.) owned by NP,
UniCredit and Intesa Sanpaolo through a non-proportional
partial demerger (also concluded on 1 December 2014); d)
the subsequent transfer to Coinv of the Camfin shares
owned by NP, UniCredit and Intesa Sanpaolo (carried out
on 22 December 2014).

Upon completion of the transactions described above,
Camfin is owned by LTI (50%) and Coinv (50%); the latter
in turn is owned by NP (76%) and by UniCredit and Intesa
Sanpaolo with a share of 12% each.

Acquisition of a shareholding in ERG

Renew S.p.A.

In January 2014, UniCredit signed an ERG Renew capital
increase, with an investment of €50 million, corresponding
to 7.14% of the company’s share capital.

UniCredit's investment is aimed at supporting ERG
Renew’s plans to expand into the renewable energy
market in Italy and abroad, and will enable the Group to
benefit from any increases in the value of the investee,
also in view of a possible future listing.

Mediobanca S.p.A. shareholders’

agreement

During 2014, the Mediobanca S.p.A. shareholders’
agreement was renewed until 31 December 2015, with a
percentage of share capital syndicated to the Agreement
equal to 30.05%.

On 19 February 2014, the Meeting of the Parties to the
Shareholders’ Agreement passed a resolution to reduce —
from 30% to 25% — the minimum percentage of the Bank’s
share capital syndicated to the Agreement, below which
the Agreement lapses, and granted Financiére du Perguet
(Bolloré group) the right to increase its percentage
syndicated to the Agreement from 6.0% to 8.0%.

During the first half of 2014, Financiére du Perguet S.A.
partially exercised the right it was granted on 19 February
2014 and increased its percentage syndicated to the
Agreement to 6.46%.

On 17 July 2014, the Meeting of the Parties to the
Mediobanca S.p.A. Shareholders’ Agreement approved
the new text of the Agreement and noted that Financiere
du Perguet contributed a further 4,747,000 Mediobanca
shares to the Agreement (of which 1 million with settlement
on 18 July) in partial exercise of its right to increase its
shares; its syndicated percentage increased therefore from
6.46% to 7.01%.

On 29 September 2014, the above-mentioned Meeting of
the Parties to the Shareholders’ Agreement noted that
Financiéere du Perguet contributed a further 3,991,000
Mediobanca shares to the Agreement, again in partial
exercise of its right to increase its shares, increasing its
syndicated percentage from 7.01% to 7.48%.

As a result of the aforementioned increases, the overall
percentage of shares syndicated to the Agreement
increased from 30.05% to 31.52%, the latter percentage
dropping to 31.44% in December as a result of the change
in share capital. As at 31 December 2014, UniCredit S.p.A.
held a stake of 8.63% in Mediobanca.

Shareholding in Alitalia S.p.A.

In August, Alitalia finalised an investment agreement with
Etihad Airways aimed at strengthening Alitalia in terms of
competitiveness and sustainable income.

In particular, the provisions of the agreement include:

. an investment of €560 million by Etihad, which,
subject to approval by the regulatory authorities,
will thus become a non-controlling shareholder
of the company;

e the commitment by the main stakeholders (in
addition to UniCredit, Intesa Sanpaolo, Poste
Italiane, Atlantia, Immsi, Pirelli, Gavio and
Macca) to support additional recapitalisation of
the company (maximum liability for UniCredit of
€63.5 million, which then fell to €62.1 million);

. support for the transaction from the financial
institutions and shareholder banks with a
maximum of €598 million in the form of
conversion and/or restructuring of short- and
medium-term debt.
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After successful debt restructuring in the short- and
medium-term by the financial institutions and shareholder
banks, UniCredit at the end of 2014 now holds a 33.50%
stake in CAl. Therefore, at December 31, 2014, the equity
investment is classified among those subject to significant
influence.

The transaction, closed with effect on 1 January 2015,
substantially resulted in:

e the transfer by Alitalia CAl, to a new company
called Alitalia-Societa Aerea Italiana S.p.A.
(SAl), of the business unit dealing with all the
operational activities performed; Alitalia was
later renamed simply CAl.

e the transfer to Midco SpA, again by Alitalia CAl,
of the shareholdings in SAl arising from the
transfer of the above business unit,

e the subscription by Etihad, via a cash payment
of 387.5 million, of a capital increase of SAI, as a
result of which Etihad now holds 49% of SAI (the
remaining 51% is held by CAl, through Midco).

Aviva S.p.A.

In 2014 an operation was completed for the strategic
repositioning of Aviva S.p.A — a banking and life
assurance joint venture held 49% by UniCredit S.p.A. and
for the remaining 51% by Aviva Italia Holding S.p.A.,
directly and indirectly.

In particular, on that occasion, the commercial agreements
between UniCredit and Aviva also underwent a revision on
the basis of which (from 1 October 2014) UniCredit has
stopped placing new Aviva Type 1 (Life) policies (with the
exclusion of term life insurance), Type 3, Multi-Type and
Pension policies (except for additional payments on
existing contracts and/or single operations agreed from
time to time between the parties). UniCredit will also
continue to distribute, for 5 years, certain types of Aviva
insurance products (so-called “Protection”), within a
reduced geographical distribution perimeter with respect to
the previous one.

Optimization of selected loans in

restructuring

During April 2014 Alvarez & Marsal (A&M), Intesa Sanpaolo,
KKR and UniCredit have signed a memorandum of
understanding to jointly develop and implement an innovative
solution to optimize the performance and maximize the value
of a selected corporate loan portfolio under restructuring
through proactive management and additional funding at the
asset level. Discussions related to the formation and
operations of the partnership are ongoing. The development
activities will continue during 2015.

Pioneer Investments
UniCredit continues to investigate a potential business
combination of Pioneer Investments with an industrial partner.

Disposal of now non-strategic
shareholdings

The disposal of now non-strategic shareholdings at the
Group level also continued during the period.
The most significant included:

Operations in Italy
Sale of the shareholding in Atlantia

S.p.A.

In March, UniCredit sold its entire stake (0.67%) in Atlantia
S.p.A., with a gross capital gain of about €77 million on a
consolidated basis.

Sale of 20.1% of Sia S.p.A.

In December 2013, UniCredit, Intesa Sanpaolo, Banca
Monte dei Paschi di Siena and BNL signed, with Fondo
Strategico Italiano, F2i SGR and Orizzonte SGR, the
agreements for the sale of 59.3% of Sia's share capital, of
which 28.9% was held by Intesa Sanpaolo Group, 20.1%
by UniCredit, 5.8% by Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena
and 4.5% by BNL.
Following satisfaction of the conditions precedent, the
aforementioned sale was completed in May 2014 and
resulted in
e the three buyers holding the following
investments in Sia: Fondo Strategico Italiano,
42.3%; F2i SGR, 10.3%; and Orizzonte SGR
6.7%,;
. UniCredit (and Intesa Sanpaolo) has retained a
4% stake in Sia;
e the other existing shareholders have retained
the remaining 32.7% of Sia's share capital.

At the consolidated level, the sale resulted in a net impact
on the income statement of approximately €144 million, of
which €12 million was booked in the first quarter of 2014
as a result of the application of the equity method to
account for the shareholding.

NEEP Roma Holding S.p.A.

In August, UniCredit sold its entire shareholding in NEEP
Roma Holding S.p.A. (controlling company A.S. Roma
S.p.A.), corresponding to 31% of the capital, to AS Roma
SPV LLC for €33 million. At the same time, the
shareholder agreement relating to NEEP Roma Holding,
signed by UniCredit on 18 August 2011 and subsequently
amended and supplemented on 1 August 2013, ceased to
be effective.

Operations abroad

DAB Bank AG

In July, UniCredit Bank AG and BNP Paribas reached an
agreement for the disposal of their majority shareholding in
DAB Bank AG (81.4% of the share capital), at a total price
of €354 million (4.78 per share). The sale was completed,
upon authorisation from the competent authorities in
December, with a positive impact of about 162 million at
the consolidated level.
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Istraturist Umag d.d.

During the third quarter of 2014 Zagrebacka Banka d.d.
(controlled by UniCredit Bank Austria AG) reached an
agreement with Plava Laguna (a Croatian tour operator)
for the sale of the controlling interest (93.04%) in Istraturist
Umag d.d. for €120 million.

The transaction closed on the November 27, 2014 had a
positive impact of around €6 million on consolidated net
profit.

CA Immobilien Anlagen AG (CAI)

In line with the Group's strategy for the sale of non-
strategic assets, in October 2014, UniCredit Bank Austria
AG signed a sale agreement and concluded, subject to
obtaining the necessary authoridations, the sale of the
entire stake in CA Immobilien Anlagen AG, equal to
16.35%, to O1 Group Limited.

The consideration for the sale of CAl, listed on the Vienna
Stock Exchange, is equal to about 295 million. The positive
impact of the sale on the consolidated net profit of the
Group is approximately 20 million.

PJSC Ukrsotsbank

The deterioration of the geopolitical situation has affected
the disposal process for the investment in PIJSC
Ukrsotsbank — the Group's Ukrainian subsidiary held by
UniCredit Bank Austria A.G. (with a share of 72.9%) and
UniCredit S.p.A. (a share of 26.5%) — which had already
been classified as held for sale (in accordance with IFRS
5) in the financial statements at December 31, 2013. In
particular, the disposal process has suffered slowdowns
with respect to the amount of time initially envisaged.
During 2014, contacts with the counterparts interested in
the acquisition continued and UniCredit is still committed to
carrying out the initiatives underway for the sale of the
asset, already classified as non-strategic. Accordingly, at
December 31, 2014, the investment has been classified
under assets held for sale (IFRS 5).
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Report on Operations

Other information

Other aspects

Contributions to guarantee and

resolution funds

European Directive 49/2014, transposition of which into
Italian legislation is expected by the end of July 2015,
relating to deposit guarantee systems, introduces
significant changes for national guarantee funds previously
existing in the various countries in which the Group
operates. Although it operates in a framework of
substantial legal, organisational and operational continuity,
the new directive requires the adoption of an “ex ante”
contribution mechanism, that is aimed at establishing a
target amount of resources by the end of 2024 of 0.8% of
guaranteed deposits. The previous guarantee systems

b)

<)

was provided in the IPO Prospectus filed with
Consob;

during 2014, 3 transactions with related parties
as defined by Article 2427, paragraph 22-bis of
the Civil Code were conducted, under different
conditions from normal market conditions. These
transactions did not however significantly impact
the Group'’s Balance Sheet and Income
Statement;

during 2014, there were no changes or
developments in the individual transactions with
related parties already described in the latest
annual report that had a material effect on the
Group’s financial position or results during the
reference period.

For more information on related-party transactions please
refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes to
the consolidated accounts — Part H.

operating up to now in an “ex post” regime (meaning that
they provided for payment of contributions to finance the

single interventions made in relation to the depositors of a
bank in difficulty) must adopt an ex-ante financing scheme.
Among these there is also the Interbank Deposit
Protection Fund for the Group's Italian entities.

In addition, European Directive 59/2014 on banking
recovery and resolution introduced an obligation for banks
to make payments in order to establish a European Single
Resolution Fund with the aim of establishing a target
amount of resources by the end of 2024 of 1% of
guaranteed deposits. For 2015 and 2016 these payments
will be made to national resolution funds and subsequently
directly to the European fund.

In relation to these two contributions, starting from 2015
there will be an increase in recurrent expenses, the
amount of which from time to time depends on the specific
features defined by the different national transposing laws.

Certifications and other
communications

With reference to the “Rules of Markets organized and
managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.” dated October 3, 2011
(Title 2.6 “Obligations of issuers”, Section 2.6.2.
“Disclosure requirements”, paragraph 10) the satisfaction
of conditions provided by Section 36 of Consob Regulation
No. 16191/2007, letters a), b) and c) is hereby certified.

With reference to paragraph 8 of Art. 5 — “Public
information on transactions with related parties" of
Consob Regulation containing provisions relating to
transactions with related parties (adopted by Consob with
Resolution No. 17221 of March 12, 2010, as subsequently
amended by Resolution No. 17389 of June 23, 2010 ), it
should be noted that:

a) during 2014, a transaction of greater importance
was conducted with FinecoBank S.p.A — at the
transaction date a 100%-owned subsidiary of
UniCredit S.p.A. and therefore subject to the
exclusions provided for by the Global Policy with
respect to intragroup transactions —, anyway
subject to the early opinion of the Related-party
and Equity Investments Committee and the
Board of Directors as part of the activities aimed
at the listing of FinecoBank, which, after the
listing, has become a related party of the
company. Specific disclosure on this transaction
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Capital Strengthening

During the year 2014 UniCredit S.p.A. issued two
Additional Tier 1 notes with characteristics compliant with
new "CRD IV" regulation, in place starting from January 1,
2014.

On March 27, 2014, with value date April 3, 2014,
UniCredit S.p.A. launched Additional Tier 1 notes,
denominated in USD, for a total of USD 1.25 billion.

The securities are perpetual (with maturity linked to
corporate duration of UniCredit S.p.A.) and can be called
by the Issuer after 10 years and thereafter at any interest
payment date. Notes pay fixed rate coupons of 8.00% per
annum for the initial 10 years on a semi-annual basis; if
not redeemed, coupon will be reset every 5 years to the
then 5-Years Mid-Swap rate + 518 bps.

The transaction represents the inaugural deal for a CRD IV
compliant AT1 by an Italian Issuer and the first RegS Perp
NC10 USD denominated issue by a European Bank. The
offer has encountered exceptional interest from investors,
bringing the order book to almost 8 billion USD with
approx. 450 investors.

Given the positive feedback, the initial price guidance was
set at 8.25% area and has been revised to 8.00%/8.25%.
Coupon was finally fixed at 8.00% for the initial 10 years,
with an issue price set at 100%. Furthermore, the final size
of the deal has increased to USD 1.25 hillion from initial
target of USD 1 billion.

The Notes were distributed to different institutional
investors’ categories such as funds (71%), insurance
companies/pension funds (10%) and private banks (9%).
The demand was mainly coming from the following
regions: UK (39%), Italy (20%), Asia (12%) and
Switzerland (8%).

UniCredit Corporate & Investment Banking, together with
Citi, HSBC, Societe Generale and UBS, has managed the
placement acting as joint bookrunners. The assigned
rating from Fitch is “BB-“. Bonds are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

On September 3, 2014, with value date September 10,
2014, UniCredit S.p.A. launched Additional Tier 1 notes,
denominated in EUR, for a total of EUR 1 billion with
characteristics compliant with new “CRD IV” regulation in
place starting from January 1, 2014.

The securities are perpetual (with maturity linked to
corporate duration of UniCredit S.p.A.) and can be called
by the Issuer after 7 years and thereafter at any interest
payment date. Notes pay fixed rate coupons of 6.75% per
annum for the initial 7 years on a semi-annual basis; if not
redeemed, coupon will be reset every 5 years to the then
5-Years Mid-Swap rate + 610 bps.

The offer has encountered exceptional interest from
investors, bringing the order book to almost 2 billion EUR
with approx. 180 investors.

The Notes were distributed to different institutional
investors’ categories such as funds (84%), banks (13%)
and insurance companies (2%).

The demand was mainly coming from the following
regions: UK (34%), France (20%), Italy (12%) and
Switzerland (6.5%).

UniCredit Corporate & Investment Banking, together with
Bank of America, Credit Agricole, Credit Suisse, and
Deutsche Bank, has managed the placement acting as
joint bookrunners. The assigned rating from Fitch is “BB-".
Also in this case bonds are listed on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange.

Additional Tier 1 contribute to strengthening the Tier 1 ratio
of UniCredit S.p.A. In line with the regulatory requirements,
the coupon payments are fully discretionary for both
instruments.

Both the Notes have a 5.125% Common Equity Tier 1
(CETL1) trigger - if the Group or Issuer CET1 at any time
falls below the trigger level, the instrument will be
temporarily written down to cure the breach, taking into
consideration other instruments with similar write down
triggers.

Please note that on March 11, 2014 UniCredit's Board of
Directors, pursuant to the powers conferred by the
Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 29, 2011 and
the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 11, 2012,
resolved to increase the share capital by €28,143,498.84
by issuing 8,498,340 ordinary shares to be granted to the
employees of UniCredit and of Group banks and
companies.

It should also be noted that, following the scrip dividend
scheme approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting of May 13, 2014, under which newly-issued
ordinary and savings shares of the Company were
allocated to the shareholders entitled to receive a dividend
who did not opt for a cash payout, the share capital
increased by €222,774,043.97. Therefore, the share
capital of the Bank is now €19,905,773,742.24.
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Report on Operations

Subsequent Events and Outlook

Subsequent Events 2

The structure of non-performing loans and the strategy
implemented to manage them are currently undergoing a
reorganization process in which:

e the partial spin off took effect on January 1, 2015
in favor of UniCredit (i) of the non-core business
unit of the subsidiary UCCMB and (ii) of the
business unit related to the real estate portfolio
originating from the operations of the former
Capitalia of UCCMI (100% UCCMB), as per the
spin off deed signed on December 23, 2014 and
following the Bank of ltaly authorization issued
on October 24, 2014 pursuant to Article 57 of the
Banking Act;

. on February 11, 2015, UniCredit signed an
agreement with the affiliates of Fortress
Investment Group LLC ("Fortress") for:

o the sale of UCCMB (post spin off) including
a portfolio of non-performing loans of
around €2.4 billion (gross value);

o the definition of the main terms and
conditions of a long-term agreement for the
management of already existing and future
small and medium-sized impaired loans of
the Italian legal entities of the Group.

The transaction, which is part of the reorganization plan for
UniCredit's loan recovery activities, has a strong strategic
basis and allows the Group to benefit from:

. access to a specialized loan recovery
platform, which will be strengthened by the
significant know-how of a number of
affiliates Fortress and Prelios in the
management of impaired loans;

. better management accountability and
process monitoring; and

. possible improvement in the Group's future
income thanks to an expected increase in
the recovery performance for small- and
medium-size loans.

The transaction, which is subject to regulatory
authorizations and standard conditions for this type of
transaction, is expected to be completed by the second
quarter of 2015.

It is estimated that for UniCredit the impact of the
transaction on the regulatory capital and on the income
statement is substantially neutral, taking into account also
the value adjustment recognised in the 2014 financial
statements.

On 18 February 2015, the German Federal Labour Court
(Bundesarbeitsgericht — BAG) published an explanation of
its ruling relating to a court decision of 30 September
2014. This decision could result in an obligation for the
subsidiary UniCredit Bank AG with reference to employee
benefits for which the extent and amount have still to be
assessed. The explanation has in fact been published by
the Court only recently and the detailed effects are still
unclear; accordingly the ensuing potential obligations
cannot be reliably determined at this time.

2 Up to the date of approval by the Board of Directors’
Meeting of March 12, 2015.

In particular, the Court decided that, if an employer has
made a pension commitment to its employees by way of a
pension fund and the fund reduces the retirement benefits
due to economic difficulties, the employer is obliged to
compensate the employees for the reduction. Within the
scope of the ruling, the Court also commented at length on
the employer’s obligation to adjust the pension. According
to Section 16 of the German Occupational Pensions Act
(Betriebsrentengesetz — BetrAVG), the employer is
normally obliged to assess a potential increase of its
commitment under occupational pensions every three
years and has to make a decision at its own discretion.
Contrary to the largely prevailing opinion in the literature,
the Court has now determined that the escape clause
concerning the pension adjustment obligation incorporated
in Section 16 (3) No. 2 BetrAVG is not applicable for
occupational pensions originated before the German
Actuarial Reserve Regulation
(Deckungsriickstellungsverordnung — DeckRV) that came
into force in 1996. This opinion expressed by the Court in
respect of the pension adjustment obligation may also be
applicable to the occupational pension commitments
undertaken by UniCredit Bank AG by way of
Versorgungskasse des Bankgewerbes e.V. (BVV).

The developments in progress with reference to the
Ukrainian political crisis and the devaluation of the local
currency above all starting from February 2015 have led to
a weaker financial and capital situation of the subsidiary
Ukrosotsbank. In relation to these developments in
February 2015 the Ukrainian National Bank asked the
UniCredit group to assess a number of options to increase
the bank's capital ratio.

Taking into account the volatility of the exchange rate and
the changing geopolitical situation the initiatives to
strengthen the capital most suited to this context are
currently in progress.

The UniCredit group has confirmed to the Ukrainian
National Bank its commitment to ensure that the subsidiary
continues as a going concern for the period necessary to
complete the planned sale of the same.

For further detais refer to Part E — Section 5 — Other risks —
Selected emerging risks.

During the first part of 2015, with value date March 3,
2015, UniCredit S.p.A. has distributed on the Italian
network Tier 2 bond with maturity 3 May, 2025, callable on
May 3, 2020, denominated in EUR, for a total of EUR 2.5
billion. The bond pays a quarterly floating rate coupon
equal to Euribor 3 months + 2.75%; if not called, the bond
does not foresee any step up clause.
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Outlook

Global growth and world trade expanded at a moderate
pace in 2014 and prospects for 2015 indicate a slow
acceleration. This pick-up is likely to be driven by a gradual
recovery in advanced economies and some improvement
in emerging markets after the recent weakness. The large
drop in oil prices should support global growth, also
implying a meaningful redistribution of income from oil
exporters to oil importers. In this context, the US economy
is going to expand at a solid 3% pace in 2015, mainly
thanks to the impulse from recovering labor market and
private consumption

After having disappointed last year, GDP growth in Japan
should benefit from lower oil prices and renewed monetary
easing. The rebalancing of the Chinese economy will
probably continue, with GDP growth set to slow further,
although remaining close to 7%.

Eurozone GDP growth probably averaged 0.8% in 2014,
following -0.4% in 2013. On balance, 2014 saw some
strengthening of domestic demand, although not to the
extent needed to generate a self-sustaining recovery.

The support of the external sector and business
confidence with respect to the geopolitical outlook remain
key for companies to unload pent-up demand for fixed
investment, with positive spillover on the labor market and
private consumption. Therefore, the fairly disappointing
performance of global trade — predominantly reflecting
weakness in EM countries — and, since summer, the
escalation of tensions between Russia and Ukraine played
a crucial role in damaging eurozone growth prospects,
leaving the 2014 GDP performance below expectations.

We think 2015 will be a better year in yearly average
terms, GDP will probably expand 1.0%, marginally
stronger than in 2014. However, this unimpressive
improvement in the yearly average hides a more
meaningful gain of momentum. Basing on our 2015
projections, the quarterly Eurozone GDP growth will be
double in comparison to 2014, supported by the weaker
currency, by much lower oil prices, by a more neutral fiscal
stance and a decline in lending rates in peripheral
countries, which, for the first time since the intensification
of the sovereign debt crisis, show signs of responsiveness
to ECB policy easing.

Milan — March 12, 2015

CHAIRMAN
GIUSEPPE VITA

At the country level, we see Germany (1.2%) continuing to
outperform the eurozone, while Italy will probably growth
0.5%, the first positive reading after three years of
contraction. Growth in Germany will probably confirm the
signs of broadening recorded in 2014, with private
consumption benefiting from higher employment, rising
real wages and a decline in the savings ratio. However,
the strength of the export impulse will continue to hold the
key to the capex dynamic, and will ultimately drive the
pace of the recovery. The recovery in ltaly is likely to be
partially influenced by comparatively subdued domestic
demand, with weak firms’ profitability limiting the upside
potential for investment, employment and, in turn, private
consumption. Within the eurozone, Germany and Italy are
among the main beneficiaries of a weaker currency and
lower energy prices.

In January, the ECB launched a large-scale asset
purchase program which includes also government bonds
and aims at pushing the size of the central bank’s balance
sheet towards EUR 3 trillion. The move is intended to
counter the rising risk of a de-anchoring of inflation
expectations in the medium term. Quantitative Easing is
going to support the real economy mainly through currency
depreciation, while the growth impulse from lower market
interest rates is likely to be limited.

In 2015 the Group results should benefit from the expected
recovery of the international macroeconomic outlook.

The scenario for the Italian economy is still uncertain, even
if it is better than in recent years, and Group revenues will
keep on benefitting from geographic diversification. Even
though interest rates are forecasted to remain at low
levels, the bank is aiming for an improvement in revenues
through both an increase in volumes and commissions
from services, also leveraging on a further increase of the
asset management after the record flows observed in
2014. The recent ECB monetary policy measures will
contribute to contain the funding costs. The Group will
keep on working on its already strong capital position,
confirmed by the recent successful results of the ECB
stress test. Coherently with the multi-year plan guidelines,
the group will closely monitor its liquidity position and the
cost rationalization program.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CEO
FEDERICO GHIZZONI
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Corporate Governance

Governance organizational structure

Introduction

UniCredit’s overall corporate governance framework, i.e. the system of rules and procedures that its corporate bodies
refer to to steer the principles of their behaviour and fulfil their various responsibilities towards the group’s
stakeholders, has been defined in the light of current provisions and of the recommendations contained in the
Corporate Governance Code for listed companies (the “Code”). The Code, according to the major international
markets’ experience, identifies the corporate governance best practices for listed companies recommended by the
Corporate Governance Committee, to be applied according to the “comply or explain” principle that requires the
explanation of the reasons of failure to comply with one or more recommendations contained in its principles or

criteria.

Moreover, UniCredit is subject to the provisions contained in the Supervisory Regulations issued by Banca d’ltalia
and, in detail, with regards to corporate governance issues, to the Supervisory Regulations on banks’ corporate
governance in being(Circular no. 285/2013, Part I, Title IV, Chapter 1). In compliance with the aforementioned
Supervisory Regulations UniCredit, as significant bank subject to the direct prudential supervision of the ECB, as well
as as a listed bank, is qualifiable as bank of a major size or operational complexity and consequently complies with the

provisions applicable to such kind of bank.

Since 2001, UniCredit has adopted the Code which is available to the public on the Corporate Governance Committee
website (http://www.borsaitaliana.it/comitato-corporate-governance/codice/2014cleaneng.en.pdf). UniCredit yearly

draws up a corporate governance report meant for its shareholders, institutional and non-institutional investors and
the market. The report supplies suitable information on UniCredit’'s own Corporate Governance system.

Consistently with the relevant legal and regulatory obligations, as well as in line with the provisions of the Code, the
Report on corporate governance and ownership structure has been drafted in accordance with Section 123/bis of the

Legislative Decree no. 58 dated February 24, 1998 (the “TUF").

The Report on corporate governance and ownership structure approved by the Board of Directors (on March 12, 2015)
is published at the same time as the Report on Operations on the Issuer’s website
(http://www.unicreditgroup.eu/en/governance/system-policies/corporate-governance-report.html). For further

information on the UniCredit Corporate Governance system please see the first of the above document.

UniCredit, as issuer of shares also listed on the Frankfurt and Warsaw regulated markets, also fulfils the legal and
regulatory obligations related to listings on said markets as well as the provisions on corporate governance contained
in the Polish Corporate Governance Code issued by the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

The information provided, unless otherwise specified, refers to the financial year January 1/December 31, 2014.

Since its establishment, UniCredit has adopted the so-
called traditional management and control system.

The distinctive feature of this model is that the strategic
supervision and the management of the company, the
overseeing of its management and the legal accounting
supervision are separated. The Board of Directors is solely
responsible for the strategic supervision and the
management of the concern, while the Board of Statutory
Auditors is entrusted with supervising its management.
Legal accounting supervision on the company is entrusted
to an external audit firm by the Shareholders' Meeting on
the basis of a proposal from the Board of Statutory
Auditors, in compliance with relevant current laws.

This governance model was chosen because it has
proven, over time, to make it possible to manage the
business efficiently, while ensuring effective controls. That

is, it creates the necessary conditions for UniCredit S.p.A.
to be able to guarantee the sound and prudent
management of a complex and global banking group, such
as the UniCredit Group.

Moreover, the traditional management ascribes certain
aspects to the sole responsibility of the Shareholders'
Meeting, creating this way an opportunity for dialogue and
debate between management and shareholders about
fundamental elements of governance. These include the
appointment and dismissal of directors, the appointment of
the Board of Statutory Auditors members, the granting of a
mandate for the external auditing to an audit firm, the
setting of the related remuneration, as well as the approval
of the financial statements, the profit allocations and the
resolutions on the remuneration and incentive policies and
practices provided for by the current provisions.
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Shareholders' Meeting

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of UniCredit is
convened at least once a year within 180 days of the end
of the financial year, in order to resolve upon the issues
that current laws and the Articles of Association make it
responsible for. An Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting is
convened, instead, whenever it is necessary to resolve
upon any of the matters that are exclusively attributed to it
by current laws.

The Agenda of the Shareholders’ Meeting is established
pursuant to legal requirements and to UniCredit’s Articles
of Association by whoever exercises the power to call a
meeting.

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting has adopted
Regulations governing Ordinary and Extraordinary
Meetings in a functional and regular way. The Regulations
are available on the Governance/Shareholders Meeting
section of the UniCredit website.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of UniCredit may be comprised of

between a minimum of 9 up to a maximum of 24 members.

As at March 12, 2015, UniCredit has 19 Directors.

Their term in office is 3 financial years, unless a shorter
term is established at the time they are appointed, and
ends on the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting called upon
to approve the financial statements relating to the latest
year in which they were in office.

The term in office of the current Board of Directors, which
was appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting of May 11,
2012, will expire on the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting
called upon to approve the 2014 financial statements,
convened on May 13, 2015.

The UniCredit Directors shall be appointed, according to
the current provisions, on the basis of a proportional
representation mechanism (voto di lista) abiding by the
membership criteria concerning minority and independent
Directors, apart from abiding by the rules on the balance
between genders envisaged by Law no. 120/2011,
pursuant to the procedures specified in Clause 20 of
UniCredit’s Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors has adopted its own Regulations
governing its powers, working and jurisdiction. The Board
establishes its qualitative and quantitative composition
deemed most suitable for achieving the correct
performance of the functions assigned to the Board of
Directors and expresses its opinion on the maximum
number of offices that UniCredit Directors may hold, in

abidance by the current provisions of laws and regulations.

Moreover, Directors must take into account the provisions
of Section 36 of Law no. 214/2011 which establishes that
holders of a seat in managerial, supervisory and control
bodies, as well as top management officers in companies
or group of companies active in banking, insurance and
financial markets are forbidden to hold, or to exercise,
similar offices in competing companies or groups of
companies.

According to the Enforcement Criteria envisaged by the
Code and pursuant to Section 148 of the TUF, the
Directors’ independence shall be assessed by the Board of
Directors after their appointment and, subsequently, every
year, on the basis of the information provided by the
director him/herself or, however, available to the Issuer.
The outcome of the assessments of the Board shall be
notified to the market.

The Corporate Governance, HR and Nomination
Committee and the Board of Directors, the latter on March
12, 2015, carried out the assessment of the Directors’
independence requirements based on the statements
made by those concerned and of the information available
to the Company. In that regard, the professional,
commercial and financial relationships entertained by them
(the credit relationships included too) were taken into
account. Such relationships have been examined taking
also into account the following criteria: i) the nature and the
characteristics of the relationship, ii) the amount of the
transactions both generally and relatively speaking, iii) the
subjective profile of the relationship.

As a result of such assessment, the number of
independent Directors according to the provisions of the
Code is equal to 12.

The outcome disclosed to the market through a press

release was the following:

o “Independent” Directors pursuant to Section 3 of the
Code:

Mr. Cordero di Montezemolo, Mr. Al Fahim, Mr.
Bischoff, Ms. Bochniarz, Mr. Caltagirone, Ms. Li Calzi,
Mr. Maramotti, Mr. Quaglia, Ms. Reichlin, Mr. Sassoli
de Bianchi, Mr. Wolfgring and Mr. Wyand;.

o ‘“Independent” Directors pursuant to Section 148 of the
TUF: Mr. Vita, Mr. Fois, Mr. Calandra Buonaura, Mr.
Cordero di Montezemolo, Mr. Palenzona, Mr. Al
Fahim, Mr. Bischoff, Ms. Bochniarz, Mr. Caltagirone,
Mr. Giacomin, Ms. Li Calzi, Mr. Maramotti, Mr.
Quaglia, Ms. Reichlin, Mr. Sassoli de Bianchi, Mr.
Wolfgring and Mr. Wyand.

In its March 12 and April 1, 2015, meetings the Board of
Statutory Auditors ascertained, with a positive outcome,
the proper application of the criteria and procedures
adopted by the Board of Directors to assess the
independence of its own members.
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Corporate Governance

Governance organizational structure

Status and activities of the Directors
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Position Members In office 2 § s _§ §' § ¥ £ B
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since until @ i 2 = = S zi
Chairman Vita Giuseppe 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X 100 1
Senior Vice Fois Candido 11052012 | 13052015 | M X X | sae2 | 2
Chairman
Vice Chairman Calandra Buonaura Vincenzo 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X 100 -
Vice Chairman Cordero di Montezemolo Luca 11-05-2012 © 13-05-2015 M X X X 76.92 10
Vice Chairman Palenzona Fabrizio 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X 100 4
CEO Ghizzoni Federico 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X 100 1
Director Al Fahim Mohamed Al 18-10-2012 @ | 13-05-2015 - X X X 100 8
Director Bischoff Manfred 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 76.92 2
Director Bochniarz Henryka 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 69.23 2
Director Caltagirone Alessandro 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 76.92 14
Director Giacomin Francesco 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X 100 1
Director Jung Helga 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X 84.62 5
Director Li Calzi Marianna 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 100 1
Director Maramotti Luigi 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 84.62 6
Director Quaglia Giovanni 18-12-2012 © 13-05-2015 - X X X 100 6
Director Reichlin Lucrezia 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 m X X X 92.31 3
Director Sassoli de Bianchi Lorenzo 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 92.31 1
Director Wolfgring Alexander 11-05-2013 @ 13-05-2015 - X X X 100 4
Director Wyand Anthony 11-05-2012 13-05-2015 M X X X 92.31 3
Directors that left off during the Period
Quorum required for the submission of the slates for the latest appointment: 0.5%
Number of meetings held during the financial year: 13
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NOTE:

M = Member elected from the slate that obtained the relative majority of the Shareholders’ votes

m = Member elected from the slate voted by the minority

Number of meeting attended / number of meetings held during the concerned party’s term of office with regard to the Period

Number of positions as Director or Auditor held in other companies listed on regulated markets (both in Italy and abroad), including financial services
companies, banks, insurance companies or other large companies. There is a list of such companies for each Director attached to the Report

Appointed as Vice Chairman on October 18, 2012

Co-opted on October 18, 2012 and confirmed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on May 11, 2013
Co-opted on December 18, 2012 and confirmed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on May 11, 2013
Appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on May 11, 2013
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Governance organizational structure

Committees of the Board of
Directors

In order to support the Directors with an efficient
information and consultancy system, able to assure the
capability of the Board of Directors to properly assess all
the specific matters falling within its jurisdiction, the
following five committees have been created with the
power to provide advice and make proposals; the
committees focus on separate issues: Permanent Strategic
Committee; Internal Controls & Risks Committee;
Corporate Governance, HR and Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Related Parties and Equity
Investments Committee. The Permanent Strategic
Committee has been voluntarily set up; the Internal
Controls & Risks Committee, the Corporate Governance,
HR and Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee have been set up pursuant to the Code while
the Related-Parties and Equity Investments Committee
has been set up in compliance with the CONSOB
regulatory provisions and the Banca d'ltalia Supervisory
Regulations.

As regards the Committees set up pursuant to the Code,
none of the functions of one or more Board Committees
envisaged by the Code has been reserved to the Board of
Directors. Moreover, none of the abovementioned
Committees, per se, performs the multiple functions of two
or more committees as envisaged by the Code. The
committee functions have not been allocated amongst the
various committees in a manner different vis-a-vis the
provisions of the Code.

The Committees may operate according to procedures
considered appropriate and may inter alia split into Sub-
Committees.

The Permanent Strategic Committee is comprised of 9
directors, the majority of whom shall be non-executive. The
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are
members by right. The other members shall be chosen
based upon their expertise and willingness to accept the
office. The Chairman of the Committee is the Chairman of
the Board. In principle, the meetings of the Permanent
Strategic Committee shall be scheduled on a monthly
basis but could be convened whenever necessary to
discuss a topic that falls within the scope of the
Committee’s duties. The meetings will normally be called
by the Chairman; however, any two or more Members or
two Statutory Auditors can also call a meeting. In this latter
case, all the Statutory Auditors are entitled to attend.

In 2014, the Permanent Strategic Committee held no. 11
meetings.

Duties

The Committee’s role is to provide advice and make
proposals. The main task of the Permanent Strategic
Committee is to provide the Board of Directors with

opinions concerning proposals formulated by the CEO to
the Board concerning:

a) the Group 3 Year Plan;
b) the Group yearly budget;
c) the Group yearly capital allocation;

d) the Group yearly strategy related to transactions
involving shareholdings (M&A/reorganizations);

e) the approval of transactions on shareholdings above
a certain limit (€300 million for transactions in high-
risk countries, and €500 million for transactions in
low-risk countries);

f)  extraordinary capital allocations and dividend policy,
both for the Holding Company and the Group
Companies, unless already included in the annual
general Capital Allocation guidelines indicated under
para. c) above;

g) other transactions/initiatives of strategic relevance to
the Group, such as: decisions to enter new
geographical and business markets, high-profile joint
ventures with industrial and/or financial Groups.

The Internal Controls & Risks Committee is comprised of
9 non-executive directors, who are independent pursuant
to Section 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF. Moreover, the
majority of the members (6 out of 9) meet the
independence requirements prescribed by the Code. The
Chairman of the Committee is independent pursuant to
Section 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF and according to the
Code. The Chairman and the Senior Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors are members by right. At least one
member of the Committee shall be chosen from the
directors that were candidates on minority slates - if
presented - in order to ensure greater transparency,
responsibility and participation by the various components
of the corporate structure. Committee members shall be
chosen on the basis of their expertise and willingness to
accept the office and some of them having specific
experience in accounting, fiscal, financial and risk-related
areas. The Chairman of the Internal Controls & Risks
Committee shall be elected from among the members
other than those that are members by right.

The Committee, which has consultative and proposal-
making functions, carries out its duties in a plenary session
or with limited membership in two Sub-Committees:

. the Internal Controls Sub-Committee; and

. the Risks Sub-Committee.

The Internal Controls Sub-Committee and the Risks Sub-
Committee shall each comprise 6 directors and shall be
chaired by the Internal Controls & Risks Committee
Chairman, who shall be a member by right of each Sub-
Committee together with the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and the Senior Vice Chairman.
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The current composition of the Sub-Committees is the

following:

. Internal Controls Sub-Committee: Mr. Wyand
(Chairman), Mr. Fois, Mr. Giacomin, Ms. Li Calzi, Mr.
Sassoli de Bianchi and Mr. Vita;

. Risks Sub-Committee: Mr Wyand (Chairman), Mr.
Fois, Mr. Maramotti, Ms. Reichlin, Mr. Wolfgring and
Mr. Vita.

Meetings of the Internal Controls & Risks Committee are

usually called monthly on the basis of an annual planning:

. at least twice annually in plenary session; and

. in limited session as either Internal Controls Sub-
Committee or Risks Sub-Committee.

In any event meetings - whether plenary or of the Internal
Controls and the Risks Sub-Committees - shall normally
be called by the Internal Controls & Risks Committee
Chairman; however, any 2 or more Members or 2 Statutory
Auditors may also call a meeting. In this latter case, all the
Statutory Auditors are entitled to attend.

The Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors or
another Statutory Auditor designated by the Chairman of
the Board of Statutory Auditors shall attend the meetings
of the Internal Controls & Risks Committee and the Internal
Controls and the Risks Sub-Committees. Other Statutory
Auditors may be invited to attend, along with members of
the external auditing firm.

Committee meetings, whether plenary or of the Internal
Controls and the Risks Sub-Committees, shall be attended
by the CEO, the General Manager, the Head of Internal
Audit and the Head of Compliance, the Chief Risk Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, as standing invitees.

In 2014, the Internal Controls & Risks Committee held no.
12 meeting, no. 6 plenary sessions, 3 meetings of its
Internal Controls Sub-Committee and 3 meetings of its
Risks Sub-Committee.

Duties

The duties of the Internal Controls & Risks Committee
shall in any case cover all the risk and control matters
within the competence of the Board of Directors.

1. Plenary meetings: Duties of the Committee

The Internal Controls & Risks Committee shall, in its
plenary meetings:

a) support the Board of Directors in defining the guidelines
for the internal control system and periodically in assessing
the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the system,
by ensuring that all the main corporate risks are being
correctly identified and adequately measured, managed
and monitored;

b) examine the half-yearly situations and the annual
accounts (both of UniCredit S.p.A. stand-alone and
consolidated), based on the reports received from the
Manager in charge of drafting the corporate and financial
statements, also to verify the proper application and
consistency of accounting standards for the purposes of
the consolidated financial statements;

c) examine the guidelines for drawing up the annual
budget prepared by the competent function;

d) support the Board of Directors in determining criteria for
ensuring the compatibility of corporate risks with sound
and proper management of the Company (risk appetite);

e) support the Board of Directors in formalising policies for
the management of the risks to which the Group is
exposed and periodically reviewing them to ensure their
long-term effectiveness;

f) analyse periodical reports prepared by control functions
in respect of compliance with regulatory and legal
requirements;

g) assess the work carried out by the Group’s external
auditing firm(s) and the results set out in their report(s) and
Management letter(s);

h) analyse the reports on their activities made by the
management control coordination committees;

i) establish functional links with similar committees
Groupwide.

The Internal Controls & Risks Committee shall report on its
activities to the Board after each meeting, and at least
every six months, when it meets to approve the financial
statements and the interim reports, on the adequacy of the
internal control system.

2.1 Duties of the Internal Controls Sub-Committee

The Internal Controls Sub-Committee shall cover all
control matters, by:

j) overseeing the Compliance function to ensure that it
implements the compliance risk management policies
defined by the Board, and that the Internal Audit function
implements the Board’s guidelines in respect of conducting
third level controls;

k) assessing any remarks contained in the reports received
from the Internal Audit and Compliance functions, or from
the Board of Statutory Auditors of the companies
belonging to the Group, or from third party investigations
and/or analyses;

1) analysing Group guidelines for Audit activity, assessing
the adequacy of the annual audit plan prepared by the
Head of Internal Audit and, where necessary, requesting
that specific audits be performed;
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m) analysing Group guidelines on the matters within the
competence of Compliance and monitoring their adoption
and implementation;

n) analysing the periodical reports produced by the control
functions Internal Audit and Compliance, however not with
reference to legal and regulatory requirements;

0) assessing the qualitative and quantitative adequacy of
the organizational structure of the Compliance and Internal
Audit functions and requesting the head of each function to
propose changes to their respective organizations, to be
implemented, for Compliance, by the CEO and for Internal
Audit by the Head of Internal Audit, the latter’s proposals to
be accompanied by a non-binding opinion of the CEO,;

p) advising on the proposals made by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors on the appointment or replacement of
the heads of the Internal Audit and Compliance, as well as
the variable component of their compensation;

g) examine the quarterly situations.

2.2 Duties of the Risks Sub-Committee

The Risks Sub-Committee shall cover all risk matters, by:
r) examining the Group risk assessment;

s) supporting the Board of Directors in its oversight of the
actual functioning of the risk management and control
processes (in respect of credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk) in compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; and, with regard to credit risk,
assisting the Board of Directors in monitoring
concentration risk, by industry and individual names;

t) analyzing the periodical reports produced by the Risk
Management function, however not with reference to legal
and regulatory requirements.

The Related-Parties and Equity Investments Committee
shall comprise 3 members having the requisites of
independence as defined by the Corporate Governance
Code for listed companies and shall appoint a Chairman
from among them.

The Related-Parties and Equity Investments Committee
shall be called by its Chairman whenever deemed
necessary.

The membership of the Committee is the following:
Ms.Marianna Li Calzi (Chairman), Mr. Giovanni Quaglia
and Mr. Lorenzo Sassoli de Bianchi.

All the members of the Committee are independent
pursuant to Section 148, paragraph 3 of the Legislative
Decree no. 58 dated February 24, 1998, and fulfil all the
independency requirements established by the Corporate
Governance Code.

In 2014 the Related-Parties and Equity Investments
Committee held no. 16 meetings.

Duties

The Committee’s role is to provide advice and make
proposals. This Committee shall cover all related parties
transaction matters according to CONSOB Regulation no.
17221/2010 and connected subjects transaction matters
according to the Bank of Italy Circular 263/2006 (Title V,
Chapter 5), as well as non-financial equity investments in
compliance with the aforementioned Circular (Title V,
Chapter V) within the role allotted to the Independent
Directors by the aforesaid rules.

As far as the related parties and connected subjects
transactions are concerned, in particular:

- the Committee provides preventive opinions (as the
case may be, binding opinions) on procedures
whereby related parties and/or connected subjects
transactions are identified and managed in UniCredit
and Group Companies as well as on the relevant
changes thereof;

- the Committee provides preventive and grounded
opinions, when explicitly required, also on the interest
for the carrying out of the transaction with related
parties and/or connected subjects to be completed by
UniCredit and/or by Group Companies as well as on
their profitability and the intrinsic correctness of their
terms and conditions;

- when there are transactions of a greater relevance
with related parties and/or connected subjects, the
Committee is involved - if deemed advisable by the
Committee itself, through one or more members
appointed for the task - during the negotiation and the
preliminary phase by receiving a complete and timely
information flow, with the option to request
information and express comments to the delegated
bodies and to the persons charged with carrying on
the negotiations or the preliminary investigations.

A continuous monitoring of the procedures whereby
related parties and/or connected subjects transactions are
identified and managed must be ensured to the Committee
also in order for it to propose possible corrective actions.
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As far as the non-financial equity investments are
concerned, the Committee performs the role of assessing,
supporting and advising on matters of organization and on
the exercise of internal controls over the total activity of
acquiring and managing shareholdings in non-financial
companies, as well as general verification that the
activities carried out within the departments for such
shareholdings comply with strategic and management
directives.

a) Temporary replacement in case of conflict of interest

In respect of each individual transaction, Committee
members must be different from the counterparty, his/her
related parties and/or his/her connected subjects.

Should one Committee member be the counterparty (or
related/connected to the counterparty), he/she shall
promptly inform the Chairman of the Board of Directors
and the Committee Chairman and refrain from taking part
in the further business of the Committee in respect of the
relevant transaction. In this event the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, having gathered the opinion of the
Committee Chairman, shall replace the member who is in
conflict of interest without delay indicating, after having
contacted him/her, another member of the Board of
Directors in possession of the independence requirements
mentioned by the Corporate Governance Code for listed
companies, such that the Related-Parties and Equity
Investments Committee shall again be made up by three
non-related and non-connected as well as independent
members.

b)  Temporary replacement, for unavailability of the
members, in case of urgent transactions

In case of transactions whose execution is urgent and for
which the intervention of the Related-Parties and Equity
Investments Committee in the negotiation phase and the
initial inquiry as well as in the granting of the opinion is
required, the Committee Chairman — after having
acknowledged the urgency status of the transaction and
ascertained the unavailability of the majority or all the
members of the Committee to meet or, anyhow, to carry
out the activity required in time for the clinching of the
operation — promptly gives notice to the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of said unavailability.

In any case, the notification to the Chairman of the Board
of Directors must be made no later than the day following
that on which the Committee Chairman has received
notice of the unavailability of all or the majority of the
members.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors — after having
heard the opinion of the Chief Executive Officer about the
urgency status of the transaction — acts immediately to
reintroduce in the Committee the presence of three
independent Directors, following the same procedure
established with reference to temporary replacement in
case of a conflict of interest.

Referring to paragraphs a) and b), it is specified that:

- the substitutes must receive all the information
available in time ahead of the Committee meeting

called to express its opinion on the transaction in
question;

- the substitutes perform the duties assigned to them
until the approval procedure of the transaction in
which they have been involved is completed and the
relevant decisions taken within the Committee shall
be attributable to them.

The Corporate Governance, HR and Nomination
Committee is comprised of 9 directors, the majority of
whom shall be non-executive and independent. The
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are
members by right. The other members shall be chosen
based upon their expertise and willingness to accept the
office. The Chairman of the Committee is the Chairman of
the Board. In principle, Committee meetings shall be
scheduled on a monthly basis but may be called whenever
it is necessary to discuss a topic that falls within the scope
of the Committee’s duties. Committee meetings shall be
called by the Chairman.

In 2014, the Corporate Governance, HR and Nomination
Committee held no.9 meetings.

Duties

The Committee’s role is to provide advice and make
proposals. In particular, the Committee shall provide the
Board of Directors with opinions concerning proposals
formulated by the Chairman/CEO to the Board concerning:

a) the definition of UniCredit’s corporate governance
system, the corporate structure and governance
models/guidelines of the Group;

b) the definition of policies for appointing UniCredit
Directors and policies for the evaluation that the
Board of Directors must undertake at least once a
year on the size, composition and working of the
Board itself and its committees;

c) the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer,
General Manager, Deputy General Managers and
other Directors holding strategic responsibilities,
Senior Executive Vice Presidents, as well as other
Heads of Department reporting directly to the Chief
Executive Officer;

d) the definition of policies concerning the appointment
and succession planning of the Chief Executive
Officer, General Manager, Deputy General Managers
and other Directors holding strategic responsibilities,
Senior Executive Vice Presidents, Group
Management Team (Executive Vice Presidents) and
Leadership Team (Senior Vice Presidents);
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e) the definition of policies for appointing corporate
officers (members of the Board of Directors, Board of
Statutory Auditors, and Supervisory Board of Group
Companies);

f)  the appointment of corporate officers (members of the
Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors, and
Supervisory Board) of the Main Group Companies
(UniCredit Bank AG, UniCredit Bank Austria, Bank
Pekao, Mediobanca, Associazione Bancaria Italiana,
UniCredit Foundation and UniCredit & Universities);

g) the designation of candidates to the position of
director of UniCredit in the event of cooptation, and of
candidates to the position of independent director to
be submitted to the approval of the UniCredit
shareholders’ meeting, based also on
recommendations received from shareholders;

h)  the appointment of members of the UniCredit Board
Committees, upon the proposal of the Chairman.

The Corporate Governance, HR and Nomination
Committee shall also provide its advice on the compatibility
of the appointment of a Director of UniCredit as director,
manager or member of controlling bodies in a banking,
insurance or financial company (outside the UniCredit
Group) with his/her office held in UniCredit, also when the
fixed threshold to the maximum number of offices
determined by the Board of Directors is exceeded.

Furthermore, the Committee provides the Board with its
opinion - concerning proposals formulated by the
Chairman/CEO to the Board itself - concerning the
designation of candidates to the position of Director of
UniCredit in the event of co-optation, and candidates to the
position of independent Director to be submitted to the
approval of the UniCredit Shareholders’ Meeting, also
keeping account of any recommendations received from
shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee is comprised of 5 non-
executive directors, the majority of whom shall be
independent. The Chairman and Senior Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors are members by right. The other
members shall be chosen based upon their expertise and
willingness to accept the office. The Chairman of the
Committee is the Chairman of the Board. In principle,
Committee meetings shall be scheduled on a quarterly
basis, but may be called whenever it is necessary to
discuss a topic that falls within the scope of the
Committee’s duties. Committee meetings shall be called
by the Chairman.

In 2014, the Remuneration Committee held no. 6
meetings.

Duties

The Committee’s role is to provide advice and make
proposals. The main task of the Remuneration Committee
is to provide the Board of Directors with opinions
concerning proposals formulated by the CEO to the Board
concerning:

a) the remuneration of UniCredit Directors who hold
specific duties, and especially the remuneration of the
CEO;

b) the remuneration of UniCredit's Managing Director, in
the event that the Managing Director is also the CEO;

¢) the remuneration structure of the CEO, General
Manager and Deputy General Managers;

d) the remuneration policy for the Senior Executive Vice
Presidents, Group Management Team (Executive Vice

Presidents), Leadership Team (Senior Vice Presidents)
and Heads of Department reporting directly to the Chief
Executive Officer;

e) the approval of Group incentive plans based on financial
instruments;

f) the remuneration policy for corporate officers (members
of the Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors, and
Supervisory Board of Group Companies);

The proposals concerning the Chief Executive Officer that
the Committee will be called upon to express its opinion on
will be formulated by the Chairman.

The Committee members about whose remuneration the
Chairman must express his opinion in respect of their
specific positions, shall not attend meetings scheduled to
discuss the proposal concerning the aforesaid
remuneration.
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Board Committees

IC&RC O Remuneration CGHR&N Related-Parties Permanent
(attendance in Committee Committee and Equity Strategic
plenary session) Investments Committee
° Committee
Non Indep. as
Members Exec.
exec' per COde * *% * *% * *% * *% * *%
Vita Giseppe X 100% 100% C 100% C 100%
Fois Candido X 83.33%| M 83.33% M 100%
Calandra Buonaura o o
Vincenzo X M 100% M 100%
Cordero di Montezemolo X X M 33.33% M 27 27%
Luca
Palenzona Fabrizio X M 100% M 100%
Ghizzoni Federico X M 88.89% M 100%
Al Fahim Mohamed Al X X
Bischoff Manfred X X M 72.73%
Bochniarz Henryka X X 83.33%
Caltagirone Alessandro X X 66.67% M 44.44%
Giacomin Francesco X M 100%
Jung Helga X
Li Calzi Marianna X X 100% C 100%
Maramotti Luigi X X M 100% 88.89% M 90.91%
Quaglia Giovanni X X 100% M 100%
Reichlin Lucrezia X X M 66.67% M 72.73%
Sassoli de Bianchi Lorenzo X X M 100% M 100%
Wolfgring Alexander ) X X M 100% M 100%
Wyand Anthony X X C 100% M 88.89%
----- Members that left off during the Period -----
IC&RC: 12°
No. of meetings held during the Period (see for details RC: 6 CGHR&NC: 9 RP&EIC:16 PSC: 11
the “NOTE")
NoTE:
o The Internal Controls & Risks Committee carries out its duties either in plenary session or through (i) the Internal Controls Sub-Committee, (ii) the Risks

Sub-Committee. The Committee held no. 6 plenary sessions, 3 meetings of its Internal Controls Sub-Committee and 3 meetings of its Risks Sub-

Committee.

°) The percentage of the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the Internal Controls and Risks Sub-Committees during the Period was respectively as

follows:

- Internal Controls Sub-Committee: Mr. Wyand (C) 100%, Mr. Vita 100%, Mr. Fois 66.67%, Mr. Giacomin 100%, Ms. Li Calzi 100%, Mr. Sassoli de

Bianchi 100%;

- Risks Sub-Committee: Mr. Wyand (C) 100%; Mr. Vita 100%; Mr. Fois 100%; Mr. Maramotti 100%; Ms. Reichlin 100%; Mr. Wolfgring (100%).
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A “C” (Chairman) or an “M” (Member) in this column shows that the member of the Board of Directors belongs to the Committee and also indicates his/her
position
*x Meetings’ attendance percentage (number of meetings attended / number of meetings during the concerned party’s term of office with regard to the
Period)

(1)  Appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on May 11, 2013
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Board of Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the UniCredit Articles of Association the Ordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting appoints 5 Statutory Auditors, among
whom the Chairman, and 4 stand-in Statutory Auditors. Both
the Statutory Auditors and stand-in Statutory Auditors may be
re-elected.

Effective and stand-in members of the Board of Statutory
Auditors are appointed on the basis of a proportional
representation mechanism (voto di lista) in abidance by the
composition criteria regarding the appointment of the
Chairman of the Board by the minority shareholders and
according to the rules on the balance of genders envisaged by
Law no. 120/2011, as established by the UniCredit Articles of
Association, and in compliance with current legal provisions.
In detail, the candidate who has obtained the highest share of
votes among the candidates belonging to the slate that
obtained the highest number of votes among the minority
slates shall be elected by the Shareholders’ Meeting as
Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors.

Their term in office is three financial years and ends on the
date of the Shareholders’ Meeting called upon to approve the
financial statements for the third year of office.

Members of the Board of Statutory Auditors shall meet the
professional experience, integrity and independence requirements
laid down by law and they can hold administrative and control
appointments with other companies within the limits set by current
laws and regulations.

The Board of Statutory Auditors appointed by the Shareholders’
Meeting on May 11, 2013, for the financial years 2013 - 2015, and
in office until the date of the Shareholders' Meeting called upon to
approve the 2015 financial statements, consists of Mr. Maurizio
Lauri (Chairman), Mr. Giovanni Battista Alberti, Mr. Cesare Bisoni,
Mr. Enrico Laghi and Ms. Maria Enrica Spinardi (Statutory
Auditors). Therefore, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May
11, 2013 has appointed Ms. Federica Bonato, Mr. Paolo Domenico
Sfameni, Mr. Marco Lacchini and Ms. Beatrice Lombardini stand-in
Statutory Auditors. Mr. Marco Lacchini resigned from his office as
stand-in Statutory Auditors as of June 7, 2013 and afterwards the
Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 13, 2014 appointed
as stand-in Statutory Auditor, Mr. Pierpaolo Singer. The
appointment of Mr. Singer, has been resolved with the majorities
required by law, without applying the list vote system, in any case
abiding by the principles of the minority representation and gender
balance required by current provisions, also of a regulatory nature

Board of Statutory Auditors

In office Number of
- Slate Independent otr_n_ars
Position Members (M/m) % positions
. . as per Code
since until
* *k *kk
Chairman Lauri Maurizio 11-5-2013 _Apprpval of 2015 m X 100%
financial statements
Statutory Alberti Giovanni Approval of 2015 o
Auditor Battista 11-5-2013 financial statements M X 100%
Statutory S = Approval of 2015 o
Auditor Bisoni Cesare 11-5-2013 financial statements M X 100%
Statutory ] - . Approval of 2015 o
Auditor Laghi Enrico 11-5-2013 financial statements M X 72% 4
Statutory . . . . . Approval of 2015 o
Auditor Spinardi Maria Enrica 11-5-2013 financial statements m X 100% 1
Stand-in
. Approval of 2015
Statutory Bonato Federica 11-5-2013 financial statements M
Auditor
Stand-in .
Statutory Sfamem Paolo 11-5-2013 AApprlovaI of 2015 M 1
. Domenico financial statements
Auditor
Stand-in
- - = Approval of 2015
Statutory Lombardini Beatrice 11-5-2013 financial statements m
Auditor
Stand-in
. . s [N Approval of 2015 _
Statutory Singer Pierpaolo 13-5-2014 financial statements
Auditor
----- Statutory Auditors that Ieft off durlng the Perlod -
I
Quorum required for the submission of the slates for the latest appomtment 0. 5%
Number of meetings held during the financial year: 44
NoTE
* M = Member elected from the slate obtaining the relative majority of the Shareholders' votes
m = Member elected from the slate voted by a minority
hid Meetings’ attendance percentage (number of meetings attended / number of meetings during the concerned party’s term of office with
regard to the Period)
Fkk Number of positions as Director or Auditor held by the interested party pursuant to Section 148/bis of the TUF. A complete list of such
positions is published by the CONSOB on its website pursuant to Section 144/quinquiesdecies of the CONSOB Issuers Rules.
(€8] Appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on May 13, 2014
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Major Shareholders

On the basis of the results from the Shareholders Register, completed with the communications received according to Section
120 of the TUF and other information known to the Company, updated to December 31, 2014, the UniCredit major shareholders
(shareholders owning more than 2%) were as follows:

DECLARANT DIRECT SHAREHOLDER % OF % OF
ORDINARY VOTING
CAPITAL CAPITAL
International Petroleum Investment
Company Aabar Luxembourg S.a.r.l. 5.024% 5.024%
BlackRock Inc. 4.668% 4.668%
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, National o o
Association 0.962% 0.962%
BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Ltd 0.835% 0.835%
BlackRock Fund Advisors 0.788% 0.788%
BlackRock (Luxembourg) S.A. 0.537% 0.537%
BlackRock Asset Management Deutschland AG 0.526% 0.526%
BlackRock Life Limited 0.223% 0.223%
BlackRock Advisors, LLC 0.220% 0.220%
BlackRock Investment Management, LLC 0.126% 0.126%
BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd 0.108% 0.108%
BlackRock Fund Managers Limited 0.074% 0.074%
B_Ia(_:kRock Investment Management (UK) 0.074% 0.074%
Limited
Ishares (DE) Invag Mit Teilgesellschftsvermogen 0.036% 0.036%
BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited 0.034% 0.034%
BlackRock Asset Management Canada Limited 0.032% 0.032%
B_Ia<_:kR0ck Investment Management (Australia) 0.029% 0.029%
Limited
BlackRock International Limited 0.023% 0.023%
BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V. 0.022% 0.022%
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 0.016% 0.016%
BlackRock Capital Management Inc. 0.003% 0.003%
BlackRock Asset Management North Asia Ltd 0.0004% 0.0004%
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio Verona, | Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio Verona, o o
Vicenza, Belluno e Ancona Vicenza, Belluno e Ancona 3.459% 3.459%
Del Vecchio Leonardo Delfin S.a.r.l. 3.012% 3.012%

78 2014 Consolidated Reports and Accounts — UniCredit



Central Bank of Libya 2.922% 2.922%

Central Bank of Libya 2.639% 2.639%

Libyan Foreign Bank 0.283% 0.283%

Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Torino Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Torino 2.516% 2.516%

Carimonte Holding S.p.A. Carimonte Holding S.p.A. 2.115% 2.115%
SHARE CAPITAL (AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014) SHARES EURO
Total shares 5,865,778,463 19,905,773,742.24

Ordinary shares

5,863,329,150

19,897,461,892.29

Savings shares

2,449,313

8,311,849.95

Participation Rights

Eligible to attend Shareholders' Meetings are those who
hold voting rights and in respect of whom the Company
has received, from the broker holding the relevant
securities account, the notification within the deadline set
forth by applicable law (record date, i.e. seven market
trading days before the Shareholders’ Meeting date).

Those who hold voting rights may arrange to be
represented in the Shareholders’ Meeting, in compliance

with the provisions of the prevailing law.

UniCredit has always encouraged its shareholders to
exercise their participation and voting rights and; for that
reason, some time ago it adopted the Regulations governing
Shareholders’ Meetings to ensure their regular conduct.
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Consolidated Financial Statements | Consolidated Accounts

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Balance Sheet (€'000)
AMOUNTS AS AT

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS 12.31.2014 12.31.2013
10. Cash and cash balances 8,051,122 10,520,172
20. Financial assets held for trading 101,225,546 80,700,678
30. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 31,803,397 30,492,559
40. Available-for-sale financial assets 97,636,497 84,511,974
50. Held-to-maturity investments 2,583,911 4,353,105
60. Loans and receivables with banks 68,730,127 63,310,191
70. Loans and receivables with customers 470,568,766 483,684,047
80. Hedging derivatives 9,114,167 9,574,937
90. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) 2,873,397 2,815,054
100. Investments in associates and joint ventures 6,479,456 6,481,855
110. Insurance reserves attributable to reinsures - -
120. Property, plant and equipment 10,276,994 10,817,785
130. Intangible assets 5,561,533 5,326,550
of which: - goodwiill 3,561,531 3,533,100
140. Tax assets 15,771,739 18,215,136
a) current tax assets 1,472,027 1,329,195

b) deferred tax assets 14,299,712 16,885,941

out of which for purposes of L. 214/2011 11,182,084 13,145,129

150. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 3,599,748 3,928,350
160. Other assets 9,940,990 11,186,752
Total assets 844,217,390 825,919,145

Note:

The comparative figures as at December 31, 2013 were restated, compared to what had been recorded on that date:
- due to the effect of the new accounting standards IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 coming into effect, together with the revisions of IAS 27 and IAS 28 as
from January 1, 2014, with retroactive effect from January 1, 2013, as referred to in Part A — Accounting Policies under Section 5 — Other

Matters;

- due to the offsetting of the deferred tax assets, item 140 “Deferred tax assets” under Balance Sheet — Assets, with the relevant deferred tax

liabilities, item 80. b) “Deferred tax liabilities” under Balance Sheet — Liabilities;

- due to the change with one counterparty falling under a different sector, from the items "Loans and receivables with banks" to "Loans and

receivables with customers".
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Continued: Consolidated Balance Sheet

(€'000)
AMOUNTS AS AT

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2014 12.31.2013
10. Deposits from banks 106,036,913 107,829,653
20. Deposits from customers 410,411,985 393,113,026
30. Debt securities in issue 150,275,804 164,266,452
40. Financial liabilities held for trading 77,134,715 63,799,483
50. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 566,967 710,703
60. Hedging derivatives 8,621,943 8,629,006
70. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) 6,528,527 4,116,322
80. Tax liabilities 1,750,457 2,281,288
a) current tax liabilities 1,129,850 1,254,697

b) deferred tax liabilities 620,607 1,026,591

90. Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 1,650,458 2,128,617
100.0ther liabilities 16,600,851 18,481,124
110. Provision for employee severance pay 1,180,206 1,080,778
120. Provisions for risks and charges 10,623,012 9,427,008
a) post retirement benefit obligations 7,293,416 5,711,306

b) other reserves 3,329,596 3,715,702
130. Insurance reserves - -
140. Revaluation reserves (4,134,549) (2,449,077)
160. Equity instruments 1,888,463 -
170. Reserves 13,748,408 19,605,469
180. Share premium 15,976,604 23,879,202
190. Issued capital 19,905,774 19,654,856
200. Treasury shares (-) (2,795) (3,755)
210. Minorities (+/-) 3,445,819 3,333,822
220. Net profit (loss) for the year (+/-) 2,007,828 (13,964,832)
Total liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 844,217,390 825,919,145

Note:

The comparative figures as at December 31, 2013 were restated, compared to what had been recorded on that date:

- due to the effect of the new accounting standards IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 coming into effect, together with the revisions of IAS 27 and IAS 28
as from January 1, 2014, with retroactive effect from January 1, 2013, as referred to in Part A — Accounting Policies under Section 5 — Other
Matters;

- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the lItalian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had
already been authorised, from the item 120. b) “Provisions for risks and charges - Other reserves” to item 100 “Other liabilities” of the Balance
Sheet — Liabilities;

- due to the offsetting of the deferred tax assets, item 140 “Deferred tax assets” under Balance Sheet — Assets, with the relevant deferred tax

liabilities, item 80. b) “Deferred tax liabilities” under Balance Sheet — Liabilities;

- due to the change with one counterparty falling under a different sector, from the items “Deposits from banks” to “Deposits from customers”.
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Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Income Statement (€'000)
YEAR

ITEM 2014 2013
10. Interest income and similar revenues 21,741,871 22,647,214
20. Interest expenses and similar charges (9,680,036) (10,729,408)
30. Net interest margin 12,061,835 11,917,806
40. Fee and commission income 9,070,316 8,808,521
50. Fee and commission expense (1,585,239) (1,582,794)
60. Net fees and commissions 7,485,077 7,225,727
70. Dividend income and similar revenue 402,484 260,916
80. Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading 635,516 1,227,638
90. Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting (9,046) (17,127)
100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and repurchase of: 686,260 2,369,973

a) loans 16,953 (3,194)

b) available-for-sale financial assets 622,536 1,927,397

c) held-to-maturity investments 4,114 3,618

d) financial liabilities 42,657 442,152
110. Gains and losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 58,073 211,273
120. Operating income 21,320,199 23,196,206
130. Net losses/recoveries on impairment: (4,520,392) (13,643,631)

a) loans (4,178,413) (13,621,465)

b) available-for-sale financial assets (248,594) (146,600)

c) held-to-maturity investments (242) (466)

d) other financial assets (93,143) 124,900
140. Net profit from financial activities 16,799,807 9,552,575
150. Premiums earned (net) - 246
160. Other income (net) from insurance activities - (2,430)
170. Net profit from financial and insurance activities 16,799,807 9,550,391
180. Administrative costs: (13,772,539) (14,386,080)

a) staff expense (8,203,792) (9,005,384)

b) other administrative expense (5,568,747) (5,380,696)
190. Net provisions for risks and charges (384,385) (817,804)
200. Impairment/write-backs on property, plant and equipment (762,916) (842,434)
210. Impairment/write-backs on intangible assets (430,574) (2,693,712)
220. Other net operating income 1,224,845 1,129,529
230. Operating costs (14,125,569) (17,610,501)
240. Profit (loss) of associates 682,307 518,862
250. Gains and losses on tangible and intangible assets measured at fair value 3,491 (2,509)
260. Impairment of goodwill - (7,766,940)
270. Gains and losses on disposal of investments 319,359 (7,404)
280. Total profit or loss before tax from continuing operations 3,679,395 (15,318,101)
290. Tax expense (income) related to profit or loss from continuing operations (1,167,242) 2,495,402
300. Total profit or loss after tax from continuing operations 2,512,153 (12,822,699)
310. Profit (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations (124,126) (760,471)
320. Net profit or loss for the year 2,388,027 (13,583,170)
330. Minorities (380,199) (381,662)
340. Profit (Loss) for the year attributable to the Parent Company 2,007,828 (13,964,832)
Earnings per share (€) 0.344 (2.47)
Diluted earnings per share (€) 0.343 (2.46)

Note

The comparative figures at December 31, 2013 have been restated:
- due to the effect of the new accounting standards IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 coming into effect, together with the revisions of IAS 27 and IAS 28 as
from January 1, 2014, with retroactive effect from January 1, 2013, as referred to in Part A — Accounting Policies under Section 5 — Other
Matters;
- due to the reclassification of the contribution made to the lItalian Interbank Deposit Protection Fund (FITD), relating to movements that had
already been authorised, from item 190 “Net provisions for risks and charges” and from item 220 “Other net operating income” to item 130.d)
“Impairment losses on other financial transactions”.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (€'000)
YEAR

ITEMS 2014 2013
10. Net profit (loss) for the year 2,388,027 (13,583,170)
Other comprehensive income not reclassified to profit or loss

20. Property, plant and equipment - -
30. Intangible assets - -
40. Defined benefit plans (1,471,052) (210,915)
50. Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
60. Portion of revaluation reserves from investments valued at equity (2,943) -
Other comprehensive income after tax that may be reclassified to profit or loss

70. Hedges of foreign investments - -
80. Exchange differences (1,660,581) (161,022)
90. Cash flow hedges 106,205 (313,197)
100. Available-for-sale financial assets 1,071,362 704,114
110. Non-current assets classified as held for sale 1,458 (4,877)
120. Valuation reserves from investments accounted for using the equity method 272,385 (687,949)
130. Total other comprehensive income after tax (1,683,166) (673,846)
140. Comprehensive income (Item 10+130) 704,861 (14,257,016)
150. Consolidated comprehensive income attributable to minorities (365,820) (355,340)
160. Consolidated comprehensive income attributable to the Parent Company 339,041 (14,612,356)

Note:

Comprehensive income for 2013 differs from the figure disclosed in 2013 as a result of the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of the new IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and the revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS 28, applicable retroactively to January 1, 2013 as noted in Part A — Accounting Policies —

Section 5 — Other Matters.
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income include Group portion and minorities.

Statement of changes in Shareholders' Equity as at December 31, 2014
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Issued capital:
a) ordinary shares 20,050,370 20,050,370 -
b) othe shares 8,226 8,226 -
Share premiums 25,153,166 25,153,166 (7,782,902) -
Reserves:
a) from profits 14,470,061 14,470,061 (6,141,811) -
b) other 6,385,609 6,385,609 -
Revaluation reserves (2,424,618) (2,424,618) -
Advanced dividends - - -
Equity instruments - - -
Treasury shares (3,959) (3,959) -
Net profit or Loss for the period (13,583,170) (13,583,170) 13,924,713 (341,543)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 50,055,685 50,055,685 (341,543)
Shareholders' Equity Group 46,721,863 46,721,863 (4,043)
Shareholders' Equity minorities 3,333,822 3,333,822 (337,500)

Balances as at December 31, 2013 differ from the amounts disclosed at that date as a result of the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of the new
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and the revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS 28, applicable retroactively to January 1, 2013, which had a negative impact on the
Shareholders’ Equity as at December 31, 2013 (restated) amounting to €119 million, as noted in Part A - Accounting Policies - Section 5 - Other
Matters.

(1) The amounts disclosed in column “Stock Options” represent the effects of the delivery of shares (Stock Options, Performance Shares,
Discount and Matching Shares connected with the ESOP Plans and other Group Executive Incentive Plans).

The change in equity instruments refers to the issuance of Additional Tier 1 instruments.
The changes in equity interests refer to the effects deriving from the sale of 34.5% of FinecoBank S.p.A., which UniCredit continues to control.

Any discrepancies in this table and between data shown are solely due to the effect of rounding.
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(€ '000)

CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY TRANSACTIONS
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62,836 250,832 - - - - - - 69,024 - 20,433,062 19,897,462 535,600
- 86 - - - - - - - - 8,312 8,312 -
(147,563) - - - - - - - 667 - 17,223,368 15,976,604 1,246,764
(66,021) (250,918) - - (176,392) - - - 688,306 - 8,523,226 7,371,314 1,151,912
54,188 - - - - - - 63,199 969 - 6,503,965 6,377,094 126,871
(22,242) - -] - - -l - - -| (1,683,166) (4,130,026) (4,134,549) 4,523
- - - - - 1,888,463 - - - - 1,888,463 1,888,463 -
1,114 -1 -] - - -l - - - - (2,845) (2,795) (50)
- - - - - - - - - 2,388,027 2,388,027 2,007,828 380,199
(117,687) - - - (176,392) 1,888,463 - 63,199 758,966 704,861 52,835,552 49,389,733 3,445,819
(68,092) - - - (176,392) 1,888,463 - 63,199 625,694 339,041 49,389,733
(49,595) - - - - - - - 133,272 365,820 3,445,819
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Statement of changes in Shareholders' Equity as at December 31, 2013

ALLOCATION OF PROFIT FROM PREVIOUS
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S a
(=} w j=}
= S 5
hd < S
S = 3
o
o
z
5 g %
2 2 2
= [} [%]
< = < i} o
) < — 7] 3z
< T < w =
Js1] O o o o
Issued capital:
a) ordinary shares 20,052,977 - 20,052,977 - -
b) othe shares 8,226 - 8,226 - -
Share premiums 34,649,500 - 34,649,500 (219,783) -
Reserves:
a) from profits 11,002,058 (144,707) 10,857,351 1,131,106 -
b) other 84,882 - 84,882 - -
Revaluation reserves (1,767,269) 19,266 (1,748,003) - -
Advanced dividends - - - - -
Treasury shares (5,255) - (5,255) - -
Net profit or Loss for the period 1,222,532 - 1,222,532 (911,323) (311,209)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 65,247,651 (125,441) 65,122,210 - (311,209)
Shareholders' Equity Group 61,578,652 (125,441) 61,453,211 - (3,213)
Shareholders' Equity minorities 3,668,999 - 3,668,999 - (307,996)

Balances as at December 31, 2012 differ from the amounts disclosed at that date as a result of the introduction of the new IAS 19R, which had a
negative impact on the Shareholders’ Equity as at December 31, 2012 (restated) amounting to €1,205 million following the classification of net
actuarial losses (net of deferred tax items connected with them) in the revaluation reserves, as noted in Part A - Accounting Policies - Section 2 —
Preparation Criteria.

The “Change in opening balance” column includes the effects of the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of the new IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and the
revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS 28, applicable retroactively to January 1, 2013 as noted in Part A - Accounting Policies - Section 5 - Other
Matters.

The amounts disclosed in the “Comprehensive income” column include the effects of the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of the new IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and the revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS 28, applicable retroactively to January 1, 2013 as noted in Part A - Accounting Policies -
Section 5 - Other Matters.

The amounts disclosed in column “Stock Options” represent the effects of the delivery of shares (Stock Options, Performance Shares, Discount
and Matching Shares connected with the ESOP Plans and other Group Executive Incentive Plans).

The changes in equity interests refer to the effects deriving from the sale of 9.1% of Pekao S.A. S.p.A., which UniCredit continues to control.
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(€ '000)

CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY TRANSACTIONS
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(15,011) 6,907 - - - - - 5,497 - 20,050,370 19,646,630 403,740
- - - - - - - - - 8,226 8,226 -
(9,486,404) - - - - - - 209,854 - 25,153,166 23,879,202 1,273,964
2,323,397 (6,907) - - (512,535) - - - 677,649 - 14,470,061 13,338,601 1,131,460
6,277,694 - - - - - - 23,032 - - 6,385,609 6,266,868 118,741
(2,769) - - - - - - - - (673,846) (2,424,618) (2,449,077) 24,459
1,296 o I - -1 - - - - (3.959) (3.755) (204)
- - - - - - - - - | (13,583,170) (13,583,170) (13,964,832) 381,662
(901,797) - - - (512,535) - - 23,032 893,000 | (14,257,016) 50,055,685 46,721,863 3,333,822
(13,626) - - - (512,535) - - 23,032 387,350 | (14,612,356) 46,721,863
(888,171) - - - - - - - 505,650 355,340 3,333,822
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (indirect method) (€'000)
YEAR
2014 2013
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Operations 9,204,509 11,067,953
- profit and loss of the period (+/-) 2,007,828 (13,964,832)
- capital gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities held for trading and on
assets/liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss (+/-) (2,111,247) (808,012)
- capital gains/losses on hedging operations (+/-) 9,046 17,127
- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) 6,767,084 23,438,018
- net write-offs/write-backs on tangible and intangible assets (+/-) 1,189,999 3,538,655
- provisions and other incomes/expenses (+/-) (332,574) 380,874
- uncollected net premiums (-) - -
- other uncollected incomes and expenses from insurance activities (+/-) - 2,430
- unpaid taxes and tax credits (+/-) 953,392 (3,161,679)
- Impairment/write-backs on discontinued operations, net of tax (-/+) 278,494 940,246
- other adjustments (+) 442,487 685,126
2. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial assets (40,411,379) 43,515,214
- financial assets held for trading (19,215,676) 26,678,426
- financial assets at fair value (1,209,169) (5,349,632)
- available-for-sale financial assets (16,302,233) (13,548,330)
- loans and receivables with banks (10,226,724) 11,407,113
- loans and receivables with customers (524,112) 21,102,369
- other assets 7,066,535 3,225,268
3. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial liabilities 25,932,304 (50,448,740)
- deposits from banks 383,559 (7,136,141)
- deposits from customers 29,050,602 7,063,684
- debt certificates including bonds (10,714,141) (10,794,409)
- financial liabilities held for trading 14,010,609 (35,915,114)
- financial liabilities designated at fair value (168,516) (151,011)
- other liabilities (6,629,809) (3,515,749)
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by operating activities (5,274,566) 4,134,427
B. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
1. Liquidity generated by: 15,053,994 13,211,096
- sales of equity investments 833,054 261,009
- collected dividends on equity investments 193,310 240,066
- sales of financial assets held to maturity 13,043,371 11,898,909
- sales of tangible assets 380,850 238,726
- sales of intangible assets 1,255 2,414
- sales of subsidiaries and divisions 602,154 569,972
2. Liquidity absorbed by: (13,136,445) (13,060,546)
- purchases of equity investments (139,458) (438,895)
- purchases of financial assets held to maturity (11,378,664) (11,051,938)
- purchases of tangible assets (867,234) (929,234)
- purchases of intangible assets (682,089) (640,479)
- purchases of sales/purchases of subsidiaries and divisions (69,000) -
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by investment activities 1,917,549 150,550
C. FUNDING ACTIVITIES
- issue/purchase of treasury shares - -
- issue/purchase of equity instruments 1,888,463 -
- distribution of dividends and other scopes (611,623) (934,010)
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by funding activities 1,276,840 (934,010)
NET LIQUIDITY GENERATED / ABSORBED DURING THE PERIOD (2,080,177) 3,350,967
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Continued: Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (indirect method)

Reconciliation (€'000)
YEAR

2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 10,520,172 7,274,429

Net liguidity generated/absorbed during the period (2,080,177) 3,350,967

Cash and cash equivalents: effect of exchange rate variations (388,873) (105,224)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 8,051,122 10,520,172

Key:
(+) generated,;
(-) absorbed.

Item “Cash and cash equivalents” as at the beginning of 2013 differs by €295,569 thousand from the figure disclosed in December 2013 as a
result of both the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of the new IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and the revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS 28, applicable

retroactively to January 1, 2013

Item “Cash and cash equivalents” as at the beginning of 2014 differs by €287,730 thousand from the figure disclosed in December 2013 as a
result of the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of the new IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and the revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS 28, applicable retroactively

to January 1, 2013.
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Part A — Accounting Policies

A.1 — General

Section 1 — Statement of Compliance with IFRSs

These Consolidated Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), including the interpretation documents issued by the SIC and the IFRIC, and endorsed by the
European Commission up to December 31, 2014, pursuant to EU Regulation 1606/2002 which was incorporated into Italian
legislation through the Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28, 2005 (see Section 5 — Other matters).

They are an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements as required by art. 154-ter, paragraph 1, of the Single Finance Act
(TUF Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998).

In its circular 262 of December 22, 2005 and subsequent amendments the Bank of Italy — whose powers regarding the accounts
of banks and regulated financial companies, previously established under Legislative Decree 87/92, were confirmed in the
above mentioned Legislative Decree 58/98 — laid down the formats for the financial statements and explanatory notes used to
prepare these Accounts.

In addition, on December 22, 2014 the Bank of Italy issued a third revision to this circular incorporating the amendments to
IAS/IFRS, as endorsed by the European Commission, effective for reporting periods beginning on or after December 31, 2014.
For further information see Section 2 — Preparation Criteria and Part A.2 concerning the main items in the accounts.
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Section 2 — Preparation Criteria

As mentioned above, these Consolidated Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS endorsed by the
European Commission. The following documents have been used to interpret and support the application of IFRS, even though
not all of them have been endorsed by the European Commission:
. The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting;
. Implementation Guidance, Basis for Conclusions, IFRICs and any other documents prepared by the IASB or
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) supplementing the IFRS;
. Interpretative documents on the application of IFRS in ltaly prepared by the Organismo Italiano di Contabilita (OIC)
and Associazione Bancaria Italiana (ABI);
. ESMA (European Securities and Markets Authority) and Consob documents on the application of specific IFRS
provisions.

The Consolidated Accounts comprise the Balance Sheet, the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement (compiled using the indirect method) and the Notes to
the Accounts, together with the Directors’ Report on Operations and Annexes.

Pursuant to Art. 123-bis par. 3 of TUF, as noted in the Report on Operations, the Report on Corporate Governance and
Ownership Structures is available in the "Governance" section of the UniCredit website
(https://Iwww.unicreditgroup.eu/it/governance/system-policies/corporate-governance-report.html - Italian version and
https://www.unicreditgroup.eu/en/governance/system-policies/corporate-qgovernance-report.html - English version).

Figures in the financial statements and Notes to the Accounts are given in thousands of euros, unless otherwise specified.

In their joint Document no. 4 of March 3, 2010, the Bank of Italy, Consob and Isvap made a few observations on the current
situation of the markets and businesses and requested that information essential for a better understanding of business trends
and outlook be disclosed in financial reports.

In this regard, the Directors, in light of the positive result of the year and not having identified symptoms in the capital and
financial structure that could indicate uncertainty about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, believe with
reasonable certainty that the Group will continue to operate profitably in the foreseeable future; as a result, in accordance with
the provisions of IAS 1, the consolidated accounts as at December 31, 2014 were prepared on a going concern basis.

The measurement criteria adopted are therefore consistent with the above mentioned assumption and with the principles of
accrual based accounting, the relevance and materiality of accounting information, and the prevalence of economic substance
over legal form. These criteria have not changed with respect to the previous year, except for the modifications described in
section A.2 “The Main Items of the Accounts” relating to the introduction of new standards and interpretations.

Third revision of December 22, 2014 to Bank of Italy circular 262/2005
In application of the above-mentioned third revision to Bank of Italy circular 262/2005, the financial statements and the tables
included in the Notes to the accounts have incorporated the new aspects concerning disclosure, introduced by International
Financial Reporting Standard 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities". Additionally, disclosure pursuant to Part F of the
Notes, " Shareholders’ Equity”, Section 2 "Own funds and regulatory ratios" was modified to take into consideration the new
aspects introduced by Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 (the
"CRR") and Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 (the "CRD IV").
As concerns IFRS 12, the main innovations introduced relate to disclosure of:
. the "significant judgements and assumptions" used to determine whether an entity has exclusive control, joint control
or significant influence over another entity;
. the group structure;
. the subsidiaries with significant minority interests;
. the significant restrictions to the possible use of assets or of liquidating the liabilities of the subsidiaries;
. the nature and risks connected with consolidated structured entities (such as special purpose vehicles);
. the consequences of changes in interests with regard to subsidiaries that may or may not entail a loss of control;
. joint ventures or companies subject to a significant influence, important for the intermediary preparing the financial
statements;
. the nature and extent of interests in unconsolidated structured entities and on the related risks.

Details are also requested of the performing loans which banking intermediaries agree to renegotiate for customers
experiencing financial difficulties, in addition to further information on the liquidity risk and fair value of derivatives.
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Risk and uncertainty related to the use of estimates

Under the IFRS, management must make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
principles and the amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses reported in the accounts, as well as the disclosure
concerning potential assets and liabilities. Estimates and related assumptions are based on previous experience and other
factors considered reasonable under the circumstances and have been used to estimate the carrying values of assets and
liabilities not readily available from other sources.

Estimated figures have been used for the recognition of some of the largest value-based items in the Consolidated Accounts at
December 31, 2014, as required by the accounting policies and regulations described above. These estimates are largely based
on calculations of future recoverability of the values recognized in the accounts according to the rules laid down in current
legislation and have been made on the assumption of a going concern, i.e. without contemplating the possibility of the forced
sale of the estimated items.

The processes adopted confirm the carrying values at December 31, 2014. Valuation is particularly difficult because of the
uncertainty in the macroeconomic and market environment.

The parameters and information used to check the above-mentioned values were therefore significantly affected by such
factors, which could change rapidly in ways that are currently unforeseeable, such that further effects on future carrying values
cannot be ruled out.

Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from these reviews are recognized in the period in
which the review was carried out, provided the change only concerns that period. If the revision concerns both current and
future periods it is recognized accordingly in both current and future periods.

Uncertainty affecting estimates is generally inherent in the measurement of:

. fair value of financial instruments not listed in active markets;

. loans and receivables, investments and, in general, any other financial assets/liabilities;

. severance pay (Italy) and other employee benefits;

. provisions for risks and charges and contingent assets (for more information on legal risks see Part E — Section 4) ;

. goodwill and other intangible assets;

. assets and liabilities related to insurance contracts;

. deferred tax assets;

. property held for investment
whose assessment may significantly change over time according to the trend in: domestic and international socio-economic
conditions and subsequent impact on the Bank’s profitability and customers’ creditworthiness; financial markets which affect
changes in interest rates, prices and actuarial assumptions; real estate market affecting the value of property owned by the
Bank or received as collateral.

Please note that the economic and political uncertainty in Ukraine and Russia were taken into account during the assessment of
the net assets owned by the Group in these Countries. Please see Part E — Information on risks and related risk management
policies — Section 5 — Other Aspects — Selected emerging risks.

With specific reference to future cash flow projections used in the valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets, it should be
noted that the parameters and information used are significantly influenced by the macro-economic market situation, which may
change in unpredictably. For further information see Part B — Consolidated Balance Sheet — Section 13 — Intangible assets.

With specific reference to valuation techniques, unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement and sensitivities to
changes in those inputs, please refer to section A.4. Information on fair value.
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Section 3 — Consolidation Procedures and Scope

The consolidation criteria and principles used to prepare the consolidated accounts at December 31, 2014 are described below.

Consolidated Accounts
For the preparation of the Consolidated Accounts the following sources have been used:

. UniCredit S.p.A. Accounts (draft) at December 31, 2014;

. the accounts as at December 31, 2014, approved by the competent bodies and functions, of the other fully
consolidated subsidiaries, duly reclassified and adjusted to take account of consolidation needs and, where
necessary, to align them to the Group accounting principles;

. the sub-consolidated Accounts of Compagnia Italpetroli Group including Compagnia Italpetroli S.p.A. and its direct
and indirect subsidiaries, at December 31, 2014.

Amounts in foreign currencies are converted at closing exchange rates in the balance sheet, whereas the average exchange
rate for the year is used for the income statement.

The accounts and explanatory notes of the main fully consolidated subsidiaries prepared under IFRS are subject to audit by
leading audit companies.

Subsidiaries

Entities, including structured entities, over which the Group has direct or indirect control, are considered subsidiaries. Control
over an entity entails the Group's ability to exercise power in order to influence the variable returns to which the Group is
exposed through its relationship with them.

In order to verify the existence of control, the Group considers the following factors:

. the purpose and establishment of the investee in order to identify which are the entity's objectives, the activities that
determine its returns and how these activities are governed;

. the power in order to understand whether the Group has contractual rights that attribute the ability to govern the
relevant activities; to this end only substantial rights that provide practical ability to govern are considered;

. the exposure held in relation to the investee in order to assess whether the Group has relations with the investee, the
returns of which are subject to changes depending on the investee's performance;

. the existence of potential “principal — agent” relationships.

If the relevant activities are governed through voting rights, the existence of control is verified considering the voting rights held,
including the potential ones, and the existence of any shareholders' or other agreements which attribute the right to control the
majority of the voting rights, to appoint the majority of the governing body or in any case the power to determine the entity's
financial and operating policies.

Subsidiaries may also include any “structured entity” in which the voting rights are not significant for establishing control,
including special purpose entities and investment funds.

In the case of structured entities, the existence of control is ascertained considering both the contractual rights that enable
governance of the relevant activities of the entity (or those that contribute most to the results) and the Group's exposure to the
variability of returns deriving from these activities.

The carrying amount of an equity interest in a fully consolidated entity held by the Parent Company or another Group company
is eliminated — against the recognition of the assets and liabilities of the investee — as an offsetting entry to the corresponding
portion of net equity of the subsidiary attributable to the Group.
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Intragroup balances, the off-balance sheet transactions, the income and expenses, and the gain/losses between consolidated
companies are eliminated in full, according to the method of consolidation adopted.

A subsidiary’s income and expenses are included in the consolidation from the date the Parent acquires the control. On disposal
of a subsidiary, its income and expenses are consolidated up to the date of the disposal, i.e. until the Parent ceases to control
the subsidiary. The difference between the consideration received of the subsidiary and the carrying amount of its net assets at
the same date is recognised in the Income Statement under item 270 “Gains (Losses) on the disposal of investments” for fully
consolidated companies.

The portion attributable to non-controlling interests is presented in the Balance Sheet under item 210 “Minorities”, separately
from the liabilities and net equity attributable to the Group. In the Income Statement, the portion attributable to minorities is also
presented separately under item 330 “Minorities”.

With respect to companies included in the consolidation scope for the first time, the fair value of the cost paid to obtain control of
this equity interest, including ancillary expenses, is measured at the acquisition date.

The difference between the consideration received of an interest held in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of the net assets
is recognised in the Net Equity, if the sale does not entail loss of control.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is a contractual agreement under the terms of which two or more counterparties arrange to jointly control an
entity.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when the decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

According to the standard IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements, such agreements must be classified as Joint Operations or Joint
Ventures according to the contractual rights and obligations held by the Group.

A Joint Operation is a joint arrangement in which the parties have rights on the assets and obligations with respect to the
liabilities of the arrangement.
A Joint Venture is a joint arrangement in which the parties have rights on the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of the joint arrangements and has determined that its jointly controlled equity investments
are of the Joint Venture type. These equity investments are recognised using the equity method.

Associates
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and which are not subsidiaries or joint ventures.
Significant influence is presumed when the investor:
. holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the share capital of another entity, or
. is able, also through shareholders' agreements, to exercise significant influence through:
0 representation on the governing body of the company;
0 participation in the policy-making process, including participation in decisions about dividends or other
distributions;
o the existence of significant transactions;
o interchange of managerial personnel;
o  provision of key technical information.

It is to be pointed out that only companies which are governed through voting rights can be classified as subject to significant
influence. Investments in associates are recognised using the equity method.

Equity Method
Equity investments in companies measured using the equity method include the goodwill (less any impairment loss) paid to

purchase them. The investor’s share of the profit and loss of the investee after the date of acquisition is recognised in the
Income Statement under item 240 “Profit (Loss) of associates”. Any dividends distributed reduce the carrying amount of the
equity investment.

If the investor’s share of an investee’s losses is equal to or greater than its carrying amount, no further losses are recognised,
unless the investor has incurred specific obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Gains and losses on transactions with associates or joint arrangements are eliminated according to the percentage interest in
the said company.

Any changes in the revaluation reserves of associates or joint arrangements, which are recorded as a contra item to changes in
value of the phenomena relevant to this purpose, are reported separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The following table shows the companies included in the scope of consolidation.
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1.

Investments in Subsidiaries

OWNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP

TYPE
OF
RELA VOTIN
TION G
ADMINISTRA MAIN SHIP HOLDIN RIGHTS
NAME TIVE OFFICE OFFICE 1) HELD BY G % % (2)
1  UNICREDIT SPA MILAN ROME HOLDING
Issued capital EUR 19,905,773,742.24
2 A&T-PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 GRUNDSTUCKSAKTIENGESELLSCHA 100.00
& CO. POTSDAMER PLATZ BERLIN FT AM POTSDAMER PLATZ (HAUS
KG VATERLAND)
Issued capital EUR 613,550
3 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND 1.89
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
CO. OBERBAUM CITY KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN- UND 100.00 98.11
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
4 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 A&T-PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH 100.00 98.11
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & & CO. POTSDAMER PLATZ BERLIN
CO. PARKKOLONNADEN KG KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND 1.89
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
5  ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND 1.89
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
CO. STUTTGART
KRONPRINZSTRASSE KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00 98.11
MBH & CO KG
6 ACTIVE ASSET MANAGEMENT GMBH GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 50,000
7  AGROB IMMOBILIEN AG ISMANING ISMANING 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 52.72 75.02
MBH & CO KG
Issued capital EUR 10,000,000
8  AIBETEILIGUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
9  ALEXANDA GV GMBH & Co. WIESBADEN WIESBADEN 4 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH 3)
VERMIETUNGS KG
Issued capital EUR 5,000
10  ALINT 458 BAD HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG HOMBURG
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 25,565
11 ALLEGRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 3,576,202 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
12 ALLIB LEASING S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
13 ALLIB NEKRETNINE D.O.O. ZA ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
POSLOVANJE NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital HRK 20,000
14 ALLIB ROM S.R.L. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING 0.02
IFN S.A.
Issued capital RON 680,000 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION 99.98
IFN S.A.
15  ALMS LEASING GMBH. SALZBURG VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,337
16  ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. GEORGE GEORGE 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
TOWN TOWN
Issued capital EUR 798
17 ALTUS ALPHA PLC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
18 ALV IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)

THE GROUP
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OWNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP

TYPE
OF
RELA VOTIN
TION G
ADMINISTRA MAIN SHIP HOLDIN RIGHTS
NAME TIVE OFFICE OFFICE (1) HELD BY G % % (2)
19 AMBASSADOR PARC DEDINJE D.O.O. BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UCTAM D.O.0. BEOGRAD 100.00
BEOGRAD
Issued capital RSD 2,715,063
20  ANTARES IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
21 ANTUS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 90.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
22 AO UNICREDIT BANK MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital RUR 41,787,805,174
23 ARABELLA FINANCE LTD DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG ®3)
24 ARANY PENZUEGY! LIZING ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 60,000,000
25  ARENA NPL ONE S.R.L. VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT [€©))
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE 2014) BANK SPA
26 ARGENTAURUS IMMOBILIEN- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
VERMIETUNGS- UND VERWALTUNGS
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
27 ARNO VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
28 ARRONDA MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,500
29  ARTIST MARKETING VIENNA VIENNA 1 MY BETEILIGUNGS GMBH 100.00
ENTERTAINMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 50,000
30 ATLANTERRA MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 90.00
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000
31 AUFBAU DRESDEN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 260,000
32 AUSTRIA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 0.40
LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.40 99.60
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
33 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL 100.00
M.B.H. REALITAETEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 2,906,913
34 B 03 IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO KG VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 100.00
IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,000 VECTIGAL IMMOBILIEN GMBH .
35 BA| BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 0.25
IMMOBILIEN GMBH BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 730,000 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 99.75
36  B.l. INTERNATIONAL LIMITED GEORGE GEORGE 1 TRINITRADE 100.00
TOWN TOWN VERMOGENSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT MIT
BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 792
37 BA ALPINE HOLDINGS, INC. WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
N N
Issued capital USD 74,435,918
38 BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 5,630,000
39 BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH & CO VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH 99.90
BETA VERMIETUNGS OG
Issued capital EUR 1,000 MY DREI HANDELS GMBH 0.10

108 2014 Consolidated Reports and Accounts — UniCredit




OWNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP

TYPE
OF
RELA VOTIN
TION G
ADMINISTRA MAIN SHIP HOLDIN RIGHTS
NAME TIVE OFFICE OFFICE 1) HELD BY G % % (2)
40 BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE PRAHA, PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 BA BETRIEBSOBJEKTE GMBH 100.00
SPOL.S.R.O.
Issued capital CZK 100,000
41  BA CA LEASING (DEUTSCHLAND) BAD BAD 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 94.90 100.00
GMBH HOMBURG HOMBURG
Issued capital EUR 153,388 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 5.10 (4)
THE GROUP
42 BA CA SECUND LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
43  BA CREDITANSTALT BULUS EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 HVB LEASING EOOD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 6,250,000
44  BA EUROLEASE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT GMBH
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 363,364
45 BA GEBAEUDEVERMIETUNGSGMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA GVG-HOLDING GMBH 70.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336
46 BA GVG-HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 18,168
47  BA IMMO GEWINNSCHEIN FONDS1 VIENNA VIENNA 4 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 3)
48  BA PRIVATE EQUITY GMBH IN LIQU. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,200,000
49  BA-CA ANDANTE LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
50  BA-CA FINANCE (CAYMAN) Il LIMITED GEORGE GEORGE 1 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. 100.00
TOWN TOWN
Issued capital EUR 15,000
51 BA-CA FINANCE (CAYMAN) LIMITED GEORGE GEORGE 1 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. 100.00
TOWN TOWN
Issued capital EUR 15,000
52 BA-CA LEASING DREI GARAGEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 99.80 100.00
GMBH LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
53 BA-CA LEASING MAR IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
54  BA-CA LEASING MODERATO D.O.O. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 8,763
55  BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 127,177
56 BA-CA PRESTO LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
57  BA-CAWIEN MITTE HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
58  BA/CA-LEASING BETEILIGUNGEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GMBH GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 454,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
59  BACA CENA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
60 BACA CHEOPS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)

THE GROUP
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TYPE
OF
RELA VOTIN
TION G
ADMINISTRA MAIN SHIP HOLDIN RIGHTS
NAME TIVE OFFICE OFFICE 1) HELD BY G % % (2)
61 BACA HYDRA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
62 BACA KOMMUNALLEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
63 BACA LEASING ALFA S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 110,000
64 BACA LEASING CARMEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
65  BACA LEASING GAMA S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 110,000
66  BACA LEASING UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 98.80 99.00
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 21,936,492 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
67 BACA NEKRETNINE DRUSTVO SA BANJA LUKA SARAJEVO 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
OGRANICENOM ODGOVORNOSCU
Issued capital BAM 31,263
68  BACA-LEASING AQUILA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
69 BACA-LEASING GEMINI BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
70  BACA-LEASING OMIKRON BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSTO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
71 BACAL ALPHA DOO ZA POSLOVANJE ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital HRK 20,000
72  BACAL BETA NEKRETNINE D.O.O. ZA ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
POSLOVANJE NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital HRK 100,000
73 BAI VIENNA VIENNA 1 B A| BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 99.90
WOHNUNGSEIGENTUMSGESELLSCH IMMOBILIEN GMBH
AFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 73,000 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 0.10
BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
74  BAL CARINA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
75  BAL DEMETER IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GMBH UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
76 BAL HESTIA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
77  BAL HORUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GMBH GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)

THE GROUP
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78 BAL HYPNOS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GMBH GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
79 BAL LETO IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GMBH UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
80 BAL OSIRIS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
81  BAL SOBEK IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GMBH UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
82 BALEA SOFT GMBH & CO. KG HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 500,000
83 BALEA SOFT HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 50,000
84  BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING IMMOBILIENANLAGEN GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
85  BANK AUSTRIA FINANZSERVICE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 490,542
86 BANK AUSTRIA HUNGARIA BETA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
LEASING KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
87  BANK AUSTRIA IMMOBILIENSERVICE VIENNA VIENNA 1 PLANETHOME AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 70,000
88  BANK AUSTRIA LEASING ARGO VIENNA VIENNA 1 WOEM 99.80 100.00
IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
89  BANK AUSTRIA LEASING HERA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
90  BANK AUSTRIA LEASING IKARUS VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
91  BANK AUSTRIA LEASING MEDEA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
92 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST CLIENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST 100.00
INVESTMENT GMBH IMMOBILIEN-MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 145,500
93 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST 100.00
IMMOBILIEN-KAPITALANLAGE GMBH IMMOBILIEN-MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
94  BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 94.95
IMMOBILIEN-MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,900,500
95  BANK AUSTRIA WOHNBAUBANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00

Issued capital EUR 18,765,944
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96 BANK PEKAO SA WARSAW WARSAW 1 UNICREDIT SPA 50.10
Issued capital PLN 262,470,034
97 BANKHAUS NEELMEYER AG BREMEN BREMEN 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 12,800,000
98 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH EMDEN EMDEN 4 BARD HOLDING GMBH 3)
Issued capital EUR 100,098
99  BARD HOLDING GMBH EMDEN EMDEN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG [€©))
Issued capital EUR 25,000
100 BAREAL IMMOBILIENTREUHAND VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 50.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 50.00
101  BARODA PIONEER ASSET MUMBAI MUMBAI 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 51.00
MANAGEMENT COMPANY LTD MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital INR 880,440,640
102 BARODA PIONEER TRUSTEEE MUMBAI MUMBAI 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 51.00
COMPANY PVT LTD MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital INR 500,000
103 BAULANDENTWICKLUNG GDST VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 1.00
1682/8 GMBH & CO OEG
CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.00
104  BAVARIA SERVICOS DE SAO PAULO SAO PAULO 1 UNICREDIT DELAWARE INC 0.47
REPRESENTACAO COMERCIAL
LTDA.
Issued capital BRL 351,531 UNICREDIT SPA 99.53
105 BDK CONSULTING LLC LUCK LUCK 1 PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY 100.00
UKRSOTSBANK
Issued capital UAH 0
106  BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA GMBH
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
107 BF NINE HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 ALLEGRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
108 BIL IMMOBILIEN FONDS GMBH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN- 94.78 93.87
OBJEKT PERLACH KG VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 5,125,701 WEALTHCAP LEASING GMBH 5.22 5.14
109  BIL LEASING-FONDS GMBH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 BIL LEASING-FONDS VERWALTUNGS- 33.33
VELUM KG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 2,556 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00 33.33
110  BIL LEASING-FONDS MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
VERWALTUNGS-GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
111 BLUE CAPITAL EUROPA IMMOBILIEN HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 90.91
GMBH & CO. ACHTE OBJEKTE
GROSSBRITANNIEN KG
Issued capital EUR 5,500 WEALTHCAP 9.09
INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH
112  BORGO DI PEROLLA SRL MASSA MASSA 1 FONDIARIA LASA SPA 100.00
MARITTIMA MARITTIMA
Issued capital EUR 2,043,952
113 BREWO VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
114 BUCHSTEIN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG GMBH
UND CO OG
Issued capital EUR 18,168
115 BUITENGAATS HOLDING B.V. EEMSHAVEN EEMSHAVEN 4 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH 3)
Issued capital EUR 18,000
116 BULBANK LEASING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 2,050,000
117 BV GRUNDSTUCKSENTWICKLUNGS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00

GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
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118 BV GRUNDSTUCKSENTWICKLUNGS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
GMBH & CO. VERWALTUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 511,292
119  CA-LEASING DELTA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
120 CA-LEASING EPSILON BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
121 CA-LEASING EURO, S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
122 CA-LEASING KAPPA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
123 CA-LEASING OMEGA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
124  CA-LEASING OVUS S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
125  CA-LEASING SENIOREN PARK GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 99.80 100.00
LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
126 CA-LEASING ZETA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
127 CABET-HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 290,909
128 CABO VIENNA VIENNA 1 CABET-HOLDING GMBH 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
129  CAC REAL ESTATE, S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 110,000
130 CAFU VERMOEGENSVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 SCHOELLERBANK 100.00
GMBH & CO OG AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 6,719,227
131  CAL-PAPIER INGATLANHASZNOSITO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
KORLATOLT FELELOESSEGUE M.B.H.
TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
132 CALG 307 MOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 98.80 99.00
LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 90,959 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
133 CALG 443 VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 98.80 99.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 1.00
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
134  CALG 445 VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.60 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,168 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.40 (4)

THE GROUP
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135 CALG 451 VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
136 CALG ALPHA VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
137 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 55,945,753 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
138 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH & MUNICH MUNICH 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.90
CO GRUNDSTUECKVERMIETUNG
UND -VERWALTUNG KG
Issued capital EUR 2,326,378
139  CALG DELTA VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 13,318,789 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
140  CALG GAMMA VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
141  CALG GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 74.80 75.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
142 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
Issued capital EUR 41,384,084 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
143 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
CO. 1050 WIEN,
SIENBENBRUNNENGASSE 19-21 OG
Issued capital EUR 300 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
144 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
CO. 1120 WIEN, SCHOENBRUNNER
SCHLOSSSTRASSE 38-42 OG
Issued capital EUR 300 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
145  CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
CO. PROJEKT ACHT OG
Issued capital EUR 300 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
146 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
CO. PROJEKT VIER OG
Issued capital EUR 300 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
147 CALG MINAL VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,286 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
148 CAMPO DI FIORI S.R.L. ROME ROME 1 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
149  CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)

(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : BIPCA
CORDUSIO RMBS)
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150 CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CAPITAL
MORTGAGE 2007 - 1)
151  CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 50.10
Issued capital EUR 6,000,000
152 CARDS & SYSTEMS EDV- VIENNA VIENNA 1 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG 5.00
DIENSTLEISTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 75,000 DC BANK AG 1.00
UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 52.00
153  CDM CENTRALNY DOM MAKLERSKI WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
PEKAO SA
Issued capital PLN 56,331,898
154 CEAKSCH VERWALTUNGS G.M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 100.00
BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
155 CENTAR KAPTOL DOO ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 46,830,400
156 CENTER HEINRICH-COLLIN- VIENNA VIENNA 4 BA IMMO GEWINNSCHEIN FONDS1 3)
STRASSE1 VERMIETUNGS GMBH
U.CO KG
157  CENTRUM BANKOWOSCI KRAKOW KRAKOW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
BEZPOSREDNIEJ SPOLKA Z
OGRANICZONA
ODPOWIEDZIALNOSC
Issued capital PLN 500,000
158  CENTRUM KART SA WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
Issued capital PLN 26,782,648
159  CHARADE LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
160 CHEFREN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
161  CIVITAS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
162 COFIRI S.P.A. IN LIQUIDAZIONE ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT 100.00
BANK SPA
Issued capital EUR 6,910,151
163 COMMUNA - LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 REAL-LEASE 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGSGES GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
ELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
164  COMPAGNIA FONDIARIA ROMANA - ROME ROME 1 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL 87.50
SOCIETA' A RESPONDABILITA'
LIMITATA
Issued capital EUR 103,400 SOCIETA' VERONESE GESTIONE 12.50
COMPRAVENDITA IMMOBILI A R.L.
165  COMPAGNIA ITALPETROLI S.P.A. ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 200,000
166 CONSORZIO QUENIT VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT BUSINESS INTEGRATED 55.00
SOLUTIONS SOCIETA CONSORTILE
PER AZIONI
Issued capital EUR 10,000
167  CONSUMER ONE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)

(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CONSUMER
ONE)
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168 CONSUMER TWO SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CONSUMER
TWO)
169 CONTRA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 JAUSERN-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT 25.00
M.B.H.
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
170  CORDUSIO RMBS - UCFIN SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CORDUSIO
RMBS UCFIN - SERIE 2006)
171 CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA )
SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE :
CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION -
SERIE 2006)
172 CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA )
SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE :
CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION -
SERIE 2007)
173 CORDUSIO RMBS SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CORDUSIO
RMBS)
174  CORDUSIO SIM - ADVISORY & MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
FAMILY OFFICE SPA
Issued capital EUR 120,000
175 CORDUSIO SOCIETA' FIDUCIARIA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
PER AZIONI
Issued capital EUR 520,000
176 CORIT - CONCESSIONARIA ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT 60.00
RISCOSSIONE TRIBUTI S.P.A. IN BANK SPA
LIQUIDAZIONE
Issued capital EUR 1,243,732
177  CRIVELLI SRL MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000
178  CUMTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
179 CUXHAVEN STEEL CONSTRUCTION CUXHAVEN CUXHAVEN 4 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH 3)
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
180 DBCSP.Z0.0. WARSAW WARSAW 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL 100.00
REALITAETEN GMBH
Issued capital PLN 50,000
181 DC BANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.94
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
182  DC ELEKTRONISCHE VIENNA VIENNA 1 KSG KARTEN-VERRECHNUNGS- UND 100.00
ZAHLUNGSSYSTEME GMBH SERVICEGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
183  DEBO LEASING IFN S.A. BUCHAREST  BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING 0.01
IFN S.A.
Issued capital RON 724,400 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION 99.99
IFN S.A.
184  DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH &
CO. GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT
ALPHA MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital EUR 255,650
185 DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00

PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH &
CO. GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT
BETA MANAGEMENT KG

Issued capital EUR 255,650
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186 DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH &
CO. GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT
GAMMA MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital EUR 255,650
187 DINERS CLUB CS, S.R.O. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 DC BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 829,848
188  DINERS CLUB POLSKA SP.Z.0.0. WARSAW WARSAW 1 DC BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital PLN 7,500,000
189 DIRANA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL 100.00
LIEGENSCHAFTSVERWERTUNGSGE REALITAETEN GMBH
SELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 17,500
190 DLV IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
191  DOBLERHOF IMMOBILIEN GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 100.00
COKG GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 10,000
192  DOM INWESTYCYJNY XELION SP. Z WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 50.00
0.0.
Issued capital PLN 60,050,000 UNICREDIT SPA 50.00
193 DOMUS CLEAN REINIGUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BUSINESS INTEGRATED 100.00
SOLUTIONS AUSTRIA GMBH
Issued capital EUR 17,500
194 DONAUMARINA VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
195 DONAUTURM AUSSICHTSTURM-UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 95.00
RESTAURANT-
BETRIEBSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 880,000
196 DONAUTURM VIENNA VIENNA 1 EKAZENT 94.85
LIEGENSCHAFTSVERWALTUNGS- REALITAETENGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 1,820,000
197  DR.W.W.DONATH VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 100.00
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 37,000
198  DUODEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
199 DV ALPHA GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
200 DV BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGS VIENNA VIENNA 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
201  EKAZENT GEBAEUDEVERMIETUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 0.06
GMBH BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 1,310,000 EKAZENT 99.94
REALITAETENGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
202 EKAZENT IMMOBILIEN MANAGEMENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
203 EKAZENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT
REALITAETENGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 4,370,000 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 99.99
204  ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 32 S.A. LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
G G
205  ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 33 LIMITED DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
206  ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 34 LIMITED DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
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207 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 35 LIMITED DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
208 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 36 LIMITED DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
209 ELEKTRA PURCHASE No. 17 S.A. - LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
COMPARTMENT 2 G G
210 ELEKTRA PURCHASE No. 28 LTD DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
211 ELEKTRA PURCHASE No. 31 LTD DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
212 ELEKTRA PURCHASE No. 911 LTD ST. HELIER ST. HELIER 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
213  ENDERLEIN & CO. GMBH BIELEFELD BIELEFELD 1 PLANETHOME AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 27,000
214  ENTASI SRL ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,200
215 ENTASI SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : ROME ROME 4 UNICREDIT SPA ®3)
ENTASI)
216  ERSTE ONSHORE WINDKRAFT OLDENBURG  OLDENBURG 1 WEALTHCAP 0.07
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH
& CO. WINDPARK GREFRATH KG
Issued capital EUR 1,043,889 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 68.45 68.20
GMBH
217  ERSTE ONSHORE WINDKRAFT OLDENBURG  OLDENBURG 1 WEALTHCAP 0.05
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH
& CO. WINDPARK KRAHENBERG KG
Issued capital EUR 1,393,806 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 68.49 68.24
GMBH
218  ERSTE ONSHORE WINDKRAFT OLDENBURG  OLDENBURG 1 WEALTHCAP 0.05 0.06
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH
& CO. WINDPARK MOSE KG
Issued capital EUR 1,270,305 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 68.48 68.23
GMBH
219 EUROGATE VIENNA VIENNA 1 PRO WOHNBAU AG 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
220 EUROGATE PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 100.00
GMBH IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
221 EUROGATE PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROGATE 100.00
GMBH & CO AREA BETA KG BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
222  EUROLEASE AMUN IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
223  EUROLEASE ANUBIS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
224 EUROLEASE ISIS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
225  EUROLEASE MARDUK IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
226 EUROLEASE RA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
227 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 14,398,879 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)

THE GROUP
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228 EUROPA BEFEKTETESI BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
ALAPKEZELOE ZRT (EUROPA MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT
LTD.)
Issued capital HUF 100,000,000
229 EUROPE REAL-ESTATE INVESTMENT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 4 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 3)
FUND
230 EUROPEAN-OFFICE-FONDS MUNICH MUNICH 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
231 EUROPEYE SRL ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 80.00
Issued capital EUR 100,000
232 EUROVENTURES-AUSTRIA-CA- VIENNA VIENNA 1 CABET-HOLDING GMBH 100.00
MANAGEMENT GESMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
233 EXPANDA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
234 F-E GOLD SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE MILAN MILAN 4 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 3)
: F-E GOLD)
235 F-E MORTGAGES SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA )
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : F-E
MORTGAGES 2005)
236  F-E MORTGAGES SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : F-E
MORTGAGES SERIES 1 - 2003)
237 FACTORBANK VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 3,000,000
238  FCT UCG TIKEHAU PARIS PARIS 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
Issued capital EUR 50,000,000
239 FINECO VERWALTUNG AG (IN MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
LIQUIDATION)
Issued capital EUR 50,000
240  FINECOBANK SPA REGGIO MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 65.50
EMILIA
Issued capital EUR 200,070,431
241  FMC LEASING BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
242 FMZ SAVARIA SZOLGALTATO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT LEASING KFT 75.00
KORLATOLT FELELOESSEG
TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
243 FMZ SIGMA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
244  FOLIA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 99.80 100.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,981,769 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
245  FONDIARIA LASA SPA ROME ROME 1 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL 100.00
Issued capital EUR 3,102,000
246  FOOD & MORE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 100,000
247 FORUM POLSKIEGO BIZNESU MEDIA WARSAW WARSAW 1 PEKAO PROPERTY SA 100.00

SP.Z 0.0.
Issued capital PLN 13,758,000
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248 FUGATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 100.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
249  G.N.E. GLOBAL VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWERTUNG GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
250 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 21,872,755 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
251  GARAGE AM HOF GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 90.60
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 220,000 SCHOELLERBANK 2.00
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
252 GBS VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.00 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGSGES
ELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 1.00 (4)
THE GROUP
253 GEBAEUDELEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 98.80 99.00
GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNGSGESE LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
LLSCHAFT M.B.H. CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
254 GELDILUX-TS-2013 SA LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 4 UNICREDIT LUXEMBOURG S.A. 3)
G G
Issued capital EUR 31,000
255 GEMEINDELEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 37.30 37.50
GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,333 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 37.50
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
256 GEMMA PULLACH PULLACH 4 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN- 6.13 3)
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH VERWALTUNGS GMBH
& CO. VERMIETUNGS KG
257 GENERAL LOGISTIC SOLUTIONS LLC MOSCOwW MOSCOwW 1 UCTAM RU LIMITED LIABILITY 100.00
COMPANY
Issued capital RUB 142,309,444
258  GIMMO IMMOBILIEN-VERMIETUNGS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 TERRENO 100.00
UND VERWALTUNGS GMBH GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNG GMBH
& CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 25,600
259  GOLF- UND COUNTRY CLUB MUNICH MUNICH 1 ANTUS IMMOBILIEN- UND 6.00
SEDDINER SEE IMMOBILIEN GMBH PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 52,500 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 94.00
260 GRAND CENTRAL FUNDING NEW YORK NEW YORK 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
CORPORATION
Issued capital USD 1,000
261 GRUNDSTUCKSAKTIENGESELLSCHA MUNICH MUNICH 1 TERRENO 98.24
FT AM POTSDAMER PLATZ (HAUS GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNG GMBH
VATERLAND) & CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 4,086,245
262  GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00

SIMON BESCHRANKT HAFTENDE
KOMMANDITGESELLSCHAF

Issued capital EUR 51,500

MBH & CO KG
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263 GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNG LINZ- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
MITTE GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
264 GUS CONSULTING GMBH IN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
LIQUIDATION
Issued capital EUR 30,000,000
265 H & B IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00
OBJEKTE KG MBH & CO KG
Issued capital EUR 5,000
266 H.F.S. HYPO-FONDSBETEILIGUNGEN MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 10.00
FUR SACHWERTE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 4,000,000 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL 90.00
HOLDING GMBH
267 H.F.S. IMMOBILIENFONDS GMBH EBERSBERG EBERSBERG 1 H.F.S. HYPO-FONDSBETEILIGUNGEN 100.00
FUR SACHWERTE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,565
268 H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS MUNICH MUNICH 4 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 3)
DEUTSCHLAND 1 GMBH & CO. KG
(IMMOBILIENLEASING)
WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE 0.08
MANAGEMENT GMBH
269 H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS MUNICH MUNICH 4 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 0.02 ®3)
DEUTSCHLAND 7 GMBH & CO. KG
WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE 0.08
MANAGEMENT GMBH
270 HAWA GRUNDSTUCKS GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 99.50
OHG HOTELVERWALTUNG MBH & CO KG
Issued capital EUR 276,200 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS- 0.50
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
271  HAWA GRUNDSTUCKS GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 99.50
OHG IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH & CO KG
Issued capital EUR 54,300 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS- 0.50
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
272 HBF PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG ZWEI VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 95.00 0.00
GMBH & CO KG IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,000 EUROGATE 5.00 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH
273 HBF PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG DREI VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 95.00 0.00
GMBH & CO KG IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,000 EUROGATE 5.00 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH
274  HBF PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG EINS VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 95.00 0.00
GMBH & CO KG IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,000 EUROGATE 5.00 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG GMBH
275 HELICONUS SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : HELICONUS)
276  HERKU LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
277 HJS 12 MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
278  HONEU LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)

THE GROUP
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279  HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICE AND VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
DEVELOPMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,168
280  HVB ASSET LEASING LIMITED LONDON LONDON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 1
281 HVB ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDING MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB VERWA 4 GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
282  HVB AUTO LEASING EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 HVB LEASING EOOD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 8,073,320
283  HVB CAPITAL LLC WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
N N
Issued capital USD 10,000
284  HVB CAPITALLLCII WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
N N
Issued capital USD 16
285  HVB CAPITAL LLC I WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
N N
Issued capital USD 10,000
286 HVB CAPITAL PARTNERS AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,500,000
287  HVB EXPORT LEASING GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,600
288  HVB FUNDING TRUST WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
N N
289  HVB FUNDING TRUST Il WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
N N
Issued capital USD 2,800
290 HVB FUNDING TRUST IlI WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
N N
201  HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
BETEILIGUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
292  HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00 (8)
MBH & CO KG
Issued capital EUR 10,000,000
293  HVB HONG KONG LIMITED HONG KONG HONG KONG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 129
294  HVB IMMOBILIEN AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 520,000
295  HVB INVESTMENTS (UK) LIMITED GEORGE GEORGE 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
TOWN TOWN
Issued capital GBP 2
296 HVB LEASING CZECH REPUBLIC PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
S.R.O.
Issued capital CZK 49,632,000
297 HVB LEASING EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 9,353,510
298 HVB LIFE SCIENCE GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
BETEILIGUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 1,025,000
299 HVB LONDON INVESTMENTS (AVON) LONDON LONDON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
LIMITED
Issued capital GBP 2
300 HVB PRINCIPAL EQUITY GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,600
301 HVB PROFIL GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
PERSONALMANAGEMENT MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
302  HVB PROJEKT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
Issued capital EUR 24,543,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
303 HVB REALTY CAPITAL INC. NEW YORK NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC 100.00

Issued capital USD 0
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304 HVB SECUR GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT GLOBAL BUSINESS 100.00
SERVICES GMBH
Issued capital EUR 50,000
305 HVB TECTA GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
Issued capital EUR 1,534,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
306 HVB VERWA 1 GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 51,200
307 HVB VERWA 4 GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,000
308 HVB VERWA 4.4 GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB VERWA 4 GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
309 HVB-LEASING AIDA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
310  HVB-LEASING ATLANTIS BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
311 HVB-LEASING FIDELIO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
312  HVB-LEASING FORTE BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
313 HVB-LEASING GARO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHSZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,100,000
314  HVB-LEASING HAMLET BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
315 HVB-LEASING JUPITER BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
316 HVB-LEASING LAMOND BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KFT.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
317 HVB-LEASING MAESTOSO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KFT. M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,100,000
318 HVB-LEASING NANO BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
319 HVB-LEASING ROCCA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
320  HVB-LEASING RUBIN KFT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
321  HVB-LEASING SMARAGD KFT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
322 HVB-LEASING SPORT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOEOASSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,100,000
323  HVBFF INTERNATIONAL GREECE MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVBFF INTERNATIONALE LEASING 100.00

GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000

GMBH
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324 HVBFF INTERNATIONALE LEASING MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVBFF OBJEKT BETEILIGUNGS 10.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 90.00
GMBH
325 HVBFF OBJEKT BETEILIGUNGS MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
326  HVBFF PRODUKTIONSHALLE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
LL. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
327 HVZ GMBH & CO. OBJEKT KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
& CO. OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 148,090,766
328 HYPO-BANK MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 100.00
VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM GMBH VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
& CO. OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 25,600
329  HYPO-BANK MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00
VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM GMBH & MBH & CO KG
CO. KG OBJEKT ARABELLASTRASSE
Issued capital EUR 25,600
330 HYPO-REAL HAUS- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 80.00
GRUNDBESITZ GESELLSCHAFT MBH
& CO. IMMOBILIEN-VERMIETUNGS
KG
Issued capital EUR 7,669,500
331 HYPOVEREINS IMMOBILIEN EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 100,000
332  HYPOVEREINSFINANCE N.V. AMSTERDAM  AMSTERDAM 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 181,512
333 I-FABER SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 65.32
Issued capital EUR 5,652,174
334 IDEA FIMIT SGR FONDO SIGMA ROME ROME 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
IMMOBILIARE
Issued capital EUR 180,100,960
335 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL ROME ROME 1 COMPAGNIA ITALPETROLI S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 103,400
336 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 ZETA FUENF HANDELS GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336
337  IMMOBILIEN RATING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST 61.00
IMMOBILIEN-MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 50,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 19.00
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 19.00
GMBH
338 IMMOBILIENLEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO 74.80 75.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
339  IMPRESA ONE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : IMPRESA
ONE)
340 IMU IMMOBILIENENTWICKLUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 60.00
MUTHGASSE GMBH & CO KG IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 2,500
341  INPROX CHOMUTOV, S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
342  INPROX KLADNO, S.R.O. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
343 INPROX POPRAD, SPOL. S.R.O. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. 100.00

Issued capital EUR 6,639
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344 INPROX SR I, SPOL. S R.O. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 6,639
345  INTERKONZUM DOO SARAJEVO SARAJEVO SARAJEVO 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital BAM 11,942,563
346 INTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
347  INTRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 PROJEKT-LEASE 100.00
M.B.H. GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
348 INV TOTALUNTERNEHMER GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROGATE PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
349 IPSE 2000 S.P.A. (IN LIQUIDAZIONE) ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 50.00
Issued capital EUR 12,500,000
350 ISB UNIVERSALE BAU GMBH BRANDENBU BRANDENBU 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL 100.00
RG RG REALITAETEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 6,288,890
351 IVONA BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA IMMO GEWINNSCHEIN FONDS1 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,168
352  JAUSERN-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 2,802,537
353  JOHA GEBAEUDE- ERRICHTUNGS- LEONDING LEONDING 1 UNO-EINKAUFSZENTRUM- 99.03
UND VERMIETUNGS- VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 37,000
354  KAISERWASSER BAU- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 RAMSES-IMMOBILIENHOLDING GMBH 100.00
ERRICHTUNGS GMBH UND CO OG
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80 0.00
355  KELLER CROSSING TEXAS L.P. ATLANTA WILMINGTO 1 US PROPERTY INVESTMENTS INC. 100.00
N
Issued capital USD 7,086,872
356 KINABALU FINANCIAL PRODUCTS LONDON LONDON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00 99.90
LLP
Issued capital GBP 2,509,000 VERBA 0.00 0.10
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MIT
BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
357 KINABALU FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LONDON LONDON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
LTD
Issued capital GBP 1,700,000
358 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 3,650,000 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 100.00
359 KLEA WOHNBAU GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 100.00
GMBH GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
360  KLEA ZS-IMMOBILIENVERMIETUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80 100.00
G.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
361 KLEA ZS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80 100.00
LIEGENSCHAFTSVERMIETUNG
G.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
362 KSG KARTEN-VERRECHNUNGS- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG 100.00
SERVICEGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 44,000
363 KUNSTHAUS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 KUTRA 5.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 95.00
GMBH
364 KUR- UND SPORTHOTEL KITZBUHEL KITZBUHEL 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 3,650,000 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 100.00

GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
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365 KUTRA VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
366 LAGERMAX LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
367 LAGEV IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
368 LARGE CORPORATE ONE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: LARGE
CORPORATE ONE)
369 LARGO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VAPE COMMUNA 98.80 99.00
LEASINGGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
370  LASSALLESTRASSE BAU-, VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.00 100.00
PLANUNGS-, ERRICHTUNGS- UND
VERWERTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
371  LBC VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 100.00
UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGSGES.
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 37,000
372 LEASFINANZ BANK GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BACA LEASING UND 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 5,136,500
373  LEASFINANZ GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BACA LEASING UND 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 672,053
374  LEGATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
375  LELEV IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
376 LIFE MANAGEMENT ERSTE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
377  LIFE MANAGEMENT ZWEITE GMBH GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
378  LIFE SCIENCE | BETEILIGUNGS MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB LIFE SCIENCE GMBH & CO. 100.00
GMBH BETEILIGUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 25,000
379  LINDENGASSE VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 0.20
BUROHAUSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 37,000 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
380 LINO HOTEL-LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)

THE GROUP
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381 LIPARK LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
382 LIVA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 38,731 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
383  LLC UKROTSBUD KIEV KIEV 1 PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY 99.00
UKRSOTSBANK
Issued capital UAH 31,000
384 LOCAT CROATIA DOO ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 39,000,000
385  LOCAT SV SRL CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 4 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. [€©))
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : SERIE 2005) (o) (0]
386 LOCAT SV SRL CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 4 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : SERIE 2006) 0] o)
387 LOCAT SV SRL CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 4 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. )
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : SERIE 2011) (0] o
388  LOCAT SV SRL CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 4 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. ©)]
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : SERIE 2014) [¢] o
389  LTD SI&C AMC UKRSOTS REAL KIEV KIEV 1 PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY 99.99
ESTATE UKRSOTSBANK
Issued capital UAH 7,000,000
390 M.A.V.7., BANK AUSTRIA LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LUNA LEASING GMBH 98.04
BAUTRAEGER GMBH & CO.0OG.
Issued capital EUR 3,707 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 1.96 4)
THE GROUP
391  MALL. VIENNA VIENNA 1 TREUCONSULT 100.00 0.00
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. & CO. MCL M.B.H.
THETAKG
Issued capital EUR 1,000 TREUCONSULT PROPERTY BETA 0.00 100.00
GMBH
392 MARTIANEZ COMERCIAL, SOCIEDAD PUERTO DE PUERTO DE 1 BF NINE HOLDING GMBH 99.96
ANONIMA LA CRUZ LA CRUZ
393 MBC IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
394  MC MARKETING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 300,000
395  MC RETAIL GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 MC MARKETING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
396  MENUETT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
397  MERKURHOF MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MIT
BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 5,112,919
398 MIK 2012 KARLATOLT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
309  MILLETERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00

IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
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400 MM OMEGA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
401 MOBILITY CONCEPT GMBH OBERHACHI OBERHACHI 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 60.00
NG NG
Issued capital EUR 4,000,000
402 MOC VERWALTUNGS GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 4 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 23.00 3)
IMMOBILIEN KG
403 MOEGRA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
404 MOVIE MARKET BETEILIGUNGS MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
405 MY BETEILIGUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 17,500
406 NAGE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
LOKALVERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAF UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
TM.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
407 NATA IMMOBILIEN-LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 51.50
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,200 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 6.00
GMBH
408 NEWSTONE MORTGAGE SECURITIES LONDON LONDON 4 REDSTONE MORTGAGES LIMITED 3)
No.1 PLC
409  NF OBJEKT FFM GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
410 NF OBJEKT MUNCHEN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
411 NF OBJEKTE BERLIN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
412 NOE HYPO LEASING ASTRICTA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 95.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERMIETUNGS GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337
413  NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD 39 VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 7.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH & CO BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
KG
Issued capital EUR 1,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 93.00
414 NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD ACHT VIENNA VIENNA 1 NORDBAHNHOF PROJEKTE HOLDING 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
415  NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD FUENF VIENNA VIENNA 1 NORDBAHNHOF PROJEKTE HOLDING 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
416  NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD SECHS VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 7.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH & CO BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
KG
Issued capital EUR 1,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 93.00
417 NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD SIEBEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 NORDBAHNHOF PROJEKTE HOLDING 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
418  NORDBAHNHOF PROJEKTE HOLDING  VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 7.00
GMBH BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 93.00
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419 OCEAN BREEZE ASSET GMBH & CO. BREMEN BREMEN 1 OCEAN BREEZE ENERGY GMBH & 100.00
KG CO. KG
Issued capital EUR 2,000
420 OCEAN BREEZE ENERGY GMBH & BREMEN BREMEN 1 HJS 12 100.00
CO. KG BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 2,000
421 OCEAN BREEZE FINANCE S.A. - LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG ®3)
COMPARTMENT 1 G G
422 OCEAN BREEZE GMBH BREMEN BREMEN 1 OCEAN BREEZE ENERGY GMBH & 100.00
CO. KG
Issued capital EUR 25,000
423 OCT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
424  OLG HANDELS- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
LLSCHAFT M.B.H. CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
425 OMNIA GRUNDSTUCKS-GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
OBJEKT EGGENFELDENER STRASSE
KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
426 OMNIA GRUNDSTUCKS-GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94.00
OBJEKT HAIDENAUPLATZ KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
427 OOO UNICREDIT LEASING MOSCOwW MOSCOwW 1 AO UNICREDIT BANK 100.00
Issued capital RUR 149,160,248
428 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,149,150
429 OSI| OFF-SHORE SERVICE INVEST HAMBURG HAMBURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG )
GMBH
430 OTHMARSCHEN PARK HAMBURG MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 10.00
GMBH & CO. CENTERPARK KG
Issued capital EUR 51,129 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT 30.00
B.V.
T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. 60.00
431  OTHMARSCHEN PARK HAMBURG MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 10.00
GMBH & CO. GEWERBEPARK KG
Issued capital EUR 51,129 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT 30.00
B.V.
T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. 60.00
432  OWS LOGISTIK GMBH EMDEN EMDEN 4 OS| OFF-SHORE SERVICE INVEST 3)
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 12,500
433  OWS NATALIA BEKKER GMBH & Co. EMDEN EMDEN 4 OWS LOGISTIK GMBH 3)
KG
Issued capital EUR 1,000
434  OWS OCEAN ZEPHYR GMBH & Co. EMDEN EMDEN 4 OWS OFF-SHORE WIND SOLUTIONS 3)
KG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 6,000
435  OWS OFF-SHORE WIND SOLUTIONS EMDEN EMDEN 4 OSI OFF-SHORE SERVICE INVEST [€)
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
436  OWS WINDLIFT 1 CHARTER GMBH & EMDEN EMDEN 4 OWS LOGISTIK GMBH 3)
Co. KG
Issued capital EUR 1,000
437  PALAIS ROTHSCHILD VERMIETUNGS VIENNA VIENNA 1 SCHOELLERBANK 100.00
GMBH & CO OG AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 2,180,185
438  PARZHOF-ERRICHTUNGS- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 99.60 99.80
VERWERTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
M.B.H. CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 0.20
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)

THE GROUP
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439 PEKAO BANK HIPOTECZNY S.A. WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
Issued capital PLN 223,000,000
440 PEKAO FAKTORING SP. ZOO LUBLIN LUBLIN 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
Issued capital PLN 50,587,900
441 PEKAO FINANCIAL SERVICES SP. WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
700
Issued capital PLN 4,500,000
442 PEKAO FUNDUSZ KAPITALOWY SP. WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
Z00
Issued capital PLN 51,380,000
443 PEKAO LEASING HOLDING S.A. WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
Issued capital PLN 207,671,225
444 PEKAO LEASING SP Z0.0. WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 36.49
Issued capital PLN 241,588,600 PEKAO LEASING HOLDING S.A. 63.51
445 PEKAO PIONEER P.T.E. SA WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 65.00
Issued capital PLN 20,760,000 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 35.00
MANAGEMENT SPA
446 PEKAO PROPERTY SA WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
Issued capital PLN 51,346,400
447 PEKAO TELECENTRUM SP. ZOO IN ZAMOSC WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 100.00
LIQUIDATION
Issued capital PLN 10,429,152
448  PELOPS LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN 99.80 100.00
M.B.H. LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
449 PENSIONSKASSE DER HYPO MUNICH MUNICH 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
VEREINSBANK VVAG
450  PERIKLES 20092 BREMEN BREMEN 1 HJS 12 100.00
VERMOGENSVERWALTUNG GMBH BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
451  PESTSZENTIMREI SZAKORVOSI BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
RENDELOE KFT. M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
452  PIANA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
453 PIONEER ALTERNATIVE HAMILTON HAMILTON 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT MANAGEMENT SPA
(BERMUDA) LIMITED
Issued capital USD 12,000
454 PIONEER ALTERNATIVE DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 1,032,000
455 PIONEER ALTERNATIVE RAMAT GAN. RAMAT GAN. 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
INVESTMENTS (ISRAEL) LTD MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital ILS 50,000
456 PIONEER ALTERNATIVE NEW YORK DOVER 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
INVESTMENTS (NEW YORK) LTD MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital USD 1
457  PIONEER ASSET MANAGEMENT AS PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital CZK 27,000,000
458  PIONEER ASSET MANAGEMENT S.Al.  BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 97.42
SA. MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital RON 3,022,000 UNICREDIT TIRIAC BANK S.A. 2.58
459 PIONEER ASSET MANAGEMENT SA LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
G G MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 10,000,000
460 PIONEER FUNDS DISTRIBUTOR INC BOSTON BOSTON 1 PIONEER INVESTMENT 100.00
MANAGEMENT INC
Issued capital USD 2,060
461  PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00

MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 1,219,463,434
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462 PIONEER GLOBAL FUNDS HAMILTON HAMILTON 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
DISTRIBUTOR LTD MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 12,900
463  PIONEER GLOBAL INVESTMENTS SYDNEY SYDNEY 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
(AUSTRALIA) PTY LIMITED MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital AUD 3,980,000
464  PIONEER GLOBAL INVESTMENTS TAIPEI TAIPEI 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
(TAIWAN) LTD. MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital TWD 70,000,000
465  PIONEER GLOBAL INVESTMENTS DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
LIMITED MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 752,500
466 PIONEER INSTITUTIONAL ASSET BOSTON WILMINGTO 1 PIONEER INVESTMENT 100.00
MANAGEMENT INC N MANAGEMENT USA INC.
Issued capital USD 1,000
467 PIONEER INVESTMENT COMPANY AS PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital CZK 61,000,000
468  PIONEER INVESTMENT FUND BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
MANAGEMENT LIMITED MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital HUF 100,000,000
469  PIONEER INVESTMENT BOSTON WILMINGTO 1 PIONEER INVESTMENT 100.00
MANAGEMENT INC N MANAGEMENT USA INC.
Issued capital USD 20,990
470 PIONEER INVESTMENT DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
MANAGEMENT LIMITED MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 1,032,912
471 PIONEER INVESTMENT BOSTON BOSTON 1 PIONEER INVESTMENT 100.00
MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER MANAGEMENT USA INC.
SERVICES INC.
Issued capital USD 1,000
472 PIONEER INVESTMENT MILAN MILAN 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
MANAGEMENT SOC. DI GESTIONE MANAGEMENT SPA
DEL RISPARMIO PER AZ
Issued capital EUR 51,340,995
473 PIONEER INVESTMENT BOSTON WILMINGTO 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
MANAGEMENT USA INC. N MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital USD 1
474 PIONEER INVESTMENTS (SCHWEIZ) ZURICH ZURICH 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
GMBH MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital CHF 20,000
475  PIONEER INVESTMENTS AUSTRIA VIENNA VIENNA 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
GMBH MANAGEMENT SPA
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
476 PIONEER INVESTMENTS MUNICH MUNICH 1 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 100.00
KAPITALANLAGEGESELLSCHAFT MANAGEMENT SPA
MBH
Issued capital EUR 6,500,000
477  PIONEER PEKAO INVESTMENT FUND WARSAW WARSAW 1 PIONEER PEKAO INVESTMENT 100.00
COMPANY SA (POLISH NAME: MANAGEMENT SA
PIONEER PEKAO TFI SA)
Issued capital PLN 37,804,000
478 PIONEER PEKAO INVESTMENT WARSAW WARSAW 1 BANK PEKAO SA 49.00
MANAGEMENT SA
Issued capital PLN 28,914,000 PIONEER GLOBAL ASSET 51.00
MANAGEMENT SPA
479  PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,067,138
480  PLANETHOME AG MUNICH UNTERFOHR 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
ING
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
481  PLANETHOME GMBH MANNHEIM MANNHEIM 1 PLANETHOME AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 235,800
482  POLLUX IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
Issued capital EUR 36,500
483  POMINVEST DD SPLIT SPLIT 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 88.66 88.95

Issued capital HRK 17,434,000
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484 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH MBH & CO KG
& CO. OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 500,013,550
485  PORTIA MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00
GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNGS- MBH & CO KG
GESELLSCHAFT MIT
BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 25,600
486  POSATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
487  PRELUDE VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 98.80 99.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
488  PRIVATE JOINT STOCK COMPANY KIEV KIEV 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
FERROTRADE INTERNATIONAL
Issued capital UAH 877,000,000
489  PRO WOHNBAU AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 99.69
Issued capital EUR 23,621,113 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 0.31
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
490 PROJEKT-LEASE VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO 74.80 75.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
491 PRVA STAMBENA STEDIONICA DD ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
ZAGREB
Issued capital HRK 80,000,000
492 PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY KIEV KIEV 1 PRIVATE JOINT STOCK COMPANY 35.58 35.59
UKRSOTSBANK FERROTRADE INTERNATIONAL
Issued capital UAH 2,594,671,442 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 37.33 37.34
UNICREDIT SPA 26.48
493  PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY KIEV KIEV UNICREDIT SPA @)
UNICREDIT BANK
494  PURE FUNDING No. 10 LTD DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
495  QUADEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
496 QUART Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
497  QUINT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
498  RAMSES IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 RAMSES-IMMOBILIENHOLDING GMBH 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. & CO OG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.30
499  RANA- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL 99.90

LIEGENSCHAFTSVERWERTUNG
GMBH

Issued capital EUR 72,700

REALITAETEN GMBH
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500 REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT WARSAW WARSAW 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
POLAND SP. Z 0.0.
Issued capital PLN 124,500
501  REAL INVEST EUROPE D BA RI KAG AUSTRIA AUSTRIA 4 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 3)
502 REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 TREUCONSULT 99.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,400
503 REAL-LEASE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
504 REAL-RENT LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 73,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
505 REDSTONE MORTGAGES LIMITED LONDON LONDON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital GBP 100,000
506 REGEV VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
REALITAETENVERWERTUNGSGESEL GMBH
LSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 726,728 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
507 RHOTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
508  RIGEL IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
Issued capital EUR 36,500
509 ROMA 2000 SRL IN LIQUIDAZIONE ROME ROME 1 COMPAGNIA ITALPETROLI S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
510 RONCASA IMMOBILIEN- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 256,000
511 RONDO LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 WOEM 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
512 ROSENKAVALIER 2008 GMBH FRANKFURT FRANKFURT 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
513  ROYSTON LEASING LIMITED GRAND GRAND 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3)
CAYMAN CAYMAN
514 RSB ANLAGENVERMIETUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
515 RVT BAUTRAEGER GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 LBC 100.00
M.B.H. UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGSGES.
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 37,000
516  SALONE N. 1 SPA CONEGLIAN TREVISO 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
o
Issued capital EUR 100,000
517 SALONE N. 2 SPA CONEGLIAN TREVISO 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(e}
Issued capital EUR 100,000
518 SALONE N. 3 SPA CONEGLIAN TREVISO 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
o
Issued capital EUR 100,000
519  SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 100.00

GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH

Issued capital EUR 511,300

VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
& CO. OBJEKT KG
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520 SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE 100.00
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH MBH & CO KG
& CO. OHG SAARLAND
Issued capital EUR 1,533,900
521  SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 97.78
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
& CO. OHG VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM & CO. OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 2,300,850 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS- 222
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
522 SANITA' - S.R.L. IN LIQUIDAZIONE ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT 99.60
BANK SPA
Issued capital EUR 5,164,333
523 SANTAROSAS.R.L. ROME ROME 1 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
524 SAS-REAL BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
INGATLANUEZEMELTETOE ES
KEZELOE KFT. (ENGLISH :SAS-REAL
KFT)
Issued capital HUF 750,000,000
525 SCHOELLERBANK VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 20,000,000
526  SCHOELLERBANK INVEST AG SALZBURG SALZBURG 1 SCHOELLERBANK 100.00
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 2,543,549
527  SCHOTTENGASSE 6-8 IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,000
528  SECA-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 74.80
M.B.H. GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
529  SEDEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
530 SELFOSS MUNICH GRUNWALD 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
531  SEXT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
532  SIA UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER RIGA RIGA 1 SIA UNICREDIT LEASING 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,082
533  SIA UNICREDIT LEASING RIGA RIGA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,569,120
534  SIGMA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.40 99.60
Issued capital EUR 18,286 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 0.40
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
535  SIMON VERWALTUNGS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 99.98
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT I.L.
Issued capital EUR 2,556,459
536 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.80
Issued capital EUR 36,500
537  SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 5.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 30,000 SOLOS IMMOBILIEN- UND 95.00

PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH &
CO. SIRIUS BETEILIGUNGS KG
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538 SOCIETA' DI GESTIONI ESATTORIALI PALERMO PALERMO 1 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT 80.00
IN SICILIA SO.G.E.SI. S.P.A. IN LIQ. BANK SPA
Issued capital EUR 36,151,500
539  SOCIETA' ITALIANA GESTIONE ED ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT 100.00
INCASSO CREDITI S.P.A. IN BANK SPA
LIQUIDAZIONE
Issued capital EUR 341,916
540 SOCIETA' VERONESE GESTIONE ROME ROME 1 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL 100.00
COMPRAVENDITA IMMOBILI A R.L.
Issued capital EUR 108,500
541 SOFIGERE SOCIETE PAR ACTIONS PARIS PARIS 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
SIMPLIFIEE
Issued capital EUR 40,000
542  SOLOS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH &
CO. SIRIUS BETEILIGUNGS KG
Issued capital EUR 35,800
543 SONATA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO 1.00
M.B.H. GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 98.80 99.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
544 SPECTRUM VIENNA VIENNA 1 WOEM 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336
545  SPREE GALERIE MUNICH MUNICH 1 ARGENTAURUS IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
HOTELBETRIEBSGESELLSCHAFT VERMIETUNGS- UND VERWALTUNGS
MBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
546 STATUS VERMOGENSVERWALTUNG STRESENDO SCHWERIN 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
GMBH RF
Issued capital EUR 102,258
547 STEWE VIENNA VIENNA 1 PROJEKT-LEASE 24.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 75.80
UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
548 STRUCTURED INVEST SOCIETE LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
ANONYME G G
Issued capital EUR 125,500
549 STRUCTURED LEASE GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 250,000
550 SUVREMENE POSLOVNE ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
KOMUNIKACIJE D.O.O
Issued capital HRK 1,110,000
551  SVIF UKRSOTSBUD KIEV KIEV 4 PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY 3)
UKRSOTSBANK
552 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT AMSTERDAM  AMSTERDAM 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
B.V.
Issued capital EUR 4,938,271
553 T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. AMSTERDAM  AMSTERDAM 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 87.50
Issued capital EUR 10,769,773
554 TERRENO MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB TECTA GMBH 75.00
GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNG GMBH
& CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS-KG
Issued capital EUR 920,400
555 TERRONDA DEVELOPMENT B.V. AMSTERDAM AMSTERDAM 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00

Issued capital EUR 1,252,433
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556 TERZ Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
557 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 99.67
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
& CO. OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 6,240,000
558 TRANSTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
559  TREDEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
560 TREUCONSULT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT IMMOBILIEN-MANAGEMENT GMBH
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 365,000
561 TREVI FINANCE N 3 SRL CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : TREVI (e} o
FINANCE 3)
562  TREVIFINANCE N.2S.R.L. CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 80.00
(e} (o}
Issued capital EUR 10,000
563 TREVIFINANCE N.3S.R.L. CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
o O
Issued capital EUR 10,000
564 TREVI FINANCE S.R.L. CONEGLIAN CONEGLIAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 80.00
(e} o
Issued capital EUR 10,000
565 TRICASA GRUNDBESITZ MUNICH MUNICH 1 HYPO-REAL HAUS- UND 0.00
GESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. 1. GRUNDBESITZ GESELLSCHAFT MBH
VERMIETUNGS KG
Issued capital EUR 6,979,476 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
VERWALTUNGS GMBH
566 TRICASA MUNICH MUNICH 1 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
GRUNDBESITZGESELLSCHAFT DES VERWALTUNGS GMBH
BURGERLICHEN RECHTS NR. 1
Issued capital EUR 13,687,272
567  TRIESTE ADRIATIC MARITIME TRIESTE TRIESTE 3 UNICREDIT SPA 35.19
INITIATIVES SRL
Issued capital EUR 3,300,000
568  TRINITRADE MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
VERMOGENSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT MIT
BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 102,300
569 UCL NEKRETNINE D.O.O. SARAJEVO SARAJEVO 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 30.00
LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital BAM 10,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 70.00
GMBH
570 UCTAM BALTICS SIA RIGA RIGA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 4,265,585
571  UCTAM BULGARIA EOOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
Issued capital BGN 20,000
572  UCTAM CZECH REPUBLIC SRO PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 99.96
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
Issued capital CZK 45,500,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 0.04
MANAGEMENT GMBH
573 UCTAM D.O.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00

Issued capital RSD 564,070,470

MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
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574 UCTAM HUNGARY KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 EUROPA BEFEKTETESI 0.33 1.00
ALAPKEZELOE ZRT (EUROPA
INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT
LTD.)
Issued capital HUF 10,100,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 99.67 99.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
575 UCTAM RO S.R.L. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UCTAM BALTICS SIA
Issued capital RON 17,806,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
576 UCTAM RU LIMITED LIABILITY MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 AO UNICREDIT BANK
COMPANY
Issued capital RUB 4,000,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
577  UCTAM UKRAINE LLC KIEV KIEV 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 99.99
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
Issued capital UAH 1,013,324
578 UCTAM UPRAVLJANJE D.O.O. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 7,500
579  UFFICIUM IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 KUTRA 5.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 95.00
GMBH
580  UNIIT SRL TRENTO TRENTO 1 UNICREDIT BUSINESS INTEGRATED 51.00
SOLUTIONS SOCIETA CONSORTILE
PER AZIONI
Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
581 UNICOM IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
582  UNICREDIT (CHINA) ADVISORY BENJING BEWNJING 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
LIMITED
Issued capital CNY 826,410
583 UNICREDIT AURORA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 219,000
584 UNICREDIT AUTO LEASING E.O.O.D. SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 2,205,830
585 UNICREDIT BANK A.D. BANJA LUKA BANJA LUKA BANJA LUKA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 98.39
Issued capital BAM 97,055,000
586 UNICREDIT BANK AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2,407,151,016
587 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 99.99
Issued capital EUR 1,681,033,521
588  UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.94
AND SLOVAKIA, AS.
Issued capital CZK 8,754,617,898
589 UNICREDIT BANK D.D. MOSTAR MOSTAR 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 30.14 24.29
()
Issued capital BAM 119,195,000 UNICREDIT SPA 3.27 3.28
ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 65.59 65.69
590  UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital HUF 24,118,220,000
591  UNICREDIT BANK IRELAND PLC DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,343,118,650
592  UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA JSC BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital RSD 23,607,620,000
593 UNICREDIT BANKA SLOVENIJA D.D. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.99
Issued capital EUR 20,383,765
594 UNICREDIT BETEILIGUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00

Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
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595 UNICREDIT BPC MORTAGE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
(COVERED BONDS)
596  UNICREDIT BPC MORTGAGE S.R.L. VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
Issued capital EUR 12,000
597 UNICREDIT BROKER DOO SARAJEVO SARAJEVO SARAJEVO 1 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING 100.00
ZA BROKERSKE POSLOVE U VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE GMBH
OSIGURANJU
Issued capital BAM 7,823
598  UNICREDIT BROKER S.R.O. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA AS. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 8,266
599 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.45
Issued capital BGN 285,776,674 UNICREDIT SPA .
600 UNICREDIT BUSINESS INTEGRATED VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BUSINESS INTEGRATED 100.00
SOLUTIONS AUSTRIA GMBH SOLUTIONS SOCIETA CONSORTILE
PER AZIONI
Issued capital EUR 1,200,000
601  UNICREDIT BUSINESS INTEGRATED MILAN MILAN 1 CORDUSIO SOCIETA' FIDUCIARIA
SOLUTIONS SOCIETA CONSORTILE PER AZIONI
PER AZIONI
Issued capital EUR 237,523,160 FINECOBANK SPA
PIONEER INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT SOC. DI GESTIONE
DEL RISPARMIO PER AZ
UNICREDIT BANK AG
UNICREDIT FACTORING SPA .
UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
602  UNICREDIT CAIB POLAND S.A. WARSAW WARSAW 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital PLN 225,141,851
603  UNICREDIT CAIB SECURITIES UK LONDON LONDON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
LTD.
Issued capital GBP 1
604  UNICREDIT CAPITAL MARKETS LLC NEW YORK NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC 100.00
Issued capital USD 100,100
605  UNICREDIT CENTER AM VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
KAISERWASSER GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
606  UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
EAD
Issued capital BGN 2,800,000
607 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT SPA 49.90
IFN S.A.
Issued capital RON 103,269,200 UNICREDIT TIRIAC BANK S.A. 50.10
608  UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
BANK SPA
Issued capital EUR 41,280,000
609  UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT CREDIT MANAGEMENT 100.00
IMMOBILIARE S.P.A. BANK SPA
Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
610  UNICREDIT DELAWARE INC DOVER DOVER 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital USD 1,000
611  UNICREDIT DIRECT SERVICES GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 767,000
612  UNICREDIT FACTORING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 1,000,000
613  UNICREDIT FACTORING SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 414,348,000
614  UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. 100.00
S.R.O.
Issued capital CZK 5,000,000
615  UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA AS. 100.00

S.R.O.
Issued capital EUR 6,639
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616  UNICREDIT FUGGETLEN BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 25.20
BIZTOSITASKOEZVETITOE
SZOLGALTATO KFT.
Issued capital HUF 5,000,000 UNICREDIT LEASING KFT 74.80
617  UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG  VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN 99.80 100.00
UND VERWERTUNG GMBH LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 14,383,206 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
618  UNICREDIT GLOBAL BUSINESS MUNICH UNTERFOHR 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
SERVICES GMBH ING
Issued capital EUR 1,525,600
619  UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING 100.00
EXPORT GMBH PARTICIPATION MANAGEMENT
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 11,745,607
620 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
PARTICIPATION MANAGEMENT
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 7,476,432
621 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 DV ALPHA GMBH 100.00
VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 156,905
622 UNICREDIT INGATLANLIZING ZRT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital HUF 81,000,000
623  UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD 100.00
EOOD
Issued capital BGN 5,000
624  UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION 100.00
SRL IFN S.A.
Issued capital RON 25,000
625  UNICREDIT INTERNATIONAL BANK LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
(LUXEMBOURG) SA G G
Issued capital EUR 10,000,000
626 UNICREDIT JELZALOGBANK ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000,000
627  UNICREDIT KFZ LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 648,265
628 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 10.00
GMBH BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 93,510,420 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 89.98 90.00
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.02 4)
THE GROUP
629  UNICREDIT LEASING AVIATION HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,600,000
630 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING 0.10
IFN S.A. IFN S.A.
Issued capital RON 41,144,990 UNICREDIT TIRIAC BANK S.A. 99.90
631  UNICREDIT LEASING CROATIA D.O.O. ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
ZA LEASING
Issued capital HRK 28,741,800
632  UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC 100.00
AND SLOVAKIA, AS.
Issued capital CZK 981,452,000
633 UNICREDIT LEASING D.O.O. SARAJEVO SARAJEVO 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital BAM 2,120,953
634 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 2,605,000
635  UNICREDIT LEASING FINANCE GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 17,580,000
636 UNICREDIT LEASING FLEET BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 DV ALPHA GMBH 90.02
MANAGEMENT S.R.L.
Issued capital RON 680,000 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION 9.98

IFN S.A.
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637 UNICREDIT LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
FUHRPARKMANAGEMENT GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 364,000
638  UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,000,000
639 UNICREDIT LEASING HUNGARY ZRT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 BA EUROLEASE 5.00
BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 350,000,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 95.00
GMBH
640 UNICREDIT LEASING IMMOTRUCK BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 BA EUROLEASE 28.57
ZRT. BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 100,000,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 71.43
GMBH
641 UNICREDIT LEASING KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,100,000
642  UNICREDIT LEASING LUNA KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 80.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
643  UNICREDIT LEASING MARS KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 80.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
644 UNICREDIT LEASING REAL ESTATE BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. 100.00
S.R.O.
Issued capital EUR 106,221
645 UNICREDIT LEASING ROMANIA S.A. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING
IFN S.A.
Issued capital RON 880,000 UNICREDIT TIRIAC BANK S.A. 100.00
646  UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 410,131,062
647 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA A.S. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 26,560,000
648  UNICREDIT LEASING SRBIJA D.O.O. BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
BEOGRAD
Issued capital RSD 693,877,000
649  UNICREDIT LEASING TECHNIKUM VIENNA VIENNA 1 LEASFINANZ GMBH 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,435,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
650  UNICREDIT LEASING TOB KIEV KIEV 1 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 100.00
Issued capital UAH 5,083,582
651 UNICREDIT LEASING URANUS KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 80.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
652  UNICREDIT LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE GMBH & GMBH
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500
653 UNICREDIT LEASING, LEASING, LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT BANKA SLOVENIJA D.D. 0.62
D.O.0.
Issued capital EUR 12,699,658 UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. 99.38
654 UNICREDIT LUNA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
655 UNICREDIT LUXEMBOURG FINANCE LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 1 UNICREDIT INTERNATIONAL BANK 100.00
SA G G (LUXEMBOURG) SA
Issued capital EUR 350,000
656  UNICREDIT LUXEMBOURG S.A. LUXEMBOUR LUXEMBOUR 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
G G

Issued capital EUR 238,000,000
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657 UNICREDIT MOBILIEN UND KFZ VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 98.80 99.00
LEASING GMBH LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
658 UNICREDIT OBG S.R.L. VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000
659 UNICREDIT OBG SRL (COVERED VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 3)
BONDS)
660 UNICREDIT PARTNER D.O.O. BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 ALLEGRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
BEOGRAD M.B.H.
Issued capital RSD 2,001,875
661 UNICREDIT PARTNER D.O.0.ZA ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING 20.00
POSREDOVANJE U OSIGURANJU VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE GMBH
Issued capital HRK 200,000 UNICREDIT LEASING CROATIA D.O.O. 80.00
ZA LEASING
662 UNICREDIT PARTNER LLC KIEV KIEV 1 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING 100.00
VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE GMBH
Issued capital UAH 53,557
663 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 74.80 75.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
664  UNICREDIT POJISTOVACI PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
MAKLERSKA SPOL.S R.O.
Issued capital CZK 510,000
665 UNICREDIT POLARIS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
666  UNICREDIT RENT D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital RSD 43,500
667  UNICREDIT SUBITO CASA SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 500,000
668  UNICREDIT TECHRENT LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 99.00
GMBH LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 1.00
GMBH
669  UNICREDIT TIRIAC BANK S.A. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 ARNO 0.01
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital RON 1,101,604,066 BANK AUSTRIA-CEE 0.01
BETEILIGUNGSGMBH
BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 0.01
LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 95.52 50.56
6
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 0.01
GMBH
UNICREDIT LEASING ROMANIA S.A. .
670 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND 100.00
MANAGEMENT CEE GMBH MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 750,000
671 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 72,673
672  UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC NEW YORK WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00

Issued capital USD 130

N
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673 UNICREDIT ZAVAROVALNO LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING 100.00
ZASTOPINSKA DRUZBA D.O.O. VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 40,000
674  UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
675  UNICREDIT ZWEITE BETEILIGUNGS MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
676  UNICREDIT-LEASING HOSPES KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 1,000,000
677 UNICREDIT-LEASING NEPTUNUS KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 96.35
M.B.H.
Issued capital HUF 3,010,000
678 UNICREDIT-LEASING ORION BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 AWT HANDELS GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT M.B.H.
FELELOSSEGUE TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
679  UNICREDITO ITALIANO CAPITAL NEWARK NEWARK 1 UNICREDITO ITALIANO FUNDING LLC 100.00
TRUST I n
Issued capital EUR 1,000
680 UNICREDITO ITALIANO CAPITAL NEWARK NEWARK 1 UNICREDITO ITALIANO FUNDING LLC 100.00
TRUST IV v
Issued capital GBP 1,000
681 UNICREDITO ITALIANO FUNDING LLC WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
1] N N
Issued capital EUR 1,000
682 UNICREDITO ITALIANO FUNDING LLC WILMINGTO WILMINGTO 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
v N N
Issued capital GBP 1,000
683  UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
REALITAETEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 32,715,000
684  UNO-EINKAUFSZENTRUM- LEONDING LEONDING 1 TREUCONSULT 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H. M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 37,000
685 US PROPERTY INVESTMENTS INC. DALLAS DALLAS 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 100,000
686 V.M.G. MUNICH MUNICH 1 H.F.S. HYPO-FONDSBETEILIGUNGEN 100.00
VERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH FUR SACHWERTE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,565
687 VANDERBILT CAPITAL ADVISORS CHICAGO WILMINGTO 1 PIONEER INSTITUTIONAL ASSET 100.00
LLC N MANAGEMENT INC
688  VAPE COMMUNA VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESE 74.80 75.00
LEASINGGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. LLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA
CREDITANSTALT LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 431,630 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 25.00
GMBH
VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
689  VECTIGAL IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO VIENNA VIENNA 1 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 100.00
KG GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 2,470,930
690 VERBA MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MIT
BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000
691 VERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 88.08 88.03
& CO OBJEKT MOC KG
Issued capital EUR 48,728,161 LANDOS IMMOBILIEN- UND 0.06

PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
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692 VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
KATHARINENHOF MBH
Issued capital EUR 511,292
693  VIENNA DC BAUTRAEGER GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 WED WIENER 100.00
ENTWICKLUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
FUER DEN DONAURAUM
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 18,168
694  VIENNA DC TOWER 1 VIENNA VIENNA 1 WED DONAU-CITY GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
LIEGENSCHAFTSBESITZ GMBH M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 17,500
695  VIENNA DC TOWER 2 VIENNA VIENNA 1 WED DONAU-CITY GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
LIEGENSCHAFTSBESITZ GMBH M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 17,500
696  VILLINO PACELLI SRL ROME ROME 1 IMMOBILIARE PATETTA SRL 100.00
Issued capital EUR 41,600
697  VISCONTI SRL MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 76.00
Issued capital EUR 11,000,000
698  VUWB INVESTMENTS INC. ATLANTA ATLANTA 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
Issued capital USD 10,000
699 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
HOLDING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
700  WEALTHCAP EQUITY GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 500,000
701 WEALTHCAP EQUITY MANAGEMENT MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP EQUITY GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
702  WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 512,000
703  WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL 100.00
HOLDING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,533,876
704  WEALTHCAP INVESTMENTS INC. COUNTRY WILMINGTO 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
OF NEW N
CASTLE
Issued capital USD 312,000
705 WEALTHCAP MUNICH MUNICH 1 H.F.S. HYPO-FONDSBETEILIGUNGEN 100.00
INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH FUR SACHWERTE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 60,000
706  WEALTHCAP MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL 100.00
KAPITALVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCH HOLDING GMBH
AFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 125,000
707 WEALTHCAP LEASING GMBH MUNICH GRUNWALD 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL 100.00
HOLDING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
708 WEALTHCAP PEIA KOMPLEMENTAR GRUNWALD GRUNWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT 100.00
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
709 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL 94.00
HOLDING GMBH
710 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MUNICH MUNICH 1 H.F.S. HYPO-FONDSBETEILIGUNGEN 100.00
MANAGEMENT GMBH FUR SACHWERTE GMBH
Issued capital EUR 60,000
711 WEALTHCAP STIFTUNGSTREUHAND MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
712 WEALTHCAP USA IMMOBILIEN MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
713  WED DONAU-CITY GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 WED WIENER 100.00

M.B.H.

Issued capital EUR 726,728

ENTWICKLUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
FUER DEN DONAURAUM
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
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714 WED HOLDING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 53.83
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 72,673
715  WED WIENER VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 38.00
ENTWICKLUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
FUER DEN DONAURAUM
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
Issued capital EUR 3,634,368 WED HOLDING GESELLSCHAFT 62.00
M.B.H.
716  WIEN MITTE IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 B Al BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA 50.00
IMMOBILIEN GMBH
Issued capital EUR 17,500 BA-CA WIEN MITTE HOLDING GMBH 50.00
717 WOEM VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GMBH
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 3,322,141 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
718 WOHNBAUERRICHTUNGS-UND- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 0.28
VERWERTUNGS-GMBH BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 6,615,700 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 99.72
719  WOHNPARK BRANDENBURG- BRANDENBU BRANDENBU 1 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 5.18
GORDEN GMBH RG RG
Issued capital EUR 51,150 KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU- 94.82
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
720 Z LEASING ALFA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
721  Z LEASING ARKTUR IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
722 Z LEASING AURIGA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
723 Z LEASING CORVUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA EUROLEASE 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
724 Z LEASING DORADO IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
725  Z LEASING DRACO IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)
THE GROUP
726  Z LEASING GAMA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
727 Z LEASING GEMINI IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
728  Z LEASING HEBE IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 GEBAEUDELEASING 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNGSGESE
LLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
729 Z LEASING HERCULES IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 4)

THE GROUP
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730 Z LEASING IPSILON IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. UND VERWERTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
731 Z LEASING ITA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
732 Z LEASING JANUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
733 Z LEASING KALLISTO IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 263,958 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
734 Z LEASING KAPA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
735  Z LEASING LYRA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
736 Z LEASING NEREIDE IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
737 Z LEASING OMEGA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
738 Z LEASING PERSEUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING ARGO 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH
Issued capital EUR 16,134,987
739  Z LEASING SCORPIUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
740 Z LEASING TAURUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA EUROLEASE 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 73,000 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
741 Z LEASING VENUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
742 Z LEASING VOLANS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) 99.80 100.00
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 VIA A TRUST COMPANY OUTSIDE 0.20 (4)
THE GROUP
743  ZABA PARTNER DOO ZA ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
POSREDOVANJE U OSIGURANJU |
REOSIGURANJU
Issued capital HRK 1,500,000
744 ZAGREB NEKRETNINE DOO ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 5,000,000
745 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 84.48
Issued capital HRK 6,404,839,100
746 ZANE BH DOO SARAJEVO SARAJEVO 1 ZAGREB NEKRETNINE DOO 100.00
Issued capital BAM 131,529
747  ZAO LOCAT LEASING RUSSIA MOSCOW MOSCOwW 1 OO0 UNICREDIT LEASING 100.00
Issued capital RUR 107,000,000
748  ZAPADNI TRGOVACKI CENTAR RIJEKA RIJEKA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL 100.00

D.O.O.
Issued capital HRK 20,000

REALITAETEN GMBH
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749 ZB INVEST DOO ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 4,000,000
750  ZETA FUENF HANDELS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 17,500
751 ZM REVITALISIERUNGS-UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT 0.04
VERMIETUNGS-GMBH BETEILIGUNG GES.M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 2,056,561 EKAZENT 99.96

REALITAETENGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.

Notes to the table that shows the companies included in the scope of consolidation line-by-line:
(1) Type of relationship:

1 = majority of voting rights at ordinary shareholders’ meeting;

2 = dominant influence at ordinary shareholders’ meeting;

3 = agreements with other shareholders;

4 = other types of control;

5 = centralized management pursuant to paragraph 1 of art. 26 of “Legislative decree 87/92";

6 = centralized management pursuant to paragraph 2 of art. 26 of “Legislative decree 87/92”;
(2) Voting rights available in general meeting. Voting rights are disclosed only if different from the percentage of ownership.
(3) Entities consolidatedline by line under IFRS 10 as a result of the simultaneous availability of power to govern the relevant activities and exposures to
variability of related returns.
(4) In the consolidated financial statements the Group’s stake is 100% as the trust company does not share in the profits. The voting rights are held by the
grantor, a Group company.
(5) The equity investment in Unicredit Bank D.D. is consolidated at 99% by virtue of UniCredit S.p.A.’s and Zagrebacka Banka D.D’s.direct shareholdings,
Unicredit Bank Austria AG’s direct shareholding of 24.40% and its option on minority interests representing 5.74% of the share capital.
(6) The equity investment in Unicredit Tiriac Bank S.A. is consolidated at 95.56% by virtue of a direct investment equal to 50.60% and an option on minority
interests representing 44.96% of share capital.
(7) To be struck off the Register of Companies.
(8) One borrower has also been consolidated through HVB Gesellschaft Fir Gebdude MbH & Co KG in accordance with IFRS 10. The borrower has the
German legal form of GmbH & Co. KG (a type of limited partnership), the only asset of which is a property over which HVB gained economic ownership
during the course of restructuring. Under the provisions set forth in IFRS 10, this leads to an obligation on the part of HVB to consolidate the borrower. The
Company shareholders’ equity of €28 million that is held by third parties is shown in the consolidated balance sheet under minority interest. For data
protection reasons, no further details, including the name of the company involved, are provided.
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Changes in the scope of consolidation

Companies consolidated line by line, including the Parent Company, increased by 19 entities compared with December 31,
2013 ( 76 inclusions, of which 27 following the introduction of IFRS 10 and 49 acquisitions and newly-formed entities, and 57
exclusions as a result of disposals and mergers) from 732 as at December 31, 2013 — 759 under the new IFRS 10 —to 751 as
at December 31, 2014.

Companies consolidated proportionately, which numbered 26 at the end of December 2013, amounted to O following the
introduction of IFRS 11: 18 were consolidated at equity method; since January 1, 2014, 8 minor entities in which the Group has
indirect shareholdings have been consolidated synthetically through the consolidation at equity method of the direct investment.

Wholly-owned subsidiaries

The following table shows the changes in equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries (consolidated line by line).

Number of companies

A. Opening balance 2013 732
A. New entities consolidated in accordance with the Principles IFRS 10 27
A. Opening balance 2014 with the Principles IFRS 10 759
B. Increased by 49
B.1 Newly established companies 2
B.2 Change of the consolidation method 4
B.3 Entities consolidated for the first time in 2014 43
C. Reduced by 57
C.1 Disposal 42
C.2 Change of the consolidation method -
C.3 Absorption by other Group entities 15
D. Closing balance 751
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The table below shows the entities consolidated for the first time following the adoption of the new IFRS 10:

Entities consolidated for the first time in

2014 in accordance with the Principles

IFRS 10

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
LOCAT SV SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE CONEGLIANO F-E MORTGAGES SRL VERONA
: SERIE 2005) (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : F-E

MORTGAGES SERIES 1 - 2003)
LOCAT SV SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE CONEGLIANO HELICONUS SRL VERONA
: SERIE 2006) (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : HELICONUS)
TREVI FINANCE SPA TREVISO CORDUSIO RMBS SRL VERONA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : TREVI (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CORDUSIO
FINANCE) RMBS)
TREVI FINANCE N 2 SPA TREVISO CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION VERONA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : TREVI SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE :
FINANCE 2) CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION -

SERIE 2007)
TREVI FINANCE N 3 SRL TREVISO CORDUSIO RMBS - UCFIN SRL VERONA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : TREVI (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CORDUSIO
FINANCE 3) RMBS UCFIN - SERIE 2006)
ENTASI SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : ROME CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION VERONA
ENTASI) SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE :

CORDUSIO RMBS SECURITISATION -

SERIE 2006)
UNICREDIT BPC MORTAGE SRL VERONA LARGE CORPORATE ONE SRL VERONA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE) (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : LARGE

CORPORATE)
UNICREDIT OBG SRL VERONA CONSUMER TWO SRL VERONA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE) (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CONSUMER

TWO)
IMPRESA ONE SRL VERONA LOCAT SV SRL CONEGLIANO
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : IMPRESA (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : SERIE 2011)
ONE)
CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL VERONA F-E GOLD SRL MILAN
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : BIPCA (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : F-E GOLD)
CORDUSIO RMBS)
CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL VERONA SALONE N. 1 SPA TREVISO
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CAPITAL
MORTGAGE 2007 - 1)
CONSUMER ONE SRL VERONA SALONE N. 2 SPA TREVISO
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CONSUMER
ONE)
F-E MORTGAGES SRL VERONA SALONE N. 3 SPA TREVISO
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : F-E
MORTGAGES 2005)
REAL INVEST EUROPE D BA RI KAG AUSTRIA

The tables below analyze the other increases and decreases occurred during the year by company:
Increases
e estab ed companie

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
UNICREDIT SUBITO CASA SPA MILAN UCTAM HUNGARY KFT BUDAPEST

These are companies attributable to Unicredit SpA and to the sub-group Bank Austria.

Change of the consolidation
method

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
UNO-EINKAUFSZENTRUM- LEONDING WIEN MITTE IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.

BAREAL IMMOBILIENTREUHAND GMBH VIENNA GARAGE AM HOF GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA
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The changes in the consolidation method can be summarised as:

- transfer from item 100) Investments in entities subject to significant influence valued at Net Equity of the company

WIEN MITTE IMMOBILIEN GMBH

- transfer from item 100) Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries of the company UNO-EINKAUFSZENTRUM-
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
- transfer from item 100) Equity investment subject to significant influence valued at cost of the company BAREAL

IMMOBILIENTREUHAND GMBH

- transfer from item 40) Available for sale financial assets, Investments valued at cost of the company GARAGE AM

HOF GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.

Entities consolidated for the first time in

2014

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE

NEWSTONE MORTGAGE SECURITIES No.1 LONDON WEALTHCAP MUNICH

PLC KAPITALVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
MBH

NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD SECHS VIENNA NORDBAHNHOF BAUFELD 39 VIENNA

PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH & CO KG PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH & CO KG

KLEA WOHNBAU GESELLSCHAFT GMBH VIENNA EUROGATE PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH VIENNA

KUR- UND SPORTHOTEL GESELLSCHAFT KITZBUHEL EUROGATE PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG GMBH VIENNA

M.B.H. & CO AREA BETA KG

LINDENGASSE VIENNA HBF PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG DREI GMBH & VIENNA

BUROHAUSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG

VECTIGAL IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO KG VIENNA HBF PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG EINS GMBH & VIENNA
COKG

B 03 IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO KG VIENNA HBF PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG ZWEI GMBH VIENNA
& COKG

B A | BAUTRAGER AUSTRIA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH VIENNA

GMBH

BAI VIENNA IMU IMMOBILIENENTWICKLUNG VIENNA

WOHNUNGSEIGENTUMSGESELLSCHAFT MUTHGASSE GMBH & CO KG

M.B.H.

DOBLERHOF IMMOBILIEN GMBH & CO KG VIENNA INV TOTALUNTERNEHMER GMBH VIENNA

DONAUTURM VIENNA KLEA TERRAIN- UND BAU-GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA

LIEGENSCHAFTSVERWALTUNGS- M.B.H.

GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.

DONAUTURM AUSSICHTSTURM-UND VIENNA LBC VIENNA

RESTAURANT-BETRIEBSGESELLSCHAFT UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGSGES.M.B.H.

M.B.H.

DONAUMARINA PROJEKTENTWICKLUNG VIENNA PRO WOHNBAU AG VIENNA

GMBH

DR. W. W. DONATH VIENNA RVT BAUTRAEGER GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA

IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNG GMBH

EKAZENT GEBAEUDEVERMIETUNG GMBH VIENNA WOHNBAUERRICHTUNGS-UND- VIENNA
VERWERTUNGS-GMBH

EKAZENT IMMOBILIEN MANAGEMENT VIENNA WOHNPARK BRANDENBURG-GORDEN BRANDENBURG

GMBH GMBH

EKAZENT REALITAETENGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA ZM REVITALISIERUNGS-UND VIENNA

M.B.H. VERMIETUNGS-GMBH

EUROGATE BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNG VIENNA ELEKTRA PURCHASE N. 32 SA. LUXEMBOURG

GMBH

ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 35 LIMITED DUBLIN ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 36 LIMITED DUBLIN

ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 33 LIMITED DUBLIN ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 34 LIMITED DUBLIN

UNICREDIT ZWEITE BETEILIGUNGS GMBH MUNICH ARENA NPL ONE SR.L. VERONA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE 2014)

LOCAT SV SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : CONEGLIANO

SERIE 2014)

The entities included in the first consolidation are basically the 31 companies deriving from the purchase of 100% of the equity
interest in Immobilien Holding in which the Bank Austria Group already held a right to a share of the economic results for 88%
and 8 SPVs consolidated on the basis of IFRS 10.
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Reductions

Disposa

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
CA-LEASING TERRA POSLOVANJE Z LJUBLJANA EUROFINANCE 2000 SRL (IN ROME
NEPREMICNINAMI D.0O.0. LIQUIDAZIONE)
PIONEER INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LLC MOSCOW MEZZANIN FINANZIERUNGS AG VIENNA
- UNDER LIQUIDATION
SCHOTTENGASSE 6-8 IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA UCTAM RK LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ALMATY CITY
UND CO OG
HVB ASIA LIMITED (IN LIQUIDATION) SINGAPORE CA-LEASING ALPHA BUDAPEST

INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT

FELELOSSEGU TARSASAG
UNICREDIT CAIB ROMANIA SRL (IN BUCAREST HVB-LEASING OTHELLO BUDAPEST
LIQUIDAZIONE) INGATLANHASNOSITO KORLATOLT

FELELOSSEGU TARSASAG
UNICREDIT LONDON INVESTMENTS LONDON HVB FINANCE LONDON LIMITED LONDON
LIMITED
HVB LONDON INVESTMENTS (CAM) LONDON UNICREDIT CAIB SECURITIES ROMANIA BUCAREST
LIMITED SA
BAL PAN IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA GELDILUX-PP-2011 SA LUXEMBOURG
ELEKTRA PURCHASE No. 24 LTD DUBLIN SALOME FUNDING PLC DUBLIN
GRAND CENTRAL RE LIMITED IN LIQ HAMILTON BANDON LEASING LIMITED DUBLIN
GELDILUX-TS-2010 SA LUXEMBOURG GELDILUX-TS-2011 SA LUXEMBOURG
ELEKTRA PURCHASE No. 23 LTD DUBLIN HOKA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA
CHRISTOPH REISEGGER GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA TREVI FINANCE SPA CONEGLIANO
M.B.H. IN LIQU. (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : TREVI FINANCE)
TREVI FINANCE N 2 SPA CONEGLIANO PRIM Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE : TREVI FINANCE 2) GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
ISTRATURIST UMAG, HOTELIJERSTVO UMAG ISTRA D.M.C. DOO UMAG
TURIZAM | TURISTICKA AGENCIJA DD
UNICREDIT BUSINESS PARTNER S.R.O. IN PRAGA HVB GLOBAL ASSETS COMPANY (GP), NEW YORK
LIQUIDATION LLC IN LIQ. ( ex. HVB GLOBAL ASSETS

COMPANY (GP), LLC)
DAB BANK AG MUNICH DIREKTANLAGE AT AG SALZBURG
LOCALMIND SPA IN LIQUIDAZIONE MILAN CHIYODA FUDOSAN GK TOKYO
BARD PHONIX VERWALTUNGS GMBH EMDEN MERIDIONALE PETROLI SRL VIBO

VALENTIA
SOCIETA' PETROLIFERA GIOIA TAURO SRL REGGIO SOCIETA' DEPOSITI COSTIERI - ROME
CALABRIA SO.DE.CO. SRL

PETROLI INVESTIMENTI SPA CIVITAVECCHIA NXP CO-INVESTMENT PARTNERS VIII L.P. LONDON

The above table refers to disposals and liquidations of inactive companies.
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Absorption by other Group
entities

KAPITALVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
(ex. WMC MANAGEMENT GMBH )

COMPANY NAME OF THE SURVIVING
COMPANY NAME OF THE MERGED ENTITY MAIN OFFICE ENTITY MAIN OFFICE
M.A.l.L. FINANZBERATUNG GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA | >>> | TREUCONSULT VIENNA
M.B.H. BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
AWT INTERNATIONAL TRADE GMBH VIENNA | >>> | UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL VIENNA
REALITAETEN GMBH
FINECO LEASING S.P.A BRESCIA | >>> | UNICREDIT LEASING S.P.A. MILAN
AS UNICREDIT FINANCE RIGA | >>> | SIA UNICREDIT LEASING RIGA
PROPERTY SP. Z.0.0. (IN LIQUIDAZIONE) WARSAW | >>> [ PEKAO PROPERTY SA WARSAW
IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH VIENNA | >>> | BA-CA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE VIENNA
ADVISORY GMBH
CAC-IMMO SRO PRAGA | >>> | HVB LEASING CZECH REPUBLIC S.R.O. PRAGA
CA-LEASING PRAHA S.R.O. PRAGA | >>> | HVB LEASING CZECH REPUBLIC S.R.O. PRAGA
SOLARIS VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH | >>> | ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS MUNICH
MBH & CO. VERMIETUNGS KG GMBH
BARD EMDEN ENERGY GMBH & Co. KG EMDEN | >>> | BARD HOLDING GMBH EMDEN
BARD BUILDING GMBH & Co. KG EMDEN | >>> | BARD HOLDING GMBH EMDEN
BARD SERVICE GMBH EMDEN | >>> | BARD HOLDING GMBH EMDEN
BARD LOGISTIK GMBH EMDEN | >>> | BARD ENGINEERING GMBH EMDEN
BARD NEARSHORE HOOKSIEL GMBH EMDEN | >>> | BARD HOLDING GMBH EMDEN
BARD SCHIFFSBETRIEBSGESELLSCHAT EMDEN | >>> | BARD LOGISTIK GMBH EMDEN
MBH & Co. NATALIE KG
The following table shows the Entities which changed their company name during the period:
Entities line by line which
changed the company name
during 2014
COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
AS UNICREDIT FINANCE (ex. AS UNICREDIT RIGA ROMA 2000 SRL IN LIQUIDAZIONE (ex. ROME
BANK, LATVIA) ROMA 2000 SRL)
CHRISTOPH REISEGGER GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA UNICREDIT BUSINESS PARTNER S.R.O. PRAGUE
M.B.H. IN LIQ (ex. CHRISTOPH REISEGGER IN LIQUIDATION (ex. UNICREDIT
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.) BUSINESS PARTNER S.R.O.)
BACA NEKRETNINE DRUSTVO SA SARAJEVO GRAND CENTRAL RE LIMITED IN LIQ (ex. HAMILTON
OGRANICENOM ODGOVORNOSCU (ex. BACA GRAND CENTRAL RE LIMITED)
NEKRETNINE DOO )
UNICREDIT FUGGETLEN BUDAPEST HVB-LEASING GARO BUDAPEST
BIZTOSITASKOEZVETITOE SZOLGALTATO INGATLANHSZNOSITO KORLATOLT
KFT. (ex. UNICREDIT FUGGETLEN FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG (ex. HVB-
BIZTOSITASKOZVETITO KFT) LEASING GARO KFT)
HVB-LEASING JUPITER BUDAPEST HVB-LEASING NANO BUDAPEST
INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT INGATLANHASZNOSITO KORLATOLT
FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG (ex. HVB- FELELOESSEGUE TARSASAG (ex. HVB-
LEASING JUPITER KFT ) LEASING NANO KFT )
FMZ SAVARIA SZOLGALTATO KORLATOLT BUDAPEST UNICREDIT PARTNER D.0.0.ZA ZAGREB
FELELOESSEG TARSASAG (ex. FMZ SAVARIA POSREDOVANJE U OSIGURANJU (ex.
SZOLGALTATO KFT) UNICREDIT PARTNER D.0.0)
IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH (ex. BA-CA VIENNA GUS CONSULTING GMBH IN VIENNA
INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE ADVISORY LIQUIDATION ( ex. GUS CONSULTING
GMBH) GMBH)
TREVI FINANCE N. 2 S.R.L. (ex. TREVI CONEGLIANO TREVI FINANCE S.R.L. (ex. TREVI CONEGLIANO
FINANCE N. 2 S.P.A.) (TREVISO) FINANCE S.P.A.) (TREVISO)
WEALTHCAP INVESTMENTS INC. (ex. BLUE WILMINGTON HVB GLOBAL ASSETS COMPANY (GP), NEW YORK
CAPITAL INVESTMENT INC. ) LLC IN LIQ. ( ex. HVB GLOBAL ASSETS
COMPANY (GP), LLC)
AO UNICREDIT BANK ( ex. ZAO UNICREDIT MOSCOW BA PRIVATE EQUITY GMBH IN LIQU. (ex. VIENNA
BANK) BA PRIVATE EQUITY GMBH )
WEALTHCAP MUNICH
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Proportionately consolidated companies

The 26 joint ventures that had been consolidated proportionately until December 2013 amounted to 0 as a result of the
introduction of IFRS 11, under which it is no longer possible to adopt proportionate consolidation, replaced by the equity
method.

Investments in joint ventures (recognized using proportionate consolidati

annual changes

Number of
companies
A. Opening balance 2013 26
A. Entities that have changed of the consolidation method in accordance with the IFRS 11:
consolidated at equity method (18)

A. Entities that have changed of the consolidation method in accordance with the IFRS 11: since
January 1, 2014 consolidated synthetically through the consolidation at equity method of the direct
investment 8

A. Opening balance 2014 with the IFRS 11 -

The table below shows the entities no longer consolidated proportionately under the new IFRS 11:

Change of the consolidation
method under IFRS11

COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE

YAPI KREDI BANK NEDERLAND N.V. AMSTERDAM HYPO-BA LEASING SUD GMBH KLAGENFURT

YAPI KREDI BANK AZERBAIJAN CLOSED BAKU INPROX OSIJEK D.O.0. ZAGREB

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

YAPI VE KREDI BANKASI AS ISTANBUL YAPI KREDI HOLDING BV AMSTERDAM

YAPI KREDI BANK MOSCOW MOSCOW YAPI KREDI FAKTORING AS ISTANBUL

KOC FINANSAL HIZMETLER AS ISTANBUL YAPI KREDI YATIRIM MENKUL DEGERLER ISTANBUL
AS

STICHTING CUSTODY SERVICES YKB AMSTERDAM HYBA NEKRETNINE D.0.0. ZA ZAGREB
POSLOVANJE NEKRTNINAMA

SYNERGA NEKRETNINE D.0.0. ZA ZAGREB YAPI KREDI FINANSAL KIRALAMA AO ISTANBUL

POSLOVANJE NEKRETNIN-AMA

HYPO-BA PROJEKT, FINANCIRANJE D.O.O. LJUBLJANA UNICREDIT MENKUL DEGERLER AS ISTANBUL

INPROX LEASING, NEPREMICNINE, D.0.O. LJUBLJANA YAPI KREDI INVEST LIMITED LIABILITY BAKU
COMPANY

BA HYPO FINANCIRANJE D.0.0. ZA ZAGREB TASFIYE HALINDE YAPI KREDI B TIPI ISTANBUL

POSLOVANJE NEKRET- NINAMA YATIRIM ORTAKLIGI A.S.

HYPO-BA ZAGREB D.0.0. ZA POSLOVANJE ZAGREB YAPI KREDI PORTFOEY YOENETIMI AS ISTANBUL

NEKRETNINAMA

MONTREAL NEKRETNINE D.0.0. ZAGREB YAPI KREDI DIVERSIFIED PAYMENT GEORGE
RIGHTS FINANCE TOWN

ORBIT ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED HAMILTON FIDES LEASING GMBH VIENNA
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2. Significant assumptions and assessment in determining the consolidation scope

The Group determines the existence of control and, consequently, the consolidation scope, checking, with reference to the
entities in which it holds exposures:

. the existence of power over the relevant activities;

. the exposure to the variability of returns;

. the ability to use the power exercised in order to influence the returns to which it is exposed.

The factors that have been considered for the purposes of this assessment depend on the entity's governance methods,
purposes and equity structure. On this point, the Group differentiates between entities governed through voting rights, i.e.
operating entities, and entities not governed through voting rights, which comprise special purpose entities (SPEs) and
investment funds.

In the case of operating entities, the following factors provide evidence of control:
. more than half of the company's voting rights are held, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, unless, in rare cases,
it can be clearly demonstrated that this possess does not constitute control;
. half, or a lower proportion, of the votes exercisable in the shareholders' meeting are held and it is possible to govern
the relevant activities unilaterally through:
o the control of more than half of the voting rights in force of an agreement with other investors;
o the power to determine the entity's financial and operating policies in force of a contract or a statutory clause;
o the power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the Board of Directors or the equivalent governing
body, and that board or body is responsible for managing the company;
o the power to exercise the majority of voting rights in meetings of the Board of Directors or the equivalent
governing body, and that board or body is responsible for managing the company.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights, including those incorporated in options, way-out clauses, or instruments
convertible into shares, are taken into consideration when assessing the existence of control, in case they are substantial.
In particular, potential voting rights are considered substantial if all the following conditions are met:

. they can be exercised either immediately or at least in good time for the company's shareholders' meeting;

. there are no legal or economic barriers to exercising them;

. exercising them is economically convenient.

At 31 December, the Group holds the majority of the voting rights in all the operating entities subject to consolidation, with the
exception of five companies for which the Group, although not holding the majority of voting rights, (i) has signed shareholders’
agreements which enable it to appoint the majority of members of the governing body, or contractual agreements which
determine the possibility of managing the company’s business unilaterally, and (ii) is exposed to the variability of the said
company’s returns.

At the same date, two companies in which the Group, although holding the majority of shares, has signed shareholders'
agreements which mean that the majority of voting rights have been transferred to third parties, were excluded from the
consolidation scope.

It should also be noted that there are no cases in which control derives from holding potential voting rights.

Special purpose entities are considered controlled if the Group is, at one and the same time:

. exposed to a significant extent to the variability of returns, as a result of exposures in securities, of disbursing loans or
of providing guarantees. In this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to variability of
returns is significant if the Group has at least 30% of the most subordinated exposure, and

. capable of governing the relevant activities, also in a de facto manner. Examples of the power to govern on this point
are performing the role of sponsor or servicer appointed to recover underlying receivables, or managing the
company's business.

In particular, consolidated special purpose entities include:

. Conduits in which the Group performs the role of sponsor and is exposed to the variability of returns, as a result of
subscribing Asset Backed Commercial Paper issued by them and/or of providing guarantees in the form of letters of
credit or liquidity lines;

. vehicles used to carry out securitisation transactions in which the Group is the originator as a result of subscribing the
subordinated tranches;

. vehicles financed by the Group and established for the sole purpose of performing financial or operating leasing in
favour of customers that are financed by the Group;

. vehicles in which, as a result of deteriorating market conditions, the Group has found itself holding the majority of
financial exposure and, at the same time, managing the underlying assets or the related collections.

It should be noted that, in the case of special purpose entities set up as part of securitisation transactions pursuant to Italian
Law 130/99, the segregated assets are analysed separately with respect to the analysis of the SPE. For the latter, control is
assessed on the basis of possession of the voting rights attributed to the company's shares.

Investment funds managed by Group companies are considered controlled if the Group is significantly exposed to the variability
of returns and if the third-party investors have no rights to remove the management company.
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In this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to the variability of returns is significant if the Group
has at least 30% as a result of subscription of the units and commissions received for the management of the fund's assets.

Funds managed by Group companies that are in seed/warehousing phases are not considered controlled.

In this phase, in fact, the aim of the fund is to invest, in accordance with fund’s regulation, in financial and non financial assets
with the aim to allot the quotas to third party investors. Consequently it has been evaluated that the management company is
not able to exercise power due to its limited decision power

Investment funds managed by third-party companies are considered controlled if the Group is significantly exposed to the
variability of returns and at the same time, has the unilateral right to remove the management company. In this regard it is
assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to the variability of returns is significant if the Group has subscribed at
least 30% of the fund’s units.

With reference to December 31, 2014, it can be noted that 200 investees controlled under the terms of IFRS 10 were not
consolidated. Their consolidation would result in an increase of Group equity for € 32,159 thousand.

These 200 investee are composed by:
- 185 Operating entities
- 10 Investiment funds
- 5 Special Purpose entities

The 185 operating entities are constituted by:

- 16 entities for which a liquidation process is on-going. Their consolidation would determine a change in Group equity
for € 643 thousand;

- 161 entities whose total assets are below 1 million. Their consolidation would determine a change in Group equity for
€3,946 thousand,;

- 8 entities for which the diposal of their assets is expected in 2015 or that have not an operating structure that may
allow them to prepare IAS/IFRS Financial statements and that the Group has decided not to consolidate on a
cost/benefit basis. Consolidation of these entities would determine a change in Group equity for - € 3,373 thousand

The 10 investment funds are constituted by:
- 6 investment funds whose total assets is below € 600 thousand
- 3 investment funds whose quotas are entirely subscribed by the Group and for which consolidation would not
determine neither an increase in Group asset neither a change in Group equity. We note that for one of these funds
the disposal of the underlyings is on-going.
- 1 real estate, closed ended investment fund whose control has been acquired in the context of the recovery of
impaired loans. Its consolidation would determine an increase in the Group equity for € 22,824 thousand.

The 5 special purpose entities are entities whose control arises from the subscription of the most senior tranche and the
deterioration of the most subordinated tranche that was acquired by third party investors. This circumstance has determined the
exposure of the Group to the variability of returns of these entities and its ability to manage the underlying assets.

In this context we note that the loans provided to these entities are measured in accordance with the performance of underlying
assets. Their consolidation would determine a change in Group equity for € 8,119 thousand.

3. Equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests

3.1 Non-controlling interests, availability of votes of NClIs and dividends distributed to NCls

€000
MINORITIES EQUITY MINORITIES VOTING RIGHTS
NAME RATIOS % % DIVIDENDS TO MINORITIES
FINECOBANK SPA 34.50 34.50
BANK PEKAO SA 49.90 49.90 315,139
ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 15.52 15.52 9,453
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a. Equity investments with significant non-controlling interests: accounting information

Cash and ; 5 Tangible and . ; .
Legal Entities A-I;ost:tls Cash F;r:asrglsal intangible ﬁ?b&illr;gleasl Net Equity Ner;grt:ir:st
equivalents assets
BANK PEKAO SA 39,282,540 796,838 36,980,265 597,456 32,921,481 5,655,228 1,066,004
FINECOBANK SPA 16,835,996 5 16,310,674 180,010 15,817,346 592,887 228,246
ZAGREBACKA BANKA
D.D. 13,408,537 368,856 12,780,776 167,728 11,072,460 2,198,786 329,753
Profit . .
Profit Profit (Loss) Other .
G Operatin be(fLoorvSsSt)ax (Loss) after after tax Profit comprehensive Comi?]:;r:ﬁgswe
Legal Entities irr)momeg pcosts 9 e tax from from (Loss) income after @)
s continuing discontinued 1) tax
GEHITIIG operations operations ) W+@
operations P P
BANK PEKAO SA 1,734,032  (819,161) 784,042 635,646 - 635,646 114,164 749,810
FINECOBANK SPA 453727  (219,398) 229,730 149,907 - 149,907 (1,953) 147,954
ZAGREBACKA BANKA
D.D. 482,965  (221,664) 182,367 143,863 - 143,863 1,276 145,139

The data for Bank Pekao SA are the figure of the Pekao Sub-group, net of intercompany transactions between companies in the sub-group and
include the impacts related to the Purchase Price Allocation allocated to the Company. Net Equity, Profit (Loss), Comprehensive Income include
the amount related to the minorities of the Subgroup Pekao.

The data for Fineco Bank SpA include the impacts related to the Purchase Price Allocation allocated to the Company

4. Significant restrictions

Shareholder agreements, regulatory requirements and contractual agreements can limit the ability of the Group to access the
assets or settle the liabilities of its subsidiaries or restrict the latter from distribution of capital or dividends.

With reference to shareholder agreements, it should be noted that, with reference to consolidated companies UniCredit BPC
Mortgages S.r.l., UniCredit OBG S.r.l. and Trevi Finance 2 S.r.l., companies set up according to law 130/99 for the execution of
securitization transactions or the issuance of covered bonds (Obbligazioni Bancarie Garantite), shareholder agreements are in
place that allow the distribution of dividends only when the credit claims of guaranteed lenders and bearer of covered bonds are
satisfied. On 31 December 2014 the retained earnings of these companies amount to 158 thousand.

With reference to regulatory requirements, it should be noted, that UniCredit Group is a banking group that is subject to the
rules provided by Directive 2013/36/EU on “access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit
institutions and investment firms” (CRD) and by Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 on “prudential requirements for credit institutions
and investment firms” (CRR) and that controls financial institutions subject to the same regulation.

The ability of the controlled banks to distribute capital or dividends may be restricted to the fulfilment of these requirements in
terms of both capital ratios and Maximum Distributable Amount.

The capital ratios requested for UniCredit S.p.A., with particular reference to the consolidated ones, and agreed upon with
compentent Regulators (ECB) might be higher than the minimum requirements set by the mentioned regulations.

With reference to subsidiaries, commitments to maintain local supervisory capital higher than regulatory thresholds exist in
some jurisdictions and for some foreign entities of the Group.

With reference to contractual agreements, UniCredit group has also issued financial liabilities whose redemption, as required by
the already mentioned CRR, is subordinated to the consent by the authorization of competent authority. The value of these
instruments as of December 31, 2014 is equal to 17,187,735 thousand.

Finally, for information on encumbered assets either recognized or not recognized in financial statements please refer to
Part — E Information on risks and related risk management policies, Section 3 - Liquidity Risk.
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5. Other information

Please note that, as described in Section 3 — Consolidation Procedures and Scope, for the preparation of the Consolidated
Accounts the following sources have been used:

. UniCredit S.p.A. Accounts (draft) at December 31, 2014;

e the accounts as at December 31, 2014, approved by the competent bodies and functions, of the other fully
consolidated subsidiaries, duly reclassified and adjusted to take account of consolidation needs and, where
necessary, to align them to the Group accounting principles;

e the sub-consolidated Accounts of Compagnia Italpetroli Group including Compagnia Italpetroli S.p.A. and its direct
and indirect subsidiaries, at December 31, 2014.
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Section 4 — Subsequent Events
No material events have occurred after the balance sheet date that would make it necessary to change any of the information
given in the Consolidated Accounts as of December 31, 2014. For a description of the significant events after year end see the

specific paragraph of the Report on Operations.
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Section 5 — Other Matters

Since 2014 the following principles or accounting interpretations have become effective:
. IAS 27 revised — Separate Financial Statements (EU Regulation 1254/2012);
. IAS 28 revised — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (EU Regulation 1254/2012);
. IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements (EU Regulation 1254/2012);
. IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements (EU Regulation 1254/2012);
. IFRS 12 — Disclosure of interests in Other Entities (EU Regulation 1254/2012);
Amendments to IAS 36 — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (EU Regulation 1374/2013);
. Amendments to IAS 39 — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (EU Regulation 1375/2013);
. Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 — Transition Guidance (EU Regulation 313/2013);
. Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 — Investment Entities (EU Regulation 1174/2013);
. IFRIC 21 — Levies (EU Regulation 634/2014).

With regard to the entry into force of accounting principles IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 reference should be made to the specific
paragraph.

With regard to the entry into force of accounting principle IFRS 12 please note that it has been incorporated in the third revision
to Bank of Italy circular 262.

On 9 January 2015, the European Commission has approved the technical standards on harmonized statistical consolidated
regulatory reporting defined by European Banking Association (EBA) in draft on July 2014 (FINREP) concerning Non
Performing Exposures (NPE) and Forbearance and applied, on the base of these technical standards, already for the quarterly
FINREP reporting as of 30 September 2014.

The perimeter of impaired exposures following the instructions of Bank of Italy is substantially equivalent to the perimeter of
NPE EBA. Subsidiaries subject to regulatory supervision by authorities different from Bank of Italy shall apply local rules and
regulations for the classification of Non Performing exposures in the different risk classes. In order to prepare Consolidated
Financial statements according to the instruction provided by Italian regulatory authority, adjustments have been made to the
classification between risk classes that, otherwise, would have not been completely homogeneous.

For further information on the new EBA definitions of NPE and Forbearance please refer to Part E — Section 1 — Credit Risk

In this context please note that starting from January 1, 2015, Bank of Italy has updated the methodology of classification of
impaired financial positions (please refer to seventh revision of July 30, 2008 to Bank of Italy circular 272/2008 — “Matrice dei
conti” issued by Bank of Italy on January 20, 2015), in order to harmonize them to the definition of Non Performing Exposures
and Forbearance introduced by European Banking Authority through the document “Final draft Implementing Technical
Standards on Supervisory reporting on forbearance and non performing exposures” (EBA/ITS/2013/03/rev1 24/7/2014).

Even though no significant effects are expected from the application of the new Circular 272 on the overall amount of impaired
exposures, the changes in the monitoring processes requested by new EBA definition might determine a different dynamic in
the volumes of Forborne and Non performing, from the one that would have resulted following application of the previous risk
classes, reflecting the differences with respect to the detailed criteria for classification of the Restructured exposures previously
in force.

On 31 January 2015 EBA consultation concerning materiality thresholds for the measurements of Past due exposures has
ended (“Regulatory Technical Standards on materiality threshold of past due credit obligations”). Following this consultation, it is
expected that the criteria for classification of impaired exposures may be further modified. The effects of these changes can be
defined once the final version of this RTS will be issued.

The European Commission endorsed the following accounting principles and interpretations that will be applicable starting from
2015 financial statements:

. Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (EU Regulation 1361/2014);

. Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (EU Regulation 28/2015);

. Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19) (EU Regulation 29/2015).

As of December 31, 2014 the IASB issued the following standards, amendments, interpretations or revisions:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (July 2014)

. IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (January 2014);

. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (May 2014);

. Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (December
2014)

. Amendments to IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (December 2014);

. Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (September 2014);

. Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (September 2014);

. Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (August 2014);

. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants (June 2014);

. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (May 2014);

. Amendments to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (May 2014).

However, the application of these principles by the Group is subject to their transposition by the European Commission.

158 2014 Consolidated Reports and Accounts — UniCredit



We must specify that starting from January 1, 2014, as part of the periodic revision of the useful life of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the subsidiary UBIS S.C.p.A. revised upwards the useful lives used for the amortisation of
certain software platforms recognised among intangible assets. This revision is justified by the historical experience of using
these items which show longer time horizons of use than those used previously. As required by the accounting standard IAS 8
the revision of the useful life was applied prospectively and determined the recognition of lower amortisation in the year for an
amount of € 42 million.

The Consolidated Accounts and the Parent Company Accounts are audited by Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. pursuant to Legislative
Decree no. 39 of January 27, 2010 and to the resolution passed by the Shareholders' Meeting on May 11, 2012.

The UniCredit group prepared and published its Consolidated First Half Financial Report as at June 30, 2014, subject to limited
scope audit, as well as the Consolidated Interim Reports as at March 31 and September 30, 2014, within the time limits set by
law and in manner required by Consob.

The Parent Company Accounts and the Consolidated Accounts were approved by the Board of Directors meeting of March 12,
2015, which authorized their publication, also pursuant to IAS 10.

The entire document has been filed with the competent offices and entities as required by law.

IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IAS 27 and IAS 28

With specific reference to the introduction, on January 1, 2014, of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and the revised versions of IAS 27 and IAS
28, applicable retroactively to January 1, 2013, the following should be noted.

IFRS 10 partially replaces IAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” and totally replaces SIC 12,
“Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities”, and establishes a single control model that applies to all entities, including those that
were previously considered special purpose entities under SIC 12. According to the new definition of “control” an investor
controls an investee when it has power over the relevant activities, exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The application of this new standard resulted into first time consolidation of a real estate investment fund and 26 vehicles, of
which 21 securitization SPVs having UniCredit group as originator, 2 covered bond (Obbligazioni Bancarie Garantite) SPVs and
3 real estate SPVs. Control according to IFRS 10 made effect due to the fact that the Group has subscribed financial
instruments issued by the above mentioned entities, therefore being significantly exposed to the variability of their returns, and
is either servicer or manager of the underlying asset’s portfolio.

Please note that the underlying securitized assets of 17 of the 21 securitization SPVs and the 2 OBG SPVs mentioned above
consist of “assets sold not derecognized” from the originators’ financial statements that, as such, had already been recorded in
the Group’s consolidated accounts of the previous years.

Following the first time adoption of the new standards, the Group recorded a net negative change in Shareholders’ equity of
€125.4 million as at January 1, 2013.

IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, “Interests in Joint Ventures” and SIC 13, “Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions
by Venturers” and has eliminated the option to adopt proportional consolidation method, requiring the switch to the equity
method for the consolidation of joint controlled entities. A total of 26 companies, of which 15 belonging to the Koc/Yapi Kredi
group, were deconsolidated: 18 entities have been accounted for using the equity method and 8 minor entities, indirectly
participated, have been accounted for by applying the the equity method to the entity directly participated.

This resulted in a reduction in assets and liabilities (approximately €18.4 billion) with reference to the sole IFRS 11.

Lastly, please note that with reference to the foregoing changes as required by IAS 8, comparative information was restated
accordingly.
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The following tables report as of 31 December 2013, the changes recognized in balance sheet, respectively for assets and
liabilities, due to the adoption of the new standards.
Column “Other Adjustments” reports the re-classifications performed as of December 31, 2013 of:
. a counterparty reclassified from item Loans and receivables with customers to Loans and receivables with banks;
. the offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities performed according to IAS 12;
. some balance sheet items relating to the National Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund.

Following these changes, the data present in the tables of the consolidated Notes to the Accounts at December 31, 2013 have
been restated and differ from the published figures for the previous year.

In particular, as regards the movement tables, we can note that the changes related only to “Other Adjustments” determined
differences between the closing balance at December 31, 2013 and the opening balance at January 1, 2014.

Consolidated Balance Sheet - Assets

e e ieyrs  ReSTATED
12.31.2013 12.31.2013

10. Cash and cash balances 10,807,902 (287,730) - 10,520,172,
20. Financial assets held for trading 80,909,856 (209,178) - 80,700,678
30. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 30,492,558 1 - 30,492,559
40. Available-for-sale financial assets 85,874,071 (1,362,097) - 84,511,974
50. Held-to-maturity investments 5,305,424 (952,319) - 4,353,105
60. Loans and receivables w ith banks 61,118,875, 1,566,316 625,000 63,310,191
70. Loans and receivables w ith customers 503,142,266 (18,833,219) (625,000) 483,684,047
80. Hedging derivatives 9,648,577, (73,640) - 9,574,937,
90. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) 2,815,054 - - 2,815,054
100. Investments in associates and joint ventures 4,050,089 2,431,766 - 6,481,855

110. Insurance reserves attributable to reinsurers - - - -
120. Property, plant and equipment 10,950,133 (132,348) - 10,817,785
130. Intangible assets 5,383,782 (57,232) - 5,326,550
- of which goodw il 3,533,100 - - 3,533,100
140. Tax assets 19,950,592, (116,518) (1,618,938) 18,215,136,
a) current tax assets 1,329,721 (526) - 1,329,195
b) deferred tax assets 18,620,871 (115,992) (1,618,938) 16,885,941
- of which law 214/2011 13,145,129 - - 13,145,129
150. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 3,928,502 (152) - 3,928,350,
160. Other assets 11,460,763| (274,011) - 11,186,752
Total assets 845,838,444 (18,300,361) (1,618,938) 825,919,145
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Consolidated Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Equity

10. Deposits from banks

20. Deposits from customers
30. Debt securities in issue
4

o

Financial liabilities held for trading

50. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
60. Hedging derivatives

70. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-)
8l

©

Tax liabilities
a) current tax liabilities
d) deferred tax liabilities
90. Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale
100. Other liabilities
110. Provision for employee severance pay
120. Provisions for risks and charges
a) post retirement benefit obligations
b) other provisions
130. Insurance reserves
140. Revaluation reserves
150. Share capital repayable on demand
160. Equity instruments
170. Reserves
180. Share premium
190. Issued capital
200. Treasury shares (-)
21

o

. Minorities (+/-)
220. Net Profit or Loss (+/-)

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

oNALY  rReLACI Ol eesmareo
12.31.2013 12.31.2013
110,222,387 (2,777,734) 385,000 107,829,653
410,929,970 (17,431,944) (385,000) 393,113,026
160,093,779 4,172,673 - 164,266,452
63,168,605 630,878 - 63,799,483
701,723 8,980 - 710,703
8,682,387, (53,381) - 8,629,006
4,116,322 - - 4,116,322
3,971,739 (71,513) (1,618,938) 2,281,288
1,257,191 (2,494) - 1,254,697
2,714,548 (69,019) (1,618,938) 1,026,591
2,128,617, - - 2,128,617
20,938,492 (2,489,667) 32,299 18,481,124
1,080,778 - - 1,080,778
9,628,878 (169,571) (32,299) 9,427,008
5,728,312 (17,006) - 5,711,306
3,900,566 (152,565) (32,299) 3,715,702
(2,474,772) 25,695 - (2,449,077)
19,750,176 (144,707) - 19,605,469
23,879,202 - - 23,879,202
19,654,856 - - 19,654,856
(3,755) - - (3,755)
3,333,892 (70) - 3,333,822
(13,964,832) - - (13,964,832)
845,838,444/ (18,300,361) (1,618,938) 825,919,145

The following table reports the changes recognized in consolidated income statement as of December 31, 2013, due to the

adoption of the new standards.
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Consolidated Income Statement

10. Interest income and similar revenues
20. Interest expense and similar charges
30. Net interest margin
40. Fee and commission income
50. Fee and commission expense
60. Net fees and commissions
70. Dividend income and similar revenue
80. Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading
90. Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting
100. Gains and losses on disposal of:
a) loans
b) available-for-sale financial assets
c) held-to-maturity investments
d) financial liabilities
110. Gains and losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
120. Operating income
130. Impairment losses on:
a) loans
b) available-for-sale financial assets
c) held-to-maturity investments
d) other financial assets
140. Net profit from financial activities
150. Premiums earned (net)
160. Other income (net) frominsurance activities
170. Net profit from financial and insurance activities
180. Administrative costs:
a) staff expense
b) other administrative expense
190.
200.
210.

Net provisions for risks and charges

Impairment/w rite-backs on property, plant and equipment
Impairment/w rite-backs on intangible assets

220. Other net operating income

230. Operating costs

240.
250.
260.
270.

Profit (loss) of associates

Gains and losses on tangible and intangible assets measured at fair value
Impairment of goodw ill

Gains and losses on disposal of investments

280. Total profit or loss before tax from continuing operations

290. Tax expense (income) related to profit or loss from continuing operations
300. Total profit or loss after tax from continuing operations

310. Total profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations

320.
330.
340.

Net Profit or Loss for the year
Minorities

Holdings Income (Loss) of the year

ORIGINALLY IARS 49 QRIS OTHER

REPORTED ADJlIJFSFfI'SM];NTS ADJUSTMENTS RESAED

12.31.2013 12.31.2013
24,210,043 (1,562,829) - 22,647,214
(11,604,699) 875,291 - (10,729,408)
12,605,344 (687,538) - 11,917,806
9,261,626 (453,105) - 8,808,521
(1,668,014) 85,220 - (1,582,794)
7,593,612 (367,885) - 7,225,727
262,059 (1,143) - 260,916
1,305,016, (77,378) - 1,227,638
(15,099) (2,028) - (17,127)
2,439,964 (69,991) - 2,369,973
(5,735) 2,541 - (3,194)
1,999,929 (72,532) - 1,927,397
3,618 - - 3,618
442,152 - - 442,152
211,273 - - 211,273
24,402,169 (1,205,963) - 23,196,206
(13,758,324) 162,930 (48,237)| (13,643,631)
(13,795,152) 173,687 - | @3,621,465)
(146,600) - - (146,600)
(466) - - (466)
183,894 (10,757) (48,237) 124,900
10,643,845 (1,043,033) (48,237)| 9,552,575
83,251 (83,005) - 246
(67,669) 65,239 - (2,430)
10,659,427 (1,060,799) (48,237)| 9,550,391
(14,845,228) 459,148 - (14,386,080)
(9,272,544) 267,160 - (9,005,384)
(5,572,684) 191,988 - (5,380,696)
(879,343) 29,319 32,220  (817,804)
(870,297) 27,863 - (842,434)
(2,707,211) 13,499 - (2,693,712)
1,111,541 1,971 16,017| 1,129,529
(18,190,538) 531,800 48,237| (17,610,501)
103,499 415,363 - 518,862
(726) (1,783) - (2,509)
(7,989,792) 222,852 - (7,766,940)
217,919 (225,323) - (7,404)
(15,200,211) (117,890) - (15,318,101)
2,377,512 117,890 - 2,495,402
(12,822,699) - - (12,822,699)
(760,471) - - (760,471)
(13,583,170) - - (13,583,170)
(381,662) - - (381,662)

(13,964,832)

(13,964,832)

Please note that the adoption of the new accounting standards has determined a change in Comprehensive income after tax as
of December 31, 2013 of 6,430 thousand (from -14,263,446 thousand to -14,257,016 thousand) entirely attributable to the

change in the Total Comprehensive income after tax.
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A.2 — The Main Items of the Accounts

1 — Held-for-Trading Financial Assets (HfT)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:
. acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;
. part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
. a derivative (except for derivatives which constitute financial guarantees, see Section 18 — Other Information, and
derivatives designated as hedging instruments - see Section 6 — Hedge Accounting).

Like other financial instruments, on initial recognition, at settlement date, a held-for-trading financial asset is measured at its fair
value, usually equal to the amount paid, excluding transaction costs and income, which are recognized in profit and loss even
when directly attributable to the financial assets. Trading book derivatives are recognized at trade date.

After initial recognition these financial assets are measured at their fair value through profit or loss. An exception is represented
by derivatives settled by delivery of an unlisted equity instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, and which are
therefore measured at cost.

A gain or loss arising from sale or redemption or a change in the fair value of a HfT financial asset is recognized in profit or loss
in item 80. “Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading”, with the exception of financial derivatives relating
to a fair value option of whose gains and losses, whether realised or unrealized, are booked in item 110. “Gains (losses) on
financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit and loss" (see Section 5 — Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss). If the fair value of a financial instrument falls below zero, which may happen with derivative contracts, it is recognized
in item 40. “Financial liabilities held for trading”.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract that presents all three of the following characteristics:

. its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable (usually called the
‘underlying’);

. it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of
contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors;

. it is settled at a future date.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract,
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and recognized as a derivative if:
. the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host
contract;
. a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
. the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured entirely at fair value through profit or loss.

If it is necessary to separate an embedded derivative from its host contract, but it is not possible to measure the embedded
derivative separately either at acquisition or at a subsequent financial reporting date, the entire combined contract is treated as
a financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

When an embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is recognized according to its accounting classification.

A derivative that is attached to a financial instrument but is contractually transferable independently of that instrument, or has a
different counterparty from that instrument, is not an embedded derivative, but a separate financial instrument.
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2 — Available-for-sale Financial Assets (AfS)

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, financial assets held for trading or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. These assets are held for an indefinite period of time and can meet the need to ensure liquidity and face
changes in interest rates, exchange rates and prices.

AfS financial assets are money market instruments, other debt instruments (included host contract of hybrid instruments from
which embedded derivative has been bifurcated) or equity instruments; they include shares held as minority stakes where these
do not constitute controlling or associate interests, or joint control.

On initial recognition, at settlement date, an AfS financial asset is measured at fair value, which is usually equal to the
consideration of the transaction, plus transaction costs and income directly attributable to the instrument.

In subsequent periods AfS assets are measured at fair value, the interest on interest-bearing instruments being recognized at
amortized cost in the income statement. Gains or losses arising out of changes in fair value are recognized in equity item 140.
“Revaluation reserves” — except losses due to impairment and exchange rate gains or losses on monetary items (debt
instruments) which are recognized under item 130.b) “Impairment losses on AfS available for sale financial assets” and item 80.
“Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading” respectively - until the financial asset is sold, at which time
cumulative gains and losses presented in Revaluation reserves are recognized in profit or loss in item 100.b) “Gains (losses) on
disposal or repurchase of AfS financial assets”.

The fair value changes are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and disclosed in item 140. "Revaluation
reserves".

Equity instruments (shares) not listed in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined due to lack or
unreliability of information for the fair value measurement are valued at cost, equivalent to the last fair value reliably measured.

If there is objective evidence of an impairment loss on an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative loss that had been
recognized directly in equity item 140. “Revaluation reserves”, is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss under item
130 b) “Impairment losses (b) Available for sale financial assets”.

In respect of debt instruments, any circumstances indicating that the borrower/issuer is experiencing financial difficulties which
could prejudice the collection of the principal or interest, represent an impairment loss.

Lasting loss of value of equity instruments is assessed on the basis of indicators such as fair value below cost and adverse
changes in the environment in which the company operates, as well as the issuer’s debt service difficulties.

The loss of value is normally considered lasting if fair value falls to less than 50% of cost or lasts for more than 18 months.

If however the fall in the fair value of the instrument is over 20% but less than or equal to 50% or continues for no less than 9
but no longer than 18 months, UniCredit reviews further income and market indicators.

If the results of the review are such as to prejudice the recovery of the amount originally invested, a lasting loss of value is
recognized.

The amount taken to profit and loss is the difference between the carrying amount (value of initial recognition less any
impairment loss already recognized in profit or loss) and current fair value.

Where instruments are valued at cost, the amount of the loss is determined as the difference between their carrying value and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market yield on similar financial assets (the
recoverable amount).
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If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit worthiness occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed and the amount of the reversal is recognized in the same profit or loss item. The reversal cannot
result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss, but recognized at equity.

3 — Held to Maturity Investments (HtM)

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity different
from those that may be classified in Loans and receivables for which there is the positive intention and ability to hold them to
maturity (included host contract of hybrid instruments from which embedded derivative has been bifurcated).

If, during the financial year, more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments are sold or reclassified before
maturity, the remaining HtM financial assets shall be reclassified as available-for-sale and no financial assets shall be classified
as HtM investments for the two following financial years, unless the sales or reclassifications:
. are so close to maturity or the financial asset’s call date that changes in the market rate of interest would not have a
significant effect on the financial asset'’s fair value;
. occur after substantially all of the financial asset'’s original principal has been collected through scheduled payments
or prepayments;
. are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond the reporting entity’s control, is non-recurring and could not have
been reasonably anticipated.

After initial recognition at its fair value, which will usually be the price paid including transaction costs and income directly
attributable to the acquisition or provision of the financial asset (even if not yet settled), a held-to-maturity financial asset is
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The difference between the carrying value of the asset and the
amount received is taken to profit and loss under item 100 c) “Gains (losses) on disposal of HtM financial assets” when the
financial asset is derecognized.

If there is objective evidence that a held-to-maturity investment is impaired, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted using the original
effective interest rate of the financial asset. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced accordingly and the loss is recognized
in profit or loss under item 130(c) “Impairment losses (c) held-to-maturity investments”.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit worthiness occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. The reversal cannot result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds the
amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the same
profit or loss item.

Held-to-maturity investments cannot be hedged for other than credit risk and currency risk.
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4 — Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are recognized on the date of contract signing, which normally coincides with the date of
disbursement to the borrower.

These items include debt instruments with the above characteristics (included host contract of hybrid instruments from which an
embedded derivative has been bifurcated) or those subject to portfolio reclassification in accordance with the rules of IAS 39
(see Part A.3.1 below — Transfers between portfolios) and the net value of finance leases of assets under construction or
awaiting lease, provided the leases have the characteristics of contracts entailing the transfer of risk.

After initial recognition at fair value, which is usually the price paid including transaction costs and income directly attributable to
the acquisition or issuance of the financial asset (even if not yet paid), a loan or receivable is measured at amortized cost, which
can be adjusted to take account of any write-downs/write-backs resulting from the valuation process.

A gain or loss on loans and receivables is recognized in profit or loss:
. when a loan or receivable is derecognized: in item 100 (a) “Gains (losses) on disposal”;
or:
. when a loan or receivable is impaired (or the impairment loss previously recognized is reversed): in item 130 (a) “Net
losses/recoveries on impairment (a) loans and receivables”.

Interest on loans and receivables is recognized in profit or loss on an accrual basis by using the effective interest rate method
under item 10. “Interest income and similar revenue”.

Delay interest is taken to the income statement on collection or receipt.

Loans and receivables are reviewed in order to identify those that, following events occurring after initial recognition, show
objective evidence of possible impairment. These impaired loans are reviewed and analyzed periodically at least once a year.

A loan or receivable is deemed impaired when it is considered that it will probably not be possible to recover all the amounts
due according to the contractual terms, or equivalent value.

Allowances for impairment of loans and receivables are based on the present value of expected cash flows of principal and
interest; in determining the present value of future cash flows, the basic requirement is the identification of estimated collections,
the timing of payments and the rate used.

The amount of the loss on impaired exposure classified as non-performing, doubtful or restructured according to the categories
specified below, is the difference between the carrying value and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
original interest rate of the financial asset. If the original rate is not directly available, or if obtaining it is too burdensome, its best
approximation will be applied.

For all fixed rate positions the interest rate so determined is kept constant also in subsequent financial years, while for floating
rate positions the interest rate is updated with respect to the floating component used as a reference while keeping the spread
originally set constant.

Recovery times are estimated on the basis of business plans or forecasts based on historical recovery experience observed for
similar classes of loans, taking into account the segment of the customers, the type of loan, the type of security and any other
factors considered relevant.

Any subsequent change vis-a-vis initial expectations of the amount or timing of expected cash flows of principal and interest
causes a change in allowances for impairment and is recognized in profit or loss in item 130(a) “Impairment losses (a) loans and
receivables”.

In the Notes to the Accounts, write-downs of impaired loans are classified as specific in the relevant income statement item
even when the calculation is flat-rate or statistical, as indicated below.

When the reasons for the impairment no longer exist, and this assessment is objectively attributable to an event such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit worthiness occurred after the impairment, a reversal is made in the same profit or loss item,
within the amount of the amortized cost that there would have been if there had been no impairments.
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Derecognition of a loan or receivable in its entirety (write-off) is made when the legal rights on the loan have failed or the loan or
receivable is deemed to be irrecoverable or is written off. Write-offs are recognized directly in profit or loss under item 130(a)
“Net losses/recoveries on impairment (a) loans and receivables” and reduce the amount of the principal of the loan or
receivable. Reversals of all or part of amounts previously written off are recognized in the same item.

According to Bank of Italy regulations, as defined in circular 272 of July 30, 2008 and subsequent amendments, impaired
exposures, those that present the characteristics listed in paragraphs 58-62 of IAS 39, are classified into the following
categories:

. Non-performing loans — formally impaired loans, being exposure to insolvent borrowers, even if the insolvency has
not been recognized in a court of law, or borrowers in a similar situation. Measurement is generally on a loan-by-loan
basis (coverage ratios statistically and automatically determined for some loan portfolios below a predefined threshold
are also checked), for loans singularly not significant, on a portfolio basis for homogeneous categories of loans;

. Doubtful loans — exposure to borrowers experiencing temporary difficulties, which the Group believes may be
overcome within a reasonable period of time. Doubtful loans also include loans not classified as non-performing
granted to borrowers other than government entities where the following conditions are met:

0  They have fallen due and remained unpaid for more than 270 days (or for more than 150 or 180 days for
consumer credit exposure with an original term of less than 36 months, or 36 months or over, respectively);

o0  The amount of the above exposure to the same borrower and other defaulted payments that are less than
270 days overdue, is at least 10% of the total exposure to that borrower. Doubtful loans are valued
analytically when special elements make this advisable or by applying analytically flat percentages on a
historical or stochastic basis in the remaining cases.

. Restructured loans — exposure to borrowers with whom a rescheduling agreement has been entered into including
renegotiated pricing at interest rates below market or the conversion of part of a loan into shares (“debt to equity
swap”) and/or any reduction of principal; measurement is on a loan-by-loan basis, including discounted cost due to
renegotiation of the interest rate at a rate lower than the original contractual rate. Restructured exposures can be
reclassified under unimpaired loans only after two years have passed from the date of signing of the restructuring
agreement and a resolution has been adopted by the competent corporate bodies declaring that the debtor’s full
solvency has been restored and that there are no outstanding balances on all existing lines of credit. Loans under
renegotiation involving a debt/equity swap are valued, pending swap finalization, on the basis of the conversion
agreements entered into on the balance-sheet date. Any differences between the value of the loans and the fair value
of the shares at the initial recognition are taken to profit and loss as write-downs;

. past-due Impaired loans — total exposure to any borrower not included in the other categories, which at the balance-
sheet date has expired facilities or unauthorized overdrafts that are more than 90 days past due and meet the
requirements set out by supervisory regulations for their classification under the “past due exposures” category (TSA
banks) or under the “defaulted exposures” category (IRB banks). Total exposure is recognized in this category if, at
the balance-sheet date, either:

o the expired or unauthorized borrowing;
or:
o the average daily amount of expired or unauthorized borrowings during the last preceding quarter, is equal
to or exceeds 5% of total exposure.
Overdue exposures are valued using a statistical approach based on historical data, applying where available the
degree of risk as measured by the risk factor used for Regulation (EU) n. 575/2013 (CRR) on prudential requirements
for credit institutions and investment firms reporting (LGD — Loss given default).

Collective assessment is used for groups of loans for which individually there are no indicators of impairment: to these portfolios
a latent impairment can be attributed, according to the method described below, inter alia on the basis of the risk factors used
under supervisory regulations CRR.

Each loan with similar characteristics in terms of credit risk — in relation to loan type, the borrower’s sector of economic activity,
geographical location, type of security or other relevant factors — is assessed in terms of its probability of default and a loss
given default; these are uniform for each class of loan.
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The methods used combine supervisory regulations CRR recommendation and IFRS. The latter exclude future loan losses not
yet sustained, but include losses already sustained even if they were not manifest at the time of measurement, on the basis of
past experience of losses on assets having a similar risk profile to the assets being measured.

The average time elapsed from deterioration of borrowers’ financial condition to the recognition of impairment losses, in relation
to any homogeneous group of exposures, is the loss confirmation period.

The portfolio valuation is the product of the risk factors derived from the parameters used under supervisory regulations CRR
requirements (with a one-year time horizon) and the above loss confirmation periods expressed as part of a year and diversified
according to Loan classes on the basis of the characteristics of the customer’'s segment / portfolios.

If these indicators are not available, estimated value and standard loss percentages, based on internal historical series and
sectorial studies, shall be used.

Allowances for unsecured loans to residents of countries experiencing debt service difficulties, where the transfer risk is not
included in the rating system applied, are generally determined, country by country, with the aim of attributing latent impairment
on the basis of shared parameters.

Allowances for impairment reduce the loan or receivable’s carrying amount. The risk inherent in off-balance-sheet items, such
as loan commitments, losses due to impairment of guarantees and comparable credit derivatives under IAS 39, is recognized in
profit or loss under item 130(d) “Impairment losses (d) other financial assets” offsetting , offsetting item 100. “Other liabilities”).

Loan Securitizations
Loans and receivables also include according to the applicable product breakdown, loans securitized after January 1, 2002
which cannot be derecognized under IAS 39 (see Section 18 — Other Information - Derecognition).

Corresponding amounts received for the sale of securitized loans net of the amount of any issued securities and any other type
of credit enhancement held in portfolio (retained risk) are recognized in liability items 10. “Deposits from banks” and 20.
“Deposits from customers”.

Both assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost and interest received is recognized through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on securitized assets sold but not derecognized are reported in item 130(a) “Impairment losses (a) loans and
receivables”.
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5 — Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FlaFV)

Any financial asset may be designated, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 39 as a financial instrument measured at fair
value through profit and loss on initial recognition, except for the following:
. investments in equity instruments for which there is no price quoted in active markets and whose fair value cannot be
reliably determined;
. derivatives.

FlaFV includes financial assets:
(i) not belonging to regulatory trading book, whose risk is:
. connected with debt positions measured at fair value (see also Section 15 — “Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss”);
. and managed by the use of derivatives not treatable as accounting hedges.
(i) represented by hybrid (combined) instruments containing embedded derivatives that otherwise should have been separated
from the host contract.

FlaFV are accounted for in a similar manner to HfT financial assets (see Section 1 — Held-for-Trading Financial Assets),
however gains and losses, whether realised or unrealized, are recognized in item 110. “Gains (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value”.

6 — Hedge Accounting
Hedging instruments are those created to hedge market risks (interest-rate, currency and pr